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Registration No. Bor.Mor.Jor. 58

7 March 2005

Subject Invitation to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2005

To All

Shareholders

This Notice is hereby given by the Board of Directors of Shin Corporation Public Company Limited
(the “Company”) that the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company for 2004 shall be

held on Thursday 31

March 2005 at 2.00 p.m. (registration starts at 1.00 p m.) at the Auditorium, 9"

Floor, Shinawatra Tower 3, 1010 Viphavadi Rangsit Road, Chatuchak, Bangkok. The agenda is as

follows:

Agenda No. 1

Agenda No. 2

Agenda No. 3

Agenda No. 4

Agenda No. §

Matters to be informed

To consider and certify the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for 2004, held on 23 April 2004

Board’s Opinion: The Board is of the opinion that the Minutes of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders for 2004, held on 23 April 2004 should be
certified as accurate record. Details are as shown in Enclosure .

To comsider and certify the report on the operating results of the Company
for 2004

Board’s Opinion: The Board is of the opinion that the report on the operating
results of the Company for 2004 should be certified. Details are as shown in
Enclosure 2.

To comnsider and approve the balance sheets, the income statement, and the
cash flow statement for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2004

Board’s Opinion: The Board is of the opinion that the balance sheets, the income
statement, and the cash flow statement for the fiscal year ended 31 December
2004 which have been audited by the external auditors of the Company should be
approved. Details are as shown in Enclosure 2.

To consider and approve the appropriation of the net profit as dividends of
2004

Board’s Opinion: The Board is of the opinion that the distribution of dividends
from the Company’s operating result from July to December 2004 at 1.08 Baht
per share, totaling 3,234,606,724.08 Baht equaling to 73.54% of the Company’s
net profit to be paid to the shareholders whose names appeared in the Company’s
share register book as of 11 March 2005, and the dividend payment date 12 April
2005 should be approved.

The Company has made the interim dividend payment for its operating result
between 1 January and 30 June 2004 to the shareholders at 0.92 Baht per share,
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totaling 2,714,026,128 Baht equaling to 63.10 % of net profit. Therefore, the
total dividend payment for year 2004 is 2 Baht per share, totaling
5,948,632,852.08 Baht equaling to 68.38% of net profit.

Agenda No. 6 To consider and approve the appointment of the Company’s auditors and to
fix their remuneration for 2005

Board’s Opinion: The Board is of the opinion that the auditors from
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Company Limited (“PwC”), which has been the
auditor of the Company, its subsidiaries and its affiliates since 1999, should be
reappointed to be the auditors of the Company for 2005. The name list of
auditors is as follows:

1. Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich CPA (Thailand) No. 3051
2. Miss Nangnoi Charoenthanveesub ~ CPA (Thailand) No. 3044
3. Mrs. Suwannee Bhuripanyc CPA (Thailand) No. 3371
4, Mr. Pasit Yuengsrikul CPA (Thailand) No. 4174

Any of the above auditors can conduct the audit and express an opinion as to the
financial statements of the Company. In the event that the above auditors are not
available, PwC is authorized to identify any auditor of PwC who qualifies as a
Certified Public Accountant to carry out the work. It is recommended that the
audit fee be fixed at not more than 2,310,000 Baht equaling to the fee for year
2004,

Agenda No. 7 To consider and approve the reappointment of directors in place of those
who retired by rotation and to determine the authorized signatories of the
Company

Board’s Opinion:
7.1. The Board is of the opinion that the following three directors retiring from
the Company’s directorship should be re-elected.

(1) Mr. Olam Chaipravat Vice Chairman of the Board of Director,
Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of Remuneration Committee —
ESOP. '

(2) Mrs Siripen Sitasuwan Authorized Director, Executive Director
(3) Mr. Vithit Leenutapong | Director, Member of Audit Committee,
Member of Remuneration Committee
and Member of Nominated Committee

Details about age, percentage of shareholding, educational background, work
experience, Board of Directors’ meeting attendance, and contributions to the
Company for each director are provided in Enclosure 3.

The election of the Company’s directors is to be determined by a majority of
votes in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

7.2. The Board recommends maintaining the currently authorized Company
signatories as follows;

2/6




Agenda No. 8

Agenda No. 9

“Mr. Bhanapot Damapong Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri Mr. Arak
Chonlatanon Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan any two of the four directors jointly
sign with the Company’s seal affixed.”

To consider and approve the remuneration of the Board of Directors of
the Company for 2005

Board’s Opinion The Board is of the opinion thét the following remuneration
should be approved:

The remuneration of the Chairman of the Board and the Independent
Directors of the Company and Non-executive Director, which is comparable
to similar industries as agreed by the Remuneration Committee, should be up
to 10,000,000 Baht per annum equaling to the remuneration set in year 2004.
The remuneration consists of salary, bonus, provident fund, and meeting
allowance. The remuneration is accepted by the Remuneration Committee in
accordance with the following Company’s policies year 2004:

¢ The Chairman of the Board of Director will receive only salary
and bonus and provident fund.

e The Board of Director meeting allowance for Independent
Directors or Non-executive directors is 25,000 Baht for each
meeting,

e In the event that Independent Director or Non-executive Director
is appointed as a member or chairman of any Company’s
Committee, the meeting allowance will be 25,000 Baht and 30,000
Baht consecutively.

¢ The Executive Director will not receive the above-mentioned
remuneration.

To consider and approve the issuance and offering of 16,000,000 units of
warrants to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares (the “Warrants”) to the
directors and employees of the Company under the ESOP,
Grant 4

Board’s Opinion: The objective of the ESOP Program is to compensate and
motivate the directors, employees, and advisors to perform their duties in the best
interests of the Company. This should in turn bring about long-term benefits for
the Company, as well as retain them for the Company. The Board is of the opinion
that the issuance and offering of 16,000,000 units of the Warrants to 56 persons
under the ESOP Program Grant 4 should be approved. Details of the terms and
conditions are as shown in Enclosure 4.

The Executive Committee or person(s) authorized by the Board of Directors shall
have the authority to determine other provisions pertaining to the issuance of the
Warrants, including obtaining approval from the relevant authorities and
performing any other necessary actions relating to the issuance and offering of the
warrants.
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Agenda No. 10

Agenda No. 11

The shareholder meeting shall pass a resolution to approve the issuance and
offering of the Warrants to directors, employees and advisors of the Company with
no less than three-fourths of the votes of the shareholders attending the meeting
and having the right to vote, provided that shareholders holding an aggregate
number of shares exceeding 10 percent of the votes of shareholders attending the
meeting do not oppose the resolution.

To consider and approve the allocation of 16,000,000 new ordinary shares, at
the par value of One Baht each in order to reserve for the exercise of the
Warrants under the ESOP Program Grant 4

Board’s Opinion: For the issuance and offering of warrants according to Agenda
No. 9, the Company shall allot its ordinary shares in order to reserve for the
exercise of the Warrants under the ESOP Program Grant 4. As a result, the Board
is of the opinion that the allotment of 16,000,000 new ordinary shares at the par
value of one Baht each, from the remaining 814,000,000 ordinary shares. Details
are as shown in Enclosure 5.

The Executive Committee or person(s) authorized by the Board of Directors shall
have the authority to determine related details and conditions as well as necessary
and appropriate action in connection with the allocation and listing of such new
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

To consider and approve the allocation of the Warrants exceeding 5% of the
Warrants issued under the ESOP Program Grant 4 to each of the following
directors and employees of the Company

Director/Employee No. of Warrants Allocated % (of the Program)

1. Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri 6,414,600 units 40.09 %

Director/ Chairman of the Group Executive

The total number of Board meetings and the attendance at and absence from
these meetings during the last year

Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

No. of meetings (times) Attending (times)

5 s

Director/Employee No. of Warrants Allocated %6 (of the Program)

2. Mr. Arak Chonlatanon 1,247,700 units 7.80%

Chairman of the Executive Committee / E-Business & Others

The total number of Board meetings and the attendance at and absence from
these meetings during the last year

Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

No. of meetings (times) Attending (times)

5 4
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e Director/Employee No. of ‘Warrants Allocated % (of the Program)

3.Mr. Somprasong Boonyachai 970,000 units 6.06%

! The Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee / Human Resources

Director/Employee No. of Warrants Allocated % (of the Program)

4. Dr. Dumrong Kasemset 970,000 units 6.06%

Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee / Portfolio Management

The total number of Board meetings and the attendance at and absence from
these meetings during the last year

Shin Satellite Public Company Limited (a subsidiary of the Company)

No. of meetings (times) Attending (times)

5 5

Director/Employee No. of Warrants Allocated % (of the Program)

S. Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan 945,200 units 5.91%

Group Chief Financial Cfficer

The total number of Board meetings and the attendance at and absence from
these meetings during the last year

Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

No. of meetings (times) Attending (times)

5 4

Opinion of the Board of Directors and of the Remuneration Committee for the
ESOP:-

The Board of Directors and the Remuneration Committee for the ESOP Program
are of the opinion that the allocation exceeding 5% of the Warrants under the
ESOP Program Grant 4 to each of the above 5 persons should be approved. This is
because they possess high competency and accountability and have demonstrated
excellent performance. Furthermore, they are honest and loyal to the Company and
have performed their duties for the benefit of the Company at all times. The
Warrants® allocation for this ESOP Program will motivate efficient performance
by directors and employees, which will result in good operating results of the
Company. Details are as shown in Enclosure 6.

The shareholders meeting shall pass a resolution to approve the allocation of the
Warrants to each of the directors and employees with no less than three-fourths
of the votes of the shareholders attending the meeting and having the right to vote,
provided that there are not shareholders holding an aggregate number of shares
exceeding 5 percent of the total votes of the shareholders attending the meeting
opposing the resolution.
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Agenda No.12  To consider and approve the allocation of additional 600,000 ordinary shares
(at par value of one Baht) for adjustment to the exercise price and exercise
ratio of Warrants issued under ESOP Program Grant 1,2 and 3

Board’s Opinion: According to terms and conditions specified in the Application
Form regarding the Issuance and Offering of ESOP, the Board is of the opinion
that the allotment of 600,000 ordinary shares (at par value of one baht) from the
Company’s ordinary shares not being offered and be reserved for private
placement in the amount of 888,256,100 shares (at par value of one Baht) should
be approved for the adjustment of exercise ratio of ESOP Grant 1, 2 and 3.

From the fact that the Company approved the interim dividend payment for the
first half of Year 2004 and the dividend payment for the second half of Year 2004
in excess of 50% of net profit after income tax, the adjustment right of the warrant
holders specified in the Application Form regarding the Issuance and Offering of
ESOP Program will apply. The Board, consequently, is of opinion that the
adjustment of the exercise ratio should be approved to maintain the warrant
holders’ right. The allotment of the 600,000 ordinary shares for adjustment to the
exercise ratio of ESOP Program Grant 1, 2 and 3 are as follows:

Number of ordinary shares ESOP Program
200,000 Grant 1
220,000 Grant 2
180,000 Grant 3

The details are as shown in the Enclosure 3.
Agenda No.13 Other business (if any)

The share register book of the Company was closed at noon (12.00 p.m.) on 11
March 2005 in order to determine those shareholders who are eligible to attend and
vote at the meeting until the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2005 is
adjourned.

Kindly attend the meeting on the date, time and place specified above. If you are
unable to attend the meeting, please appoint a person to attend and vote at the
meeting on your behalf by completing the enclosed proxy form. You are required to
submit documents or other evidence showing that you are a shareholder or an
authorized representative as specified in the attached list.

Yours sincerely,

—_—

(Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri)
Director
Shin Corporation Public Company Limited
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Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2004

Date, Time & Place

Held on 23 April 2004 at 2.10 p.m. at the Auditorium, 19th Fioor, Shinawatra Tower 1, No.414
Pahon Yotin Road, Kwaeng Samsen Nai, Khet Paya Thai, Bangkok

Members of the Board of Directors Present

1. Mr. Bhanapot Damapong Chairman of the Board of Directors

2. Mr. Olarn Chaipravat, Ph.D. Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

3. Mr. Virach Aphimeteetamrong, Ph. D. Member of the Audit Committee

4. Mr. Vithit Leenutapong Member of the Audit Committee

5. Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri Director & Chairman of the Executive Committee
6. Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan Director & President

7. Mr. Arak Chonlatanon Director

Company's Directors Absent
1. Mr. Niwatthamrong Boonsongpaisan
2. Mrs. Chua Sock Koong

Company's Auditor Present

Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich, CPA (Thailand) No. 3051 of PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Company
Limited

Preliminary Proceedings

Mr. Bhanapot Damapong was the Chairman of the meeting. The Chairman announced that there were
603 shareholders present in person and by proxy representing 2,077,384,899 or 70.47 percent of
2,947,769,200 total issued shares of the Company, and that a quorum was constituted as required by
the Company's Articles of Association. The Chairman then declared the meeting duly convened.

Agenda 1 Matters to be informed
No matter to be informed

Agenda 2 To consider and adopt the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for
2003, held on 29 April 2003

The Chairman proposed that the shareholders adopt the Minutes of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders for 2003, held on 29 April 2003 which was sent to
the shareholders together with the notice of this annual general meeting of
shareholders.

Resolution :  The Shareholders adopted, by a votes of 2,077,384,899 shares or 100
% of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their votes, the
Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2003,
held on 29 April 2003. No shareholder abstained from voting nor
voted against such resolution.
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Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2004

Agenda 3 To consider and adopt the report on the operating results of the Company for
2003

Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri, the Executive Chairman, reported the operating results of the
Company for 2003 to the shareholders. He informed the shareholders of the key
events in 2003 concerning the Company and its subsidiaries, engaged in the business
of wireless communication, satellite and international business, media and advertising,
and E-business. Last year, the Company invested in two new businesses; Thai AirAsia
Co., Ltd. and Capital OK Co., Ltd. Regarding the satellite business, the Company sold
to CS Loxinfo Public Company Limited (CSL), a subsidiary of Shin Satellite Public
Company Limited (SATTEL), the Company’s shares holding in Teleinfo Media Co.,
Ltd. Furthermore, CSL has been listed on the Stock Market of Thailand. Regarding
the media business, ITV Public Company Limited (ITV) has accepted Kantana Group
Public Company Limited and Mr. Tripob Limpapath to be its strategic partners.
Regarding E-business, Shineedotcom Co., Ltd. (Shinee) has accepted Mitsui, Japan to
be a partner with a holding of 30 percent of Shinee’s shares. Mr. Boonklee also
reported the operating results of the Company which had a net profit of Baht
9,722,849,006 (Baht Nine thousand seven hundred and twenty-two million eight
hundred and forty- nine thousand and six) in 2003, increasing from Baht
4,441,416,357 last year. He additionally reported the operating result for 2003 of
Advance Info Services Public Company Limited (AIS) and the Company’s
subsidiaries: SATTEL and ITV. Additional details are presented in the Company’s
annual report of 2003 which was sent to the shareholders together with the notice of
this annual general meeting of shareholders.

The shareholders then were asked to consider and adopt this matter.

Resolution :  The Shareholders adopted, by a votes of 2,074,954,099 shares or 100
% of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their votes, the
report on the operating results of the Company for 2003. There were
2,430,800 shares of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast
their votes abstained from voting while no shareholder voted against
such resolution.

Agenda 4 To consider and approve the balance sheets, the income statement, and cash flow
statement for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2003

Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri, the Executive Chairman, informed the shareholders that in
order to comply with the law and the Company's Articles of Association, the balance
sheets, income statement and cash flow statement of the Company for the fiscal year
ended 31 December 2003 which has been agreed by the Audit Committee and audited
by the Company's auditors must be approved by this annual general meeting of
shareholders.

Details of the balance sheets, income statement and cash flow statement are presented
in the 2003 Annual Report of the Company which sent to the shareholders together
with the notice of this annual general meeting of shareholders.

The shareholders then were asked to consider and approve the balance sheets, income
statement, and cash flow statement of the Company for the fiscal year ended 31
December 2003.
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Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2004

Agenda §

Resolution ;  The Shareholders approved, by the votes of 2,074,954,099 shares or
100 % of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their
votes, the balance sheets, income statement, and cash flow statement
of the Company for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2003. There
were 2,430,800 shares of the shareholders who attend the meeting and
cast their votes abstained from voting while no shareholder voted
against such resolution.

To consider and approve the appropriation of the net profit of 2003 as dividends

Mr. Boonkiee Plangsiri, the Executive Chairman, informed the shareholders that
according to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2003, the Company made Baht 9,722,849,006 (Baht Nine thousand seven hundred
and twenty-two million eight hundred and forty- nine thousand and six) net profit
from its operations in 2003 or Baht 3.31 earnings per share. The Board has deemed it
appropriate to distribute a dividend for 2003 to shareholders of the Company at Baht
1.65 per share, totalling Baht 4,855,984,155 (Baht Four thousand eight hundred and
fifty-five million nine hundred and eighty- four thousand one hundred and fifty-five)
or 49.94 percent of the net profit. The Company paid an interim dividend for the
operating result between January and June 2003 at Baht 0.75 per share, totalling
2,202,991,875 (Baht Two thousand two hundred and two million nine hundred and
ninety-one eight hundred and seventy-five). The dividends to be paid for the operating
result between July and December 2003 will be at Baht 0.90 per share, totalling Baht
2,652,992,280 (Baht Two thousand six hundred and fifty-two million nine hundred
and ninety-two two hundred and eighty) of 2,947,769,200 total issued and paid-up
shares.

This dividend to be paid to shareholders is funded by dividends paid to the Company
by AIS at Baht 2.10 per share, amounting to Baht 2,653,795,200 (Baht Two thousand
six hundred and fifty-three million seven hundred and ninety-five thousand two
hundred). '

The shareholders were asked to consider and approve the declaration of the dividend
for the operating results between July and December 2003 to the shareholders whose
names appeared in the Company’s share register book as of 5 April 2004, at Baht 0.90
per share, totalling Baht 2,652,992,280 (Baht Two thousand six hundred and fifty-two
million nine hundred and ninety-two thousand two hundred and eighty). The dividend
shall be paid on 21 May 2004.

Before accepting this resolution, the shareholders asked a question as follow:

A Shareholder: In 2002, the Company had a net profit at Baht 1.80 per share and
declared the dividend for the operating results of 2002 at Baht 0.50 per share. In 2003,
the Company has increased the net profit to Baht 3.31 per share then will pay dividend
to shareholders at Baht 1.65 per share or around 50 percent of earning per share. Is it
possible if the Company does not have any new investment, the Company will pay the
dividend at 70 percent of earnings per share?
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Mr.Boonklee replied the question:

The Company invested by way of cash payment in two new businesses last year. In
addition, the Company still has a plan for new investments in 2004. It is anticipated
that any further investments will not require much funding. Currently, the Company
remains cash reserved for further investment approximately Baht 1,000 million.
Moreover, the Company distributed to shareholders all dividends received from AIS.
We are concerned that if the Company distributes a dividend more than 50 percent of
earnings per share, the Company may not have enough cash for new further
investment. Mr. Boonklee additionally informed that due to the Company as a holding
company, it should not have burden of debts. It can be seen that the Company has
much less debts and has low risk. It would be good to remain this situation in order to
keep strength and increase capacity for further investments. Regarding the distribution
of dividend, the Company mainly consider from the Company’s cash flow.

There is no further question. The Chairman proposed to shareholders that they
consider and approve the distribution of dividend.

Resolution :  The Shareholders approved, by a votes of 2,077,384,899 shares or
100 % of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their
votes, the declaration of the dividend as the above proposed. No
shareholder abstained from voting nor voted against such resolution.

Agenda 6 To consider and approve the appointment of the Company’s auditors for 2004
and to fix their remuneration

Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, proposed that the
shareholders to consider and approve the re-appointment of the auditors of
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Company Limited (PwC) as the Company's auditors
for 2004. The name list of auditors is as follows:

1. Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich CPA (Thailand) No.3051
2. Miss Nangnoi Charoenthanveesub ~ CPA (Thailand) No.3044
3. Mrs. Suwannee Bhuripanyo CPA (Thailand) No.3371
4. Mr. Pasit Yuengsrikul CPA (Thailand) No.4174

Any of the above auditors can conduct the audit and express an opinion as to the
financial statements of the Company. In the absence of the above named auditors,
PwC is authorized to identify one other auditors of PwC who qualifies as a Certified
Public Accountant to carry out the work.

The auditor’s remuneration for 2004 will be fixed at not more than Baht 2,310,000
(Baht Two million three hundred and ten thousand), increasing from Baht 110,000
(Baht One hundred and ten thousand) last year. Due to diversification of the
Company’s investment, scopes of works in 2004 are increased from last year.

Before accepting this resolution, the shareholders asked a question as follow:
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Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2004

Agenda 7

A Shareholder: As we may know that the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) wishes
to see a changing of the Company’s auditor every five years. To make transparency,
how long does PwC to be an auditor of the Company, asked by a shareholder?

Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan: She informed to the shareholders that PwC has been an
auditor of the Company for six years (including 2004). She has committed to comply
with the condition if it is officially required by the SET or the Securities Exchange
Committee (SEC). She further said that the Company has recognised that matter and
has already had the discussion with PwC.

There is no further question. The Chairman proposed to shareholders that they
consider and approve the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor.

Resolutiom :  The Shareholders approved, by a votes of 2,077,384,899 shares or
100 % of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their
votes, the re-appointment of the auditors of PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABAS Company Limited (PwC) as the Company's auditors for 2004.
No shareholder abstained from voting nor voted against such
resolution.

To comsider and approve the election of directors to replace those retired by
rotation and to determine the authorized signatories of the Company

The Chairman informed the shareholders that

7.1 At every annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third of the Board of
Directors who has been longest in office must retire by rotation according to
Article 18 of the Company's Articles of Association. However, the retiring
directors are eligible for re-election. The directors who must retire by rotation of
this Annual General Meeting of Shareholders are as follows:

(1) Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri : Authorized Director
(2) Mr. Niwatthamrong Boonsongpaisan  : Director
(3) Mr. Arak Chonlatanon : Authorized Director
(4) Mrs. Chua Sock Koong : Director

The Board of Directors as agreed by the Nominated Committee approved to re-elect
those retired directors being the directors of the Company. Their details about age,
percentage of shareholding, educational background, work experience, Board of
Directors’ meeting attendance record, and contributions to the Company for each
director were sent to the shareholders together with the notice of this annual general
meeting of shareholders.

The election of the Company’s directors is to be determined by a majority of votes in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Before accepting this resolution, the shareholders asked a question as follow:
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A Shareholder: It would be appreciated if Mrs. Chua Sock Koong can attend the
meeting more than 2 times of the 6 Board meetings as she did last year or she can
make it via video conference, as the case may be. The shareholder recommended that
if she has a limitation of the attendance of the meeting, the Company should consider
her position.

Chairman: The chairman informed the shareholders that the Company is
welcome to accept this matter for the consideration.

There is no further question. The Chairman proposed to shareholders that they
consider and approve the re-election of those directors.

(1) The Shareholders then were asked to re-elect Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri to be a
director of the Company.

Resolution :  The Shareholders approved, by a votes of 2,073,834,699 shares or
99.99 % of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their
votes, to re-elect Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri to be a director of the
Company. There were 3,377,700 shares of the total shares present at
the meeting abstained from voting and 172,500 shares or 0.01 % of
the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their votes voted
against such resolution.

(2) The Shareholders then were asked to re-elect Mr. Mr. Niwatthamrong
Boonsongpaisan to be a director of the Company.

Resolution :  The Shareholders approved, by a votes of 2,073,834,699 shares or
99.99 % of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their
votes, to re-elect Mr. Niwatthamrong Boonsongpaisan to be a
director of the Company. There were 3,377,700 shares of the total
shares present at the meeting abstained from voting and 172,500
shares or 0.01% of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast
their votes voted against such resolution.

(3) The Shareholders then were asked to re-elect Mr. Arak Chonlatanon to be a
director of the Company.

Resolution : The Shareholders approved, by a votes of 2,073,834,699 shares or
99.99 % of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their
votes, to re-elect Mr. Arak Chonlatanon to be a director of the
Company. There were 3,377,700 shares of the total shares present at
the meeting abstained from voting and 172,500 shares or 0.01 % of
the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their votes voted
against such resolution.
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(4) The Shareholders then were asked to re-elect Mrs. Chua Sock Koong to be a
director of the Company.

Resolution :  The Shareholders approved, by a votes of 2,073,834,699 shares or
99.99 % of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their
votes, to re-elect Mrs. Chua Sock Koong to be a director of the
Company. There were 3,377,700 shares of the total shares present at
the meeting abstained from voting and 172,500 shares or 0.01 % of
the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their votes voted
against such resolution.

7.2. The Board approved to maintain the currently authorized Company’s signatories as
follows;

“ Mr. Bhanapot Damapong  Mr. Boonklee Plangsii  Mr. Arak Chonlatanon
Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan any two of these four directors jointly sign with the
Company’s seal affixed ”

The Shareholders then was asked to consider and approve the above authorized
Company’s signatories.

Resolution: The Shareholders approved, by a votes of 2,073,834,699 shares or
99.99 % of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their
votes, the authorized signatories remain the same as proposed above.
There were 3,377,700 shares of the total shares present at the meeting
abstained from voting and 172,500 shares or 0.01 % of the
shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their votes voted
against such resolution.

To consider and approve the remuneration of the Board of Directors of the
Company for 2004

Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri, the Executive Chairman, informed the shareholders that
the Board approved the remuneration of the chairman of the Board, the
independent directors and the outside directors of the Company which is to be
comparable to similar industries. It is up to Baht 10,000,000 (Baht Ten million) per
annum, increasing from Baht 2,000,000 (Baht two million) last year. The
remuneration consists of salary, bonus, welfare, provident fund, and meeting
allowance.

The Remuneration Committee proposed to increase the meeting allowance as
follows :

e The allowance for Board meetings is Baht 25,000 (increasing from Baht 5,000
last year) each for independent directors or outside directors of the Company
only.
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e The independent directors or outside directors who simultaneously act as
members of any Committees of the Company shall also receive another Baht
25,000 (increasing from Baht 5,000 last year) except in the case of independent
directors who act as the chairman of any Committee, who shall be paid Baht
30,000 (increasing from Baht 5,000 last year) for attending a Committee
meeting.

Before accepting this resolution, the shareholders asked a question as follow:

A Shareholder: Apart from the remuneration, do these directors be granted the
Company’s Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)?

Mr. Boomnklee Plangsiri: He informed the shareholders that these directors are not
granted the ESOP. The ESOP is particularly granted to the Company’s executive
directors.

A Sharcholder: He asked for a payment of remuneration last year.

Mr. Anek Pana-apichon (Vice President of finance and accounting): He informed
the shareholders that as the shareholders’ approval for the directors’ remuneration of
not more than Baht 8,000,000 in the annual general meeting 2003, last year the
remuneration was paid at Baht Seven million five hundred and twenty thousand nine
hundred (7,520,900) to these directors, as shown in the financial statement appeared in
page 72 of the Company’s annual report.

There is no further question. The Chairman proposed to shareholders that they
consider and approve the directors’ remuneration.

Resolution: The Shareholders approved, by a vote of 1,669,576,899 shares or
99.80 % of the shareholders who attend the meeting and cast their
votes, up to Baht 10,000,000 of the remuneration of the Board of
Directors of the Company for 2004 as proposed above. There
were 3,377,700 shares or 0.20 % of the shareholders who attend
the meeting and cast their votes voted against such resolution.
There were no abstentions from voting except Mr. Bhanapot
Damapong, who is an interested person, holding 404,430,300 of
the Company’s shares abstained from voting.

Agenda 9 To consider and approve the issuance and offering of 13,660,200 units of
warrants to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares (the “Warrants”) to the
directors, employees and advisors of the Company under the ESOP Program,
Grant 11

Mr. Boonklee  Plangsiri, Chairman of the Executive Committee, informed the
shareholders that the objective of the ESOP program is to motivate and reward
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directors, employees, and advisors of the Company to perform their duties in the best
interests of the Company. This shouid in turn bring about the long-term benefits to the
Company as well as retain them with the Company. The Company will issue and
offer the Warrants to directors, employees, and advisors of the Company once a year
for 5 consecutive years. The number of Warrants to be issued and offered under ESOP
Grant III in this year 2004 is 13,660,200 units. These Warrants will be offered to not
exceeding 35 specific persons (private placement). Most terms and conditions of this
Grant, as agreed by the Remuneration Committee, will be similar to the terms and
conditions of Grant [ and II.

Details of the ESOP Grant III were sent to the shareholders together with the notice of
this annual general meeting of shareholders.

In addition, the Executive Committee or person(s) authorized by the Board of
Directors shall have the authority to determine related other provisions pertaining to
the issuance of the warrants, including obtaining approval from the relevant
authorities and performing any other necessary actions relating to the issuance and
offering of the warrants. '

The shareholders were asked to consider and approve this matter.

Resolutiom:  The shareholders considered the above and resolved (without a voting
of 3,013,860 shares of Mr.Boonklee Plangsiri and Mr.Niwatthamrong
Boonsongpaisan as the Company’s directors, including Dr. Dumrong
Kasemset as the Company executive director who are the interested
persons shall not be entitled to vote), by a vote of 2,060,774,739
shares or 99.34 % of the total number of votes of shareholders who
attend the meeting and have the right to vote, that the issuance and
offering of 13,660,200 units of warrants under the ESOP Grant III as
per the above details in all respects and that the Board of Directors Le
hereby authorized to do any necessary and reasonable act under the
ESOP Grant III be approved. There were 13,596,300 shares or 0.66 %
of the total number of votes of shareholders who attend the meeting
and have the right to vote voted against while there were no
abstentions from voting.

To consider and approve the allocation of 13,660,200 new ordinary shares (at the
par value of Baht One each) in order to reserve for the exercise of the Warrants
under the ESOP Program, Grant 111

Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri, Chairman of the Executive Committee, informed the
shareholders that pursuant to the approval of the issuance and offering of warrants to
directors, employees and advisors of the Company at a number of 13,660,200 units
under the ESOP Grant IIl in Agenda 9 above, the shareholders’ meeting must also
pass a resolution for the allocation of 13,660,200 ordinary shares (One Baht par value
each) to be reserved for the exercise of the warrants under ESOP Grant 1II. The
reserved shares shall be allocated out of the total 901,916,300 capital increase
ordinary shares (One Baht par value each) which are allocated for a private placement
as resolved at the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 2/1999 held on
16 July 1999. After reserving 13,660,200 ordinary shares for this warrant exercise,
there would be 888,256,100 unissued shares (One Baht par value each) left in the
Company for future private placement.
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The Executive Committee or the person assigned by the Board of Directors be
empowered to consider and determine details and related conditions as well as any
other necessary and reasonable activities relating to the ordinary share allocation to be
reserved for the exercise of the right under the warrants of 13,660,200 ordinary shares
(One Baht par value each), including to list the capital increase ordinary shares in the
Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The shareholders were asked to consider and approve this matter.

Resolution:  The shareholders considered the above and resolved, by a vote of
2,063,788,599 shares or 99.35 % of the total number of votes of
shareholders who attend the meeting and have the right to vote, that
the allocation of 13,660,200 ordinary shares (One Baht par value
each) reserved for the exercise of the Warrants under the ESOP Grant
11 be approved. There were 13,596,300 shares or 0.65 % of the total
number of votes of shareholders who attend the meeting and have the
right to vote while there were no abstentions from voting.

Agenda 11 To consider and approve the allocation of the Warrants exceeding 5% of the
Warrants issued under ESOP Program, Grant III to directors, employees and
advisors of the Company

The Chairman stated that the shareholders have approved the ESOP program, Grant
III in the Agenda 9 above. The Board of Directors and the Remuneration Committee
for the ESOP program have approved to allocate the warrants exceeding 5 % of ESOP
Grant III to the directors and the executive staff of the Company and its subsidiaries,
totalling 5 persons as listed in the notice of this shareholders meeting due to their high
competency, ability, accountability and excellent performance. Furthermore, they are
honest with loyalty to the Company and perform their duty with the highest benefits
of the Company at all time. The warrant allocation of this ESOP program would
motivate more efficient performance of the directors and employees which would
finally result in good operating results of the Company. The names of the directors
and executive staff who have been nominated to be eligible for the warrant allocaticn
exceeding 5 percent of the program as follows:

1. Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri, Company’s Director and Chairman of the Group
Executive Committee, has been nominated to be eligible for the warrant allocation
at a number of 7,083,700 units or 51.86 percent of the total number of warrants
under ESOP Grant III. During last year, Shin Corporation Public Company
Limited had 6 Board of Directors’ meetings. He attended all 6 Board of Directors’
meetings.

The shareholders were asked to consider and approve this matter.

Resolution:  The shareholders considered the above and resolved (without a voting
of 1,342,000 shares of Mr.Boonklee Plangsiri as a shareholder who is
an interested persons shall not be entitled to vote), by a vote of
2,051,938,452 shares or 98.84% of the total number of votes of
shareholders who attend the meeting and have the right to vote, that
the warrants allocated to Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri as per the above
details be approved in all respects. There were 24,104,447 shares or
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1.16 % of the total number of votes of shareholders who attend the
meeting and have the right to vote voted against while there were no
abstentions from voting.

2. Mr. Somprasong Boonyachai, Group Vice Chairman of the Group Executive
Committee/Human Resources, has been nominated to be eligible for the warrant
allocation at a number of 976,000 units or 7.14 percent of the total number of
warrants under ESOP Grants IIL

The shareholders were asked to consider and approve this matter.

Resolution:  The shareholders considered the above and resolved, by a vote of
2,053,280,452 shares or 98.84 % of the total number of votes of
shareholders who attend the meeting and have the right to vote, that
the warrants allocated to Mr. Somprasong Boonyachai as per the
above details be approved in all respects. There were 24,104,447
shares or 1.16 % of the total number of votes of shareholders who
attend the meeting and have the right to vote voted against while there
were no abstentions from voting.

3. Dr. Dumrong Kasemset, Group Vice Chairman of the Group Executive
Committee/Portfolio Management and Director of Shin Satellite Public Company
Limited (a subsidiary of Shin Corporation Public Company Limited), has been
nominated to be eligible for the warrant allocation at a number of 976,000 units or
7.14 percent of the total number of warrants under ESOP Grant III. During last
year, Shin Satellite Public Company Limited had 5 Board of Directors’ meetings.
He attended all 5 Board of Directors’ meeting.

The shareholders were asked to consider and approve this matter.

Resolution:  The shareholders considered the above and resolved (without a voting
of 881,500 shares of Dr. Dumrong Kasemset as a shareholder who is
an interested persons shall not be entitled to vote), by a vote of
2,052,398.952 shares or 98.84% of the total number of votes of
shareholders who attend the meeting and have the right to vote, that
the warrants allocated to Dr. Dumrong Kasemset as per the above
details be approved in all respects. There were 24,104,447 shares or
1.16 % of the total number of votes of shareholders who attend the
meeting and have the right to vote voted against while there were no
abstentions from voting.

4, Mr. Niwatthamrong Boonsongpaisan, Company’s Director and Group Vice
Chairman of the Group Executive Committee/ Corporate Public Relations, has
been nominated to be eligible for the warrant allocation at a number of 764,200
units or 5.59 percent of the total number of warrants under ESOP Grant IIL
During last year, Shin Corporation Public Company Limited had 6 Board of
Directors’ meetings. He attended 4 Board of Directors’ meetings.

Resolutiom:  The shareholders considered the above and resolved (without a voting
of 790,360 shares of Mr. Niwatthamrong Boonsongpaisan as a
shareholder who is an interested persons shall not be entitled to vote),
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by a vote of 2,052,490,092 shares or 98.84 % of the total number of
votes of shareholders who attend the meeting and have the right to
vote, that the warrants allocated to Mr. Niwatthamrong
Boonsongpaisan as per the above details be approved in all respects.
There were 24,104,447 shares or 1.16 % of the total number of votes
of shareholders who attend the meeting and have the right to vote
voted against while there were no abstentions from voting.

5. Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan, Company’s Director and Group Chief Financial Officer,
as been nominated to be eligible for the warrant allocation at a number of 763,400
units or 5.59 percent of the total number of warrants under ESOP Grant III.
During last year, Shin Corporation Public Company Limited had 6 Board of
Directors’ meetings. She attended S Board of Directors’ meetings.

The shareholders were asked to consider and approve this matter.

Resolution:  The shareholders considered the above and resolved, by a vote of
2,053,280,452 shares or 98.84 % of the total number of votes of
shareholders who attend the meeting and have the right to vote, that
the warrants allocated to Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan as per the above
details be approved in all respects. There were 24,104,447 shares or
1.16 % of the total number of votes of shareholders who attend the
meeting and have the right to vote voted against while there were no
abstentions from voting.

Agenda 12 Other business

There was no other business proposed to the shareholders. The Chairman of the
meeting expressed his sincere thanks to the shareholders for attending this
shareholders’ meeting. The meeting adjourned at 3.15 p.m.

- (signed ) -
Mr. Bhanapot Damapong
Chairman of the Meeting

Minutes prepared by
- ( signed ) -
Miss. Sareerat Khangkhandee
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Information of the Directors who retired by Rotation and Re-Elected

Name Mr. Olarn Chaipravat (Ph.D.)

Age 60

Title Vice Chairman of the Board of Director, Chairman of the
Audit Committee and Member of Remuneration
Committee —ESOP.

harenolding (%) * -None-

Relationship with -None-
Management

Highest Education PH.D. Economics, Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (M.L.T.) U.S.A.

Governance Training Directors Accreditation Program, Class 4/2003
(e.g. DCP and DAP of IOD)
and other training

Experience Present Vice Chairman of the Board of Director
and Chairman of the Audit Committee,

Shin Corporation Plc.

Council Member, Shinawatra University
1998 ~2001 Director, Siam Commercial Bank Plc.
1992 — 1998 President, Siam Commercial Bank Plc.
1990 — 1992 Director and Senior Executive Vice

President,
1984 — 1990 Siam Commercial Bank Plc.

Senior Executive Vice President,

Siam Commercial Bank Plc.

Directors Present 5 of 5

Illegal record in part 10 years - None -

Contribution of The Company - Served as the Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors and The Chairman of the Audit Committee.
Involve in setting up company vision and developing
strategies as well as monitoring the effectiveness of
Internal Auditing, internal control, risk management
and good corporate governance systems.

* Includes holding by spouse and minor children




Information of the Directors who retired by Rotation and Re-Elected

Name
Age
Title
8 Sharcholding (%) *

Relatiomship with
Mazanagement

Highest Education

Governance Training
(e.g. DCP and DAP of IOD)
and other training

Experience

Directors Present

illegal record im part 10 years

Contribution of The Company

Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan

56

Authorized Director, Executive Director

0.030 % (as at 31 December 2004)

- None -

MBA, Wichita State University, Wichita, Kansas, U.S.A.

Directors Certification Program Class 33/2003

2004-present
2001-present
2000-present

1998-present

1998-2000
1994-1998

1991-1993

40f 5

- None -

Director and Member of the Executive Committee,
CS LoxInfo Plc.
Director and Member of the Executive Committee,
ITV Plc.
President, Shin Corporation Plc.,
Group Chief Finance Officer
Director and Member of the Executive Committee,
Shin Corporation Plc.,
Advanced Info Service Plc.,
Shin Satellite Plc.
Chief Finance Officer, Shin Corporation Plc.
Executive Vice President - Finance,
Shinawatra Group
Vice President - Finance, Shinawatra Group

- Being the top leader in monitoring financial and funding
management of SHIN Corporation Ple.

- Being a co-leader in creation of SHIN Group's vision and
developing SHIN Group's strategies.

- Being the top leader in monitoring financial management of

SHIN Group.

* Includes holding by spouse and minor children




Information of the Directors who retired by Rotation and Re-Elected

Name
Age
Title

. A hareholding (%) *

) Relationship with

Management

Highest Education

Governance Training
(e.g. DCP and DAP of IOD)

and other training

Experience

Directors Present

Illegal record in part 10 years

Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong

49

Director, Member of Audit Committee, Member of
Remuneration Committee and Member of Nominated
Committee

-None-

-None-

Master of Business Administration (International Finance),
University of Southern California, U.S.A.

Directors Certification Program (DCP), Class 162002

2001 — Present Director and Member of the Audit

Committee, Shin Corporation Plc.

2002 -2004  Management Board, Airports of
Thailand Plc.
Vice Chairman, Yontrakit Group
Executive Director, Thai Yarnyon
Company Limited
2001 Management Board,
Thai Airways International Pic.
1995 -2000  Director and Member of the Audit
Committee, Advanced Info Serviced Ple.
1996 - 1997  Board of Director, Expressway and Rapid
transit Authority of Thailand
50f5
- None -

Serve as a directors and Member of the Audit
Committee. Involve in setting up company vision and
developing strategies as well as monitoring the
effectiveness of Internal Auditing, internal control, risk
management and good corporate governance system.

Contribution of The Company -

* Includes holding by spouse and minor children




W CORPERATICR  Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

Details of the program regarding the issuance and offfering of warrants to purchase ordinary shares to
directors and employees of the Company (Employee Stoek Option Plan — ESOP) - Grant TV

1. Objectives and necessities of offering securities to directors and employees of the Compan

The objective of the ESOP is to compensate and motivate the directors and employees to perform their duties
in the best interests of the Company. This should in turn bring about long-term benefit to the Company, as well as retain
them with the Company.

The overall program consists of 5 plans during a period of 5 years. The Company will issue and offer warrants
to directors and employees of the Company once a year, for 5 consecutive years. The terms of warrants issued each year
will not exceed 5 years from the date of issuance, while other details of warrants will be similar for all five issuance.
The warrant issuance and allocation each year are subject to approvals of the Board of Directors and Shareholders’
meetings.

GrantI: The amount of warrants to be issued and offered in 2002 is 29,000,000 units, implying that
29,000,000 ordinary shares (at Baht 1 par value) reserved for the exercise of warrants, equivalent to 0.99 percent of the
paid-up capital of the Company.

Grant [1: The amount of warrants to be issued and offered in 2003 is 18,083,700 units, implying that
18,083,700 ordinary shares (at Baht 1 par value) reserved for the exercise of warrants, equivalent to 0.61 percent of the
total paid-up capital of the Company.

Grant [II: The amount of warrants to be issued and offered in 2004 is 13,660,200 units, implying that
13,660,200 ordinary shares (at Baht 1 par value) reserved for the exercise of warrants, equivalent to 0.46 percent of the
total paid-up capital of the Company.

The amount of warrants 1o be issued and offered in 2005 is 16,000,000 units, implying that 16,000,000
ordinary shares (at Baht 1 par value) reserved for the exercise of warrants, equivalent to 0.54 percent of the total paid-up
capital of the Company. Total amount of ordinary shares reserved for the exercise of warrants under the ESOP Grant I,
I, 11T, and 1V is equivalent to 2.60 percent of the total paid-up capital of the Company. Details of warrants particular to
ESOP Grant IV as set out below will be proposed to the shareholders” meeting. Meanwhile, the Company expects to use
the proceeds from the exercise of rights pursuant to warrants as working capital.

2. Preliminary Details of Warrants in the Fourth Year Program

Type of Warrants Warrants to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares, in registered form
and non-transferable unless by hereditary or beneficiary transfer as
specified in Clause 3.4.3 (hereinafter referred to as “warrant”)

Total Number of Warrants to be 16,000,000 units

Qffered

Offering Price per Unit Baht 0 (zero Baht)

Offering Period The offering shall be completed within one year from the date on which

the program is approved by the SEC.

Terms Not exceeding 5 years from the issue and offer date.

Reserved Shares 16,000,000 shares (at the par value of Baht 1), or 0.54 of the total paid-
up shares.

Warrant Allocation Method Allocation of warrants to the Company’s directors and employees and

not offering through the intermediary.

Exercis¢ Ratio One warrant per one ordinary share

SHIN CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Company Registration No. Bor Mor Jor 58 1/6

414 Shinawatra Tower 1, Phahon Yothin Rd., Phaya Thai, Bangkok 10400 THAILAND.
Tel : (662) 299-5000 Fax : (662) 299 5196 www.shincorp.com




Exercise Price The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares traded on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand during the period of 30 days prior to
the day of Shareholders’ Meeting.

Issuing and Offering Date The Company’s Executive Committee will determine the date of issuing
and offering of warrants

Exercise Period The Company’s directors and employees could exercise the rights of the
warrants to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares as shown in the
following details:

First Year Directors and employees are entitled to exercise
one-third of their allocated warrants to purchase
ordinary shares one year after the warrants are
issued to them, until the warrants are expired.

In case the exercise of rights pursuant to warrants
creates a fraction of share(s) less than the board lot
determined by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, such
fraction will be exercisable in the next exercise of
rights.

Second Year Directors and employees are entitled to exercise
one-third of their allocated warrants to purchase
ordinary shares two years after the warrants are
issued to them, until the warrants are expired.

In case the exercise of rights pursuant to warrants
creates a fraction of share(s) less than the board lot
determined by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, such
fraction will be exercisable in the next exercise of
rights.

Third Year Directors and employees are entitled to exercise the
remaining of their allocated warrants to purchase
ordinary shares three years after the warrants are
issued to them, until the warrants are expired.

In case the exercise of rights pursuant to warrants
creates a fraction of share(s) less than the board lot
determined by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, such
fraction will be exercisable at the last exercise of

rights.
Rights and Interests Other than -None-
those Normal Rights and Interests
from Ordinary Shares
3. Other Principle and Conditions for Exercise of Warrants
31 Exercise Period of Warrants A holder of the warrant certificate who wishes to exercise their rights to

purchase ordinary shares of the Company is required to submit an exercise notice with the Company between 9.00 a.m.
and 4.00 p.m. within five business days prior to each exercise date, except for the last exercise period the exercise notice
must be submitted during 15 days prior to period of the Last Exercise Period.

Ordinary shares purchased in every exercise of warrants will be in whole number of a trading unit on
the main board of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, except for the exercise of rights for the last exercise period.
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3.2 Exercise Date and Time: Between 9.00 a.m. and 4.00 p.m. of the last business day of every month.
(“Exercise Date”) except for the last exercise period the exercise date will be during five business days prior to the
expired date.

33 Qualifications of Directors and employees Eligible for Warrant Allocation

331 Any director or employee of the Company with a minimum of one year of service, and not
an employee who is sent from a joint venture on a temporary term-basis operation;

332 Any selected director or employee who is beneficial to the Company (as the case may be);

333 In the case of any exception not pursuant to Clauses 3.3.1 and 3.3.2, it will be proposed to
the meeting of Executive Committee for special consideration; and

334 The number of warrants as determined by the Company allocated to the respective directors
and/or employees of the Company will not necessarily be in the same amount, but will be varied based on the position,
work experience, years of service, performance and potential, as well as benefits providing to the Company.

34 Warrant Allocation Obligations between the Company and Directors and employees of he Company

3.4.1 If any director of the Company vacates of office or any employee retire from the Company
pursuant to the Company’s work rules, prior to exercising the rights under the warrants, such vacated directors, retired
employee are entitled to exercise their warrants until the term of warrants.

342 If any director, employee resign from the Company due to the Company’s order of transfer,
such director or employee are entitled to exercise their warrants until the term of warrants.

343 If any director or employee is no longer a director or employee of the Company by reason
of decease, disappearance, infirmity, or incompetent, such warrants shall then pass on to the person named as executor
or beneficiary of the deceased, disappeared, infirm, or incompetent director or employee, as the case may be. That
person will be entitled to exercise those warrants to purchase ordinary shares of the Company until the term of warrants.

344 [f any director resign from the Company prior to expiration of the term of office or any
employee resign from the Company for any reason other than as specified in Clauses 3.4.1, 3.4.2, or 3.4.3 above, such
director and employee shall be entitled to exercise their warrants to purchase ordinary shares of the Company only the
allowed portion within three months after such director and employee resigned from their offices. Alternatively, the
executive commiittee is entitled to determine in the appropriate respect.

Remaining warrants which any director or employee is unable to exercise for any of the reasons as
stipulated in Clause 3.4.4 shall be submitted to the Company for cancellation.

35 In Case of Un-Exercise of Warrants  If directors or employees of the Company do not exercise all
or some of warrants and terms of warrants are expired, it is deemed that the directors or employees waive their rights on
such un-exercised warrants. [n this respect, such directors or employees shall not be entitled to claim any compensation
from the Company.

36 Assistance from the Company in Respect of Sources of Funds for Directors and employees
-None-

3.7 Right Adjustment The Company may reserve additional common shares if the circumstances
stipulated in the notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission, relating to the offer for sale of warrants to
purchase common shares, occur and cause the adjustment of the rights pursuant to warrants.

. In the case of the rights adjustment of the ESOP that required more additional shares than the
reserved shares, the company shall seek for approval from sharcholders, in the next shareholder meeting. Should the
warrants expire sooner than the next shareholder meeting, the company shall bring the matter to the shareholder meeting
as soon as possible.
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4. Effects upon Shareholders from Issuance of Warrants and Offer for Sale to Directors and employees of
the Company on this Occasion

4.1 Effects upon Price Dilution due to the Exercise of Rights to Purchase Shares by Directors and
Employees
The exercise price is determined as the weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
traded on the Stock Exchange of Thailand during the period of 30 days prior to the day of shareholders’ meeting, which
closes to the market price, the issuance and offering of warrants will not create any effect upon price dilution.

However, effects upon price dilution due to the exercise of rights to purchase shares by directors and
employees will be subject to the market price of the Company’s shares on the day that new shares from the exercise of

rights by directors and employees start trading in the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

42 Effects upon Existing Shareholders due to Reduced Ownership Ratio or Control Dilution in case
Warrants are Exercised by All Directors and Employees as Calculated from the Presently Paid-up Capital:

2,954,233,217 shares (at a par value of Baht 1 each)

i

Number of the total issued shares

it

Number of all shares from warrant exercise 16,000,000 shares (at a par value of Baht 1 each)

i

Total number of shares after exercise of right 2,970,233,217 shares (at a par value of Baht 1 each)

99.46 exercise of warrants

it

Ratio of the existing shareholders after

43 The Amount of Reserved Shares for Exercise of Warrants Allocated to Directors and employees at
the Rate not Exceeding 5 of the Total Issued Shares on the Date of Applying for Approval of the Office

fl

Number of the total issued shares 2,954,233,217 shares (at a par value of Baht 1 each)

fl

Number of reserved shares for the exercise 16,000,000 shares (at a par value of Baht 1 each)
of warrant shares to be allocated to

directors and employees

0.54 of the total issued shares -

i

Ratio of reserved shares to total issued shares

4.4 The List of All Directors (of the Company and its subsidiaries) to Be Allocated Warrants and Employees
who are eligible to be allocated Warrants at the Rate Exceeding 5 of Warrant To Be Issued and Offered.

W Percent of
Number of
Total
Name Allocated Warrants
Allocated
(Units)
Warrants
1. Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri
6,414,600 40.09
Director and Chairman of the Executive Committee
2. Mr. Arak Chonlatanon
Director and Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee - E- 1,247,700 7.80
Business
3. Mr. Somprasong Boonyachai
. ] 970,000 6.06
Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee — Human Resources

4/6




: Percent of
Number of
Total
Name Allocated Warrants
Allocated
(Units)
Warrants
4. Mr. Dumrong Kasemset (Ph.D.)
Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee — Portfolio 970,000 6.06
Management and Investor Relations
5. Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan
945,200 5.91
Director and Chief Financial Officer and President
6. Mr. Niwattumrong Boonsongpaisan
Director and Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee — 748,600 4.68
Corporate Public Relations
7. Mr. Tanadit Charoenchan
Director’s subsidiary and Vice President - Finance and 179,200 1.12
Accounting of Shin Satellite Public Co., Ltd.
8. Mr. Chatchai Sanerkam
Director’s subsidiary and Deputy Managing Director of SC 146,000 0.91
Matchbox Co. Ltd.
Note:  The amount of warrants to be issued and offered will be 16,000,000 units.
45 Ordinary shares issued under the warrants exercised shall have the same rights and status as ordinary

shares previously issued by the company in all respects.

5. Description and Conditions of Warrants

Warrants issued and offered to directors and employees of the Company shall be subject to rules and
conditions pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission Notification No. GorJor. 36/2544 Re: Offering of
Newly Issued Securities to Directors or Employees dated October 19, 2001

Warrant holders are liable to pay taxes and duties pursuant to the Revenue Code and relevant laws in
exercising their rights to purchase ordinary shares.

After the Last Exercise Period, remaining warrants shall be deemed invalid and cannot be further exercised in
any case.

6. Rights of Shareholders in Opposition of Offering for Sailes of Warrants to Directors, Employees
pursuant to Notification of the SEC No. GorJor. 36/2544 dated October 19, 2001

Pursuant to Clause 14 of the Notification of the SEC No. GorJor. 36/2544 dated October 19, 2001, the
issuance and offering of warrants to directors or employees shall to be approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting with
votes of not less than three quarters of all votes of shareholders attending the meeting and having the right to vote and
must not be opposed by shareholders with an aggregate number of shares exceeding 10 of all votes of shareholders
attending the meeting. :

In case of issuance and offering warrants to any director, or employee at the rate exceeding five of all warrants
offered pursuant to Clause 15 (2) of the Notification of the SEC above, the Shareholders’ Meeting will consider the offer
for sale with approval on an individual basis and the resolution must have not less than three quarters of all votes of
shareholders attending the meeting and having the right to vote and must not be opposed by shareholders with an
aggregate number of shares exceeding 5 of all votes of shareholders attending the meeting,
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Warrants

Number of
% of Total
Allocated
Name Position Allocated
Warrants
Warrants
(Units)
1. Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri Director and Chairman of the Executive
6,414,600 40.09
Committee

The number of times attending the meetings and not attending the meetings of the director during the past year

Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

No. of meetings 6 times Attending 6 times Not attending - times

Director and Vice Chairman of the Executive

2. Mr. Arak Chonlatanon
1,247,700 7.80

Committee - E-Business

The number of times attending the meetings and not attending the meetings of the director during the past year

Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

No. of meetings 5 times Attending 4 times Not attending 1 times

Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee —

3. Mr. Somprasong Boonyachai
970,000 6.06

Human Resources

The number of times attending the meetings and not attending the meetings of the director during the past year

Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited

No. of meetings 5 times Attending 5 times Not attending - times

Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee —

4. Dr. Dumrong Kasemset
970,000 6.06

Portfolio Management and Investor Relations

The number of times attending the meetings and not attending the meetings of the director during the past year

Shin Satellite Public Company Limited

No. of meetings 3 times Attending 5 times Not attending - times

Director and Chief Financial Officer and

5. Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan
945,200 5.91

President

The number of times attending the meetings and not attending the meetings of the director during the past year

Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

No. of meetings 5 times Attending 4 times Not attending | times

Opinion of the Board of Directors and the Remuneration Committee

Detail of Opinion of the Remuneration Committee for ESOP program as presented in the attachment.

The total amount of warrants to be issued and offered will be 16,000,000 units. Furthermore, the exercise price
will be determined as the weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares traded in the Stock Exchange of
Thailand during the period of 30 days prior to the day of Shareholders’” Meeting. Such persons menticned in Clause 7.1 -
7.5 will not receive cash benefits when calculated from the difference between the offer price (including the exercise

price) and the market price.
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"  CORPORATION
(Translation)

Details of the allocation of ordinary shares in order to reserve for exercise of warrants
under the ESOP Program, Gant 4

Skin Corporation Public Company Limited

L Capital increase

The Board of Directors has approved the allotment of 16,600,000 unissued ordinary shares,
at the par value of Baht 1 each, totaling Baht 16,600,000, to reserve for the exercise of
warrants, to be issued to the Company’s directors and employees under ESOP Grant I, II, Il
and IV.

2. Allotment of new shares

The Board of Directors has approved to allot 16,600,000 unissued ordinary shares, at the par
value of Baht 1 each, totaling Baht 16,600,000, to reserve for the exercise of warrants, to be
issued to the Company’s directors and employees under ESOP Grant [, I, Il and IV. Such
allotment will be proposed to the shareholders for consideration and approval, details as
follows:

2.1 The details of the allotment

Ratio

Allotted to Mumber Sale price per share Subscription and | Note
(shares) | (old:mew) {Baht) payment period
Existing Shareholders - - - - -
General public - - - - -
Other persons (specify) - - - - -
To reserve for the exercise
of the warrant issued to
directors and employees
(ESOP Grant [, 1! and III),
due to the adjustment as
stated in the Application
Form regarding the Issuance
and Offering of ESOP
Program, approximately
totaling 600,000 shares
divided by
Grant 1 200,000 17.704 - -
Grant 11 220,000 1.00540 13.597 - -
Grant Il 180,000 36.214 - -
To reserve for the exercise | 16,000,000 1:1 Exercise price is the - -
of the warrant issued to weighted average closing
directors and employees price of the Company’s
(ESOP Grant 1V) shares traded on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand
during the period of 30
days prior to the day of
Shareholders’ Meeting.

SHIN CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Company Registration No. Bor Mor Jor 58

414 Shinawatra Tower 1, Phahon Yothin Rd., Phaya Thai, Bangkok 10400 THAILAND.

Tel: (662) 299-5000 Fax : (662) 299 5196 www.shincorp.com




Provided that, the Executive Committee or the designated person(s) by the Board of Directors
are authorized to consider and prescribe other details relevant to the issuance of the warrants,
including seeking approval from the relevant authorities and performing any other necessary
actions related to the issuance of the warrants.

2.2 The Company’s plan in case there is a fraction of shares remaining
-None-
23 The remaining unissued shares

The remaining shares after this allocation will be 1,685,656,100 shares, at the par
value of Baht 1 each.

Schedule for Shareholders Meeting tc approve the capital increase/ allotment

The 2005 Annual General Meeting of Sharehoiders wiil be held March 31, 2005, at 14.00
a.m. at the Auditorium Room, 9" Floor, Shinnawatra Tower 3, Viphavadee Rangsit Road,
Jatujak, Bangkok. The Company will close the share register book from March 11, 2005 at
12.00 noon until the 2005 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders is adjourned.

Approval of the capital increase/ share allotment by relevant governmental agency and
conditions thereto (if any)

The Company will register the increase of paid-up capital at the Ministry of Commerce
when the warrants are exercised to ordinary shares and seek approvals from the Stock
Exchange of Thailand to list such newly issued ordinary shares as listed securities and
trading in the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Objectives of the capital increase and plans for utilizing proceeds received from the
capital increase

The Company will use the proceeds from exercise of warrants as its working capital..
Benefit to the Company from the capital increase/ share allotment:

The objective of the ESOP is to compensate and motivate the director and employees to
perform their duties in the best interests of the Company. This should in turn bring about
long-term benefit to the Company, as well as retain them with the Company.

Benefit to the shareholders from the capital increase/share allotment:

The objective of the ESOP is to compensate and motivate the director and employees to
perform their duties in the best interests of the Company. This should in turn being about
long-term benefit to the Company, as well as retain them with the Company, resulting in
improvement of the Company’s performance.

The newly issued shares from exercise of warrants will have the same rights as that of the
increased shares, previously issued, and be entitled to receive dividends from the date that
their name are listed in the share register book submitted to the Ministry of Commerce.




8. Other details necessary for shareholders to approve the capital increase/share
allotment:

Regarding the dividends payments of the company for the first half of 2004, and the second
half of 2004, the Company has approved dividends payments in excess of 50% of net profit
after income tax. This has affected the exercise price and exercise ratio of warrants to
purchase the Company’s ordinary shares, which were offered to directors and employees of
the Company (ESOP) Grant 1, 11, and IIL, as stated in the Application Form regarding the
[ssuance and Offering of ESOP Program. The ESOP warrant holders' rights shall not be
decreased.

The Company, therefore, will allot 600,000 additional shares to be reserved for the new
exercise ratio of ESOP Grant I, Il and III, which will be comprised of 200,000 shares for
Grant 1, 220,000 shares for Grant 2, and 180,000 shares for Grant 3,

9. Action plan after the Board of Directors of the Company passed a resolution approving
the capital increase or allotment of mew shares:

Date . Actions

February 18,2005 Board of Director’s Meeting for resolution to issue warrants to the directors
and employees of the Company as well as allotment of new shares for
supporting the exercise of the warrants to purchase the ordinary shares.

February 18,2005 Notify the Stock Exchange of Thailand of the resolution of the Board of
Directors Meeting.

March 11, 2005 Close the shareholder register book for suspension of share transfer for the
right to attend the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for the year 2005.

March 31, 2005 The holding of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholder for the year 2005.

Within April 2005 Submit the Application for issuance and offer of the warrants and the
registration statement and the draft of prospectus, to. the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Company hereby certifies that the information contained in this report form is true and complete
in all respects.

Signed Signed- authorized director

(Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri)
Director

Signed -Signed- authorized director
(Mr. Arak Cholthanon)
Director




gy  LUKPOKAINITOUON

(Translation)

Opinion of the SHIN Remuneration Committee

February 11, 2005

To : Board of Directors of Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

Whereas the Board of Directors Meeting of Shin Corporation Public Company Limited has passed
a resolution to appoint the Remuneration Committee for the ESOP Program, consists of
Mr. Bhanapot Damapong as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, Mr. Olarn Chaipravat
(Ph.D.) and Mr. Vithit Leenutapong a s members of the Remuneration Committee to approve the
names of directors, employees of the Company and subsidiaries who will be entitled to receive
warrants to exercise to company’'s ordinary shares exceeding 5 (five) percent of the program,
in order to comply with the notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission No. Gor. Jor. .
36/2544 regarding the offering of the newly issued securities to directors or employees.

The Remuneration Committee for ESOP Program has considered and approved to allocate
the warrants to exercise to company’s ordinary shares exceeding 5 (five) percent of the program
to each of the following directors and employees of Shin Corporation Public Company Limited and
subsidiaries respectively, totally 5 (five) persons:

Director/Employee No. of Warrants Allocated (Units) % of the Program
1. Mr. Boonkiee Plangsiri 6,414,600 40.09%
2. Mr. Arak Chonlatanon 1,247,700 7.80%
3. Mr. Somprasong Boonyachai 970,000 6.06%
4. Mr. Dumrong Kasemset (Ph.D.) 970,000 6.06%
5. Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan 945,200 5.91%

The Grounds, Necessity and the Benefits to the Company

The Remuneration Committee for ESOP Program has the opinion that the above five directors and
the employees have high knowledge, ability, accountability and excellent performance. Furthermore,
they are honest with loyalty to the Company and perform their duty for the highest benefits of the
Company all along. The warrant allocation for this ESOP program would motivate more efficient
performance of the directors and employees which would finally result in good operating results of
the Company. Details of the position, the start date joining the company and the benefits that these
directors and employees have made to the Company are herewith attached.

Please be informed accordingly.

Sincerely yours,

( Mr. Bhanapot Damapong )

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee for the ESOP Program
Shin Corporationt Public Company Limited

SHIN CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Company Registration No. Bor Mor Jor 58

414 Shinawatra Tower 1, Phahon Yothin Rd., Phaya Thai, Bangkok 10400 THAILAND.
Tel : (662) 299-5000 Fax : (662) 299 5196 www.shincorp.com
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The Information of Independent Director
Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

1. Name Mr. Olarn Chaipravat (Ph.D.)
Age 60
Title Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

and Chairman of the Audit Committee

Relationship with Management

-None-

Highest Education Ph.D. Economics, Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (M.L.T.), USA. !
Experience Present Vice Chairman of the Board of Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Shin Corporation Plec.
Council Member, Shinawatra University
1998 — 2001 Director, Siam Commercial Bank Plc.
1992 - 1998  President, Siam Commercial Bank Plc.
1990 — 1992  Director and Senior Executive Vice President,
Siam Commercial Bank Plc.
1984 — 1990  Senior Executive Vice President, Siam Commercial Bank Plc.
Tllegal record in past 10 years - None -
Number of Shares Held in Shin - None -

Corporation Public Company

2. Name Mr. Virach Aphimeteetamrong, (Ph.D.)
Age 61
Title Director and Member of the Audit Committee
Relationship with Management = -None-
____ Highest Education Ph.D. (Finance), University of Illinois, USA.
Experience Present Dean Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy,

Chulalongkorn University
Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Asset Plus Plc.
Chairman, Dr. Virach and Associates Public
Accounting Firm
2001- Present Director and Member of the Audit Committee, Shin Corporation Plc.

Illegal record in past 10 years

- None -

Number of Shares Held in Shin
Corporation Public Company

- None -




The Information of Independent Director
Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

3. Name Mr. Vithit Leenutaphong
Age 49
Title Director and Member of the Audit Committee

Relationship with Management

-None-

Highest Education

MBA, University of Southern California, USA.

Experience

2001 — Present

Director and Member of the Audit Committee,
Shin Corporation Plc.

Management Board, Airports of Thailand Plc.

2002 - 2004 Vice Chairman, Yontrakit Group
Executive Director, Thai Yarnyon Company Limited
2001 Management Board, Thai Airways International Plc.
1995 - 2000 Director and Member of the Audit Commiittee,
Advanced Info Serviced Ple.

1996 — 1997 Board of Director, Expressway and Rapid transit Authority of Thailand
Illegal record in past 10 years - None -
Number of Shares Held in Shin - None -

Corporation Public Company




Documents or Evidence Showing an Identity of the Shareholder or
‘a Representative of the Shareholder Entitled to Attend the Meeting

1. Natural person
1.1 Thai nationality

(a) identification card of the shareholder (personal I.D. or identification card of
government officer or identification card of state enterprise officer); or

(b) in case of proxy, identification card of the shareholder and identification
card or passport (in case of a foreigner) of the proxy.

1.2 Non-Thai nationality
(a) passport of the shareholder; or

(b) in case of proxy, passport of the shareholder and identification card or
passport (in case of a foreigner) of the proxy.

2. Juristic person

1.1 Juristic person registered in Thailand

(a) corporate affidavit, issued within 30 days by Commercial Registration
Department, Ministry of Commerce; and

(b) identification card or passport (in case of a foreigner) of the authorised
director(s) who sign(s) the proxy form including identification card or
passport (in case of a foreigner) of the proxy.

1.2 Juristic person registered outside of Thailand
(a) corporate affidavit; and

(b) identification card or passport (in case of a foreigner) of the authorised
director(s) who sign(s) the proxy form including identification card or
passport (in case of a foreigner) of the proxy.

A copy of the documents must be certified true copy. In case of any documents or
evidence produced or executed outside of Thailand, such documents or evidence should be
notarised by a notary public.

Registration for attending the meeting

A shareholder or a proxy may register and submit the required documents or evidence
for inspection at the meeting from 1.00 p.m. on 31 March 2005.




Procedures for attending of 2005 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

On 31 March 2005

Shareholders of

Shin Corporation Plc.

2

Attending in Person

Registered Desk attending in person
at 1.00 p.m.)

(commence

Registered Desk by proxy at 1.00 p.m.

v

Review the proxy

]
d
d

Showing the proxy and ID Card of
the Grantor and Proxy

Signing in Registered Document

The Chairman proposed
the agenda in order

v

If any shareholder would like to vote

against or abstain to vote for any agenda,

please raise your hand and give the
number of shareholding in the ballot.

v

Company’s officers collect the ballot only
for the shareholder who votes against or

abstain to vote/conclude the result

4

The Chairman announces the vote to
the meeting

TTCTTST

¥ Please return to the Company’s officers the ballot for every agenda when the meeting be completed.
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Financial Highlights

As of 31 December

OPERATING RESULTS - CONSOLIDATED
Revenues from sales and services

Share of net results from investments
Total Revenues

Gross Profit

Net income

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total shareholders’ equity

FINANCIAL RATIO - CONSOLIDATED

Net Profit Margin

Return on Equity

Return on Assets

Total Liabilities to Total Shareholders' Equity Ratio
Basic earning per share*

Book Value per share*

* calculation based on one Baht par value common share

No. of shares ( Million)
( at one Baht par value per share)

2004

10,831
8,815
20,570
3,065
8,700
66,364
24,522
41,841

42%
22%
14%
0.59
2.95
14.17

2,063.63

2003

10,379
7,970
20,437
2,623
9,597
60,159
22,455
37,704

47%
28%
17%
0.60
3.27
12.83

2,939.05

2002

9,044
5,124
14,876
2,249
5,281
51,249
20,191
31,508

36%
19%
10%
0.64
1.80
10.73

2,937.00

2067

8,642
1,372
12,392
2,582
2,820
41,356
17,398
23,958

23%
13%

7%
0.73
0.96
8.16

2,937.00

Baht Million

20CC

6,868
2,848
10,682
2,257
2,384
37,840
17,736
20,104

22%
14%

8%
0.88
0.83
6.85

2,937.00

Dividend Policy: The company and its subsidiaries’ dividend policy is to pay dividend no less than 40 percent of profit after tax, unless the company and its subsidiaries have other
financial needs and the payment materially affect the company and its subsidiaries' normal operations.
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Message from Chairman of the Board

Dear Shareholders:

The year 2004 brought the high point of the Shin Corporation’s history, for it contained a special milestone: the granting
of the Garuda emblem by His Majesty the King Bhumipol Adulyadej. This great honor will live long in our memories as the
pinnacle of our pride in our company but the honor of the Garuda will also keep us constantly aware of good corporate
governance and our prominent role in Thai society and responsibility to our beloved county.

We are pleased to announce an excellent 2004 performance as follows:

Shin Corporation and its subsidiaries were able to report total revenue of Baht 10.6 billion, an increase of Baht 252 million
or 2 percent from 2003. Normalized net profit totaled Baht 8.7 billion, increased from 2003 by Baht 653 million, or
equivalent to 8 percent, excluding income from reversal of provision for liabilities and charges. Total assets grew by 10
percent from Baht 60.2 billion in 2003 to Baht 686.4 billion in 2004. Total liabilities increased by 2 percent from Baht 22.5
billion in 2003 to Baht 24.5 billion in 2004.

A close scrutiny of the group’s performance indicates that the new investments in new service businesses - the budget
airline and consumer finance - have begun to show emerging signs of growth, the potential of which will further undergird
the company.

Thai AirAsia began operations in February 2004 and has regularly added routes until at the time of writing it is servicing
seven domestic destinations and five international airports. With passenger numbers continuing to grow steadily, by the
end of 2004 it had already flown approximately 1.2 million passengers. The startup of Thai AirAsia, Thailand’s first budget
airline, has provided a new and viable alternative for Thai travelers. Since it has given access to air travel for a completely
new group of Thai citizens, it is thus certain to stimulate greater usage of air transportation. In 2004, overall domestic

passengers grew approximately 40 percent from the previous year.

Capital OK officially opened its doors in August 2004. Services that it is providing include personal loans, sales finance
and credit cards. It is the first company in the history of the country that has been able to roll out three services within the
first year of operation. At the end of 2004, it had more than 100,000 customers and portfolio size ended the year at
approximately Baht 1.8 billion.

Over the past two decades, Shin Corporation’s businesses have undergone unremitting development, starting from the
initial investment in the only just opened telecommunication business, which has become our core business, to media
and advertising and, in the most recent expansions, a budget airline and consumer finance. All of these investments have
contributed to making SHIN the country’s largest service-oriented conglomerate. A challenge that the company has
readily accepted is to utilize the group’s synergy by leveraging its extensive customer database. Experienced personnel
from each individual business unit have been assigned to teams to study and develop new and innovative products and
services to meet changing customer needs stimulated by the rapid changes in lifestyles. We firmly believe this will

generate long-term competitiveness.

Another key ingredient in the strengthening of the company’s foundations and ensuring flexibility is the institution of a
cohesive corporate culture. In 2004, an in-depth survey and study of our corporate culture was conducted and illustrated
the fact that the company’s past success has been solidly grounded in ten fundamental building blocks or “FAST
MCVING” : Fast-moving, Forward-looking, Accountability, Service-minded, Teamwork, Meritocracy, Openness, Vision
focus, /nitiatives and improvement, Mon-bureaucracy, and Guard against irrationality.




From this starting point, the company advanced into the formation of a new corporate culture to ensure the future of SHIN

Group. This new corporate culture is cafled “Triple 1”.

individual talent

We recognize that the success of the organization is buiit on the recognition, encouragement, development,
empowerment, and reward of individual talent. We provide the opportunity for extraordinary people to achieve
extraordinary things.

ldea generation
We believe that a great idea is always a great idea whoever and wherever it comes from. We are open and honest in
expressing, receiving, and assessing ideas from and to all levels and areas of the organization. We judge ideas not

people.

Infinite change
We believe that change is the mechanism that allows our extraordinary people to implement their great ideas. We
welcome change as the opportunity to celebrate our talent and creativity in achieving our vision.

The Triple | will be implemented from management levels on down, to enable management to act as role models for
workers at all levels. We are confident that this new corporate culture will be the linchpin to sharing corporate vision,
leading to global recognition of Shin Corporation Public Company Limited as Thailand’s most successful company, with
broad-based businesses using the most advanced technology, strongly experienced management, and a highly capable
workforce that is intimately involved in corporate strategy.

B e

(Bhanapot Damapong (Boonkiee Plangsiri)
Chairman of the Board Chairman of the Group Executive Committee
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Directors and Management Team

Ar. Branapot Darazong

Age 56

Title Chairman of the Board of Directors

Shareholding™® 13.70%

Ielationship with Management None

Highest Education MA in Sociology, Texas Southern State University, Texas, USA

Governance Training -
2.g. BCP and DAP of 10D}
and Other Training
Work Experience Over Past 5 Years
1995 - Present Chairman of the 3oard of Directors, Shin Corporation PLC
.llegal Record in the past 10 yeears None

¥i~. Clarn Cheaiprava?, #r.30.

Age 538

Title Vice Chairman of the Board of Director and Chairman of
the Audit Committee

Shareholding” None

Selationship with Management None

ighest Education Pn.D. in Economics, Massachusetts Institute of
Technology (MIT), USA

Governance Training DAP Directors Accreditation Program Class 4/2003

e.g. DCP and DAP of IOD)
and Cther Training
Work Experience Qver Past 5 Years
2001 - Present Vice Chairman of the Board of director and Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Shin Corporation PLC
Council Member, Shinawatra University
1998 - 2001 Director, Siam Commercial Bank PLC
1992 - 1998 Presidant, Siam Commercial Bank PLC
lflegal Record in the past 10 years None

* Includes holdings by spouse and minor children as of December 31, 2004 .




Highest Education
Governance Training

and Other Training

M. Virach Aphimeteetamrong, Ph.D.

Age 61

Title Director and Member of the Audit Committee
Shareholding” None

Relationship with Management None

Ph.D. in Finance, University of lilinois, USA
DAP Directors Accreditation Program Class 2/2003

{e.g. DCP and DAP of IOD)

Work Experience Over Past 5 Years

Present Director and Member of the Audit Committee,

Shin Corporation PLC
Chairman, Dr. Virach and Associates Public Accounting Firm

1999 - 2003 Dean Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Chulalongkorn University
Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee, Asia Plus Securities PLC
Director, Supalai PLC
Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee, Metro Systems Corporation PLC
Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee, Bangkok Chain Hospital PLC

lllegal Record in the past 10 years None

ir ithit Leenutapong

Highest Education
Governance Training

and Other Training

2001 - Present

Age 49

Title Director and Member of the Audit Committee
Sharehelding™ None

Relationship with Management None

MBA, University of Southern California, USA
DCP Directors Certification Program Class 16/2002

{e.g. DCP and DAP of I0D)

Work Experience Over Past 5 Years

Director and Member of the Audit Committee, Shin Corporation PLC

2002 - 2004 Director, Airports of Thailand PLC
Vice Chairman, Yontrakit Group
Executive Director, Thai Yarnyon Co., Ltd.

2001 Executive Director, Thai Airways International PLC

1995 - 2000 Director and Member of the Audit Committee,
Advanced Info Service PLC

1996 - 1997 Director, Expressway and Rapid Transit Authority of
Thailand

lllegal Record in the past 10 years None

* Includes holdings by spouse and minor children as of December 31, 2004.
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“fir, Surasak Vajasit

Age 51

Title Director and [ndependent Director

Shareholding” None

Relationship with Management None

Highest Education Barrister-at-law, Lincoln’s Inn

Governance Training DAP Directors Accreditation Program Class 29/2004

2.g. BDCP and DAP of IOD)

and Other Training

Work Experience Over Past 5 Years

2004 - Present Director and independent Director, Shin Corporation PLC
2003 - 20C4 Member of the Executive Committee, Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
(Bangkok Lawyers) Judge the Buri Ram, Phetchabun and Bangkok
Province Course
lllegal Record in the past 10 years None

Wir. Beonkles Piangsir

Age 53

Title Director and Chairman of the Group Executive Committee
Shareholding” 0.045%

Relationship with Management None

-lighest Education MA in Computer Engineering, University of lllinois

(Urbana Champaign), USA
Governance Training -
(e.c. DCP and DAP of 10D}
and Other Training
Work Experience Over Past 5§ Years
2004 - Present Director, CS LoxInfo PLC
2001 - Present Chairman of the Board of Director, ITV PLC
2001 - 2002 Chairman of the Zxecutive Committee,ITV PLC
1899 - Present Chairman of the Group Executive Committee, Shin Corporation P.C
1997 - Present Directo: of Shin Corporation PLC, Advanced Info Service PLC,
and Shin Satellite PLC
1997 - 2000 Member of the Executive Committee of Shin Corporation PLC,
Advanced Info Service PLC, and Shin Satellite PLC
lllegal Record in the past 10 years None

* Includes holdings by spouse and minor children as of December 31, 2004 ,




M. Xiwattumrong Boonsongpaisan
Age
Title

Media and Advertising Business
Shareholding”

Relationship with Management
Highest Education

Governance Training {e.g. DCP and
DAP of IOD) and Other Training

Work Experience Over Past 5 Years

2002 - Present

2001 - 2002

2001 - Present

2000 - Present

1995 - Present
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56
Director, Group Vice Chairman of the Group Executive
Committee and Chairman of the Executive Committee-

0.007%

None

Master Degree (course work) in Computer Sciences,
Chulalongkorn University

Bachelor’s Degree in Education,

Srinakarintrawirot University

DCP Directors Certification Program Class 38/2003

Director and Chairman of the Executive Committee, ITV PLC

Director and Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee, [TV PLC

Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Shin Corporation PLC
Group Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee, Shin Corporation PLC
Chairman of the Executive Committee - Media and Advertising Business,

Shin Corporation PLC

lilegai Record in the past 10 years

Mr. Aralk Chonlatanon
Age
Title

Shareholding*

Relationship with Management

Highest Education

Governance Training (e.g. DCP and
DAP of 10D) and Other Training

Work Experience Over Past 5 Years
2001 - Present

None

54

Director, Member of the Executive Committee and Chairman
of the Executive Committee - E-Business & Other
0.013%

None

Electronic Engineering, Chulalongkorn University

Director, Shin Corporation PLC

2000 - Present
2000 - 2002

1998 - Present

Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan

Age
Title

Shareholding®

Highest Education

2004 - Present
2001 - Present
2000 - Present
1998 - Present

1998 - 2000

lilegal Record in the past 10 years

lllegal Record in the past 10 years

Relationship with Management

Governance Training (e.g. DCP and
DAP of 10D) and Other Training
Work Experience Over Past 5 Years

Chairman of the Executive Committee-E-Business & Other, Shin Corporation PLC
Member of the Executive Committee, Advanced Info Service PLC

Member of the Executive Committee, Shin Corporation PLC
None

56

Director, Member of the Executive Committee and
President

0.030%

None

MBA, Wichita State University, Wichita, Kansas, USA
DCP Directors Certification Program Class 33/2003

Director and Member of the Executive Committee, CS LoxInfo PLC
Director and Member of the Executive Committee, ITV PLC

President and Group Chief Finance Officer, Shin Corporation PLC
Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Shin Corporation PLC,
Advanced Info Service PLC, and Shin Satellite PLC

Chief Finance Officer, Shin Corporation PLC

None

" Includes holdings by spouse and minor children as of December 31, 2004.
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fir. Scprasong Bconyasial
Age

Titte

Shareholding”

Relationship with Management

Highest Education

Governance Training (e.g. DCP and
DA?R of I0D) and Other Training

Work Experience Over Past 5 Years

49

Group Vice Chairman of the Group Executive

Committee and Chairman of the Executive

Committee Wireless Communications Business

0.007%

None

Master of Engineering, Asian Institute of Technology (AIT)

2004 - Present Directcr and Member of the Executive Committee, TV PIL.C and CS Lox:nfo PLC

2000 - Present Group Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee, Shin Corporaticn PLC
Member of the Executive Committee, Shin Corporation PLC
1999 - Present Chairman of the Zxecutive Committee - Wireless Comrmunications,
Shin Corporation PLC
‘legal Record in the past 10 years None
iz Dumrong Kassmss?, PhD.
Age 50
Title Group Vice Chairman of the Group Executive

Shareholding®

Relationship with Management
Highest Education

of Technology, USA

Governance Training (e.g. DCP and

Committee and Chairman of the Executive,
Committee-Satellite and International Business
0.025%

None

Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering, Massachusetts Institute

DAP Directers Accreditation Program Class 2/2003

DAP of IOD) and Other Training
Work Experience Over Past 5 Years

2004 - Present Directer and Chairman of the Executive Committee, CS LoxInfo PLC
Member of the Executive Committee, ITV PLC

2000 - Present Group Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee, Shin Corporation PLC
Member of the =xecutive Committee, Advanced Info Service PLC

1999 - Present Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Shin Satellite PLC

1997 - Present Chairman of the Executive Committee - Satellite Communications and international
Business, Shin Corporation PLC

1994 - 2000 President, Shinawatra Satellite PLC

lllegal Record in the past 10 years None

e ) - T
L Arel Pena-acizhen

Age 39

Title Vice President-Finance & Accounting
Shareholding” 0.005%

Relationship with Management None

Highest Education MBA, Chulalongkorn University

Governance Training (e.g. DCP and -
DAP of IOD} and Other Training
Work Experience Over Past 5 Years
2004 - Present Vice President - Finance & Accounting, Shin corporation PLC
2003 - 2004 Comptrolter, Shin Corporation PLC
2000 - 2002 Assistant Vice President - Accounting , Shin Corporation PLC
1992 - 1999 Finance & Accounting Director, Shinawatra Directories Co., Ltd.
lllegal Record in the past 10 years None

* Includes holdings by spouse and minor children as of December 31, 2004 .




Audit Committee Report

To the Shareholders of Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

The Audit Committes ©f Shin Corporation Public Company Limited (the Company) consists of three independent
directors: Mr. Olarn Cralzravat, Pr.D. as the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Virach Aphimeteetamrong, Ph.D., and
Mr. Vithit _eenuteporg. All the members are independent and have all the qualifications as required by the Stock

xchange of Thailanc's regulations. Mr. Olarn Chaipravat, Ph.D. and Mr. Vithit Leenutapong have extensive knowledge
and experience in the fie.c of Finance and Investment while Mr. Virach Aphimeteetamrong is an expert in Accounting and
Auditing. The Audit Committee is authorized to perform its duties, and accountable to the Board of Directors as set forth
in the Audii Committes Charter. (Details can be found in the Corporate Governance section of this annual report and on

the Company’s web ste 2t www.shincorp.com).

In 2004, the Auci: Comittee independently performed its duties according to the Audit Committee Charter. The Audit
Committee conductec six (6) meetings with the management, the Company's external auditors, and the Head of Internal
Audit. The significant dulles can e summarized as follows:

Financial Reporting

The Committee had corncucied a review with the management and the Company’s external auditors on the Company’s
quarterly and yearly finarcial statements and consoclidated financial statements for the year 2004. The Management has
the primary resporsitlity for the preparation of financial statements and the reporting process. The external auditors are
responsible for exoressing an opinion on the Company’s audited financial statements. Based on the review, the Audit
Commitiee believes 1-a: he Company’s financial reporis are presented fairly, in all material respects, and adequately

disclosed in confermity with generally accepted accounting principles.
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Connected and Related Party Transactions

The Audit Commiitee had ccnsidered and reviewed conrected transactions between the Company and iis subsidiaries
as required by the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Based or the revisw, ine Audit Committee recommencded to tie Board of
Directors that those ‘ransac:icns were executed pursuat to ncrmal business practice anc in the beast interests cf in2

company.

The Audit Commitiee had also reviewed the cisclosure of connected and related party transactions among the Company

and its group, and fcund thet sucn information was adequately and correctly disclosed.

Appointment of the External Auditors

The Audit Comrrittee had salected auditors from PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited as the Company’s external
auditors ard fixed thz audit “ee for the year 2004 for preposat at the Board of Directors’ Meeting and the Shareho!ders’
Meeting. The Committee hac reviewed the external zuditors’ independence and set the terms of services for each auditor
pursuant to the guidelines o° the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand; during the past year the
external auditors nave not provided any non-audit consult'ng services to the Company ihat may have impaired the external

auditor’'s independence to exnress his opinion over the Company’s financial statements.

The Audit Comm tiee had conducted a meeting with the exterral auditors without the presence of the management to

consider the risk-based exterral audit plan and financia: contre! that the external auditors had recommended.

Internal Control, Risk Management, and Internal Auditing

The Audit Committee had reviewed and evaluated the Company’s internai control system, which consisted of
management controi, financial control, ana compiiance control, sased on guidelines from the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. In adcition, the Audit Committee had reviswed the risk management policy, progress, and staius
of the risk management plar. as proposed by the Risk Menagemant Committee of the company. Based on the review, ths
Company’s systems of internzl control and risk management are adeguate and functioning effectively.




The Aucit Commitize hed conducted meetings with the Head of Internal Audit in separate sessions to review
indepencence, scorts o works and risk-based annual audit plans. In addition, the Audit Committee had reviewed the
interna! zudit resulte 273 the progress of the audit performed on a quaiterly basis. Based on the review, the system of
interna: euditing of -e Jompany is adequate and effective.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Aucit Commitiee conducte? a review to ensure that the Company is in compliance with the related laws and
regulaticns by essigrirs tneg internal audit to carry out the compliance audit, and assigning the Compliance and Legal
Depariments to summazrize the compliance status report and update the Audit Committee on any major changes of
related regulaticns. Zassc on the review, the Audit Commiitee believes that the Company had performed in accordance
with related laws anc regulations without material flaw.

Audit Committee Seff-Assessment

The Augit Committez ~ad reviewed and evaluated its periormance (self-assessment) by benchmarking with the Audit
Committee Charter enc Sood Prectices. The evaluation resulis are satisfactory and the Audit Committee had submitted
a prcooszi to ine Bearc of Directors for approval of the amendment to the Audit Committee Charter in order to be more

in line with good auci: committes practices.

() LC s,

Mr. Olarn Chaipravat, Ph.D.

Chairmar of the Auc* Lommittes

Shin Corzoraticr Puciz Scmpary Limited
February 18, 2CC2
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Investment Structure of
Shin Corporaticn Public Company Limited

i

i . Advanced Info Service PLC
- Registered Capital 5,000 Mil. Baht
| Paid-up Capital 2,945.44 Mil. Baht

- ,.J o
5 (irem A o6 6., L ‘
Registered ard F@C 45 Capal j
| 249 MY, Baht 99.88% |
| Aavaneed Betanciwer Sommuricaien Gax, ;
— Regisiered arg Pals -up Caplital |
9@7 7.52 M. Bait 51.00% |
‘ 9 M1, Bam @po |
: —
{ Phere Ce., Lie.
__; Regletered and Paie -uz Caphal
94,625 (Will, Balat RB.5%
B - L ‘
(: Carter G@., Lidk
R@g@ eied] au@ @aﬁc ue Gaplal !
| 272 M. Bakht $9.08% |
{ - !
[ Line Thah Ge,, Lidl. :
— Registered and Paie up Capital i
" 9B M. Beik 56.00%

—

| Shin Satejlite
[ Registered Capital 5,568.47 Mil. Baht
| Paid-up Capital 4,385.97 Mil. Baht

51.40%

2)

e99% |
.}

Loxlnvﬁo PLC

' Registered Capital 630.98 Mil. Baht
Paid-up Capita! 625.00 Mi. Baht

g plinvestmentsite! l@@]o
L Reg sfz@r@c ‘Ja[:m 18 B,
Paid-up Capral 14.86 Wil SGD

17 Mil. USD

96.84 Mil. USD

Loxley Information Service Co., Lid.
Registered and Paid-up Capital
260.10 Mil. Baht 94.19%
Teleinfo Media Co., Lid.
Registered and Paid-up Capital
694.13 Mil. Baht 63.25%
C.8. Loxinfo Solution Co., Lid.
Registered and Paid-up Capital
5 Mil. Baht 44.89%
gl
8ED ¢ .
100%
Cambodia Shinawatra Co., Lid.
Registered and Paid-up Capital
100%
Lao Telecommunication Co., Lid.
Registered and Paid-up Capital
49.00%

FD@?&@@ LoEk
‘ “@Qsﬁ@@@@ga,ﬂ‘@‘@w]

Registered and Paid-up Capital Registereg and Paid-up Capital

L[?@d up Ceziial 0.02 M, L%
[ f [
IPSTAR Australia Pty Ltd. IPSTAR New Zealand Ltd. IPSTAR Do Brasil

Registered Capital 0.10 Mil. USD
Paid-up Capital 0.01 Mil. USD 100%

0.1 Mil. AUD 100% 0.5 Mil. NZD 100%

Ser usleus Gon, L, =

Registersd Capital 0:05 Mil. UST:

SPAGECODE LLG. F@J
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(As of January 31, 2005)

- Registered Capital 7,800 4. Baht

* Paid-up Capital 6,023,714

(R

Artware Media Co., Ltd.
Registered and Paid-up Capital

20 Mil. Baht 99.99%
ScIMatchboxdCoMILG
M. :

—

i
Thel Arsie Ge., Ligk INFADplicationslandiSenvicesiC oMittd ’
Regislered ene Pae-up — &g Paie-up Capial |
400 Wi, Bl E0.00% 9@ bvif). Bl CO.O9% }
- Shinawatra Information
O Gax, m . L Technology Co., Ltd.
4 X Registered and Paid-up Capital
1,000 (MK, 100 Mil. Baht 99.99%
Payment Solution Co,, Ltd, IABV enttire]CoMittds
Registered Capital 200 Mil. Baht — anel (Capital
Paid-up Capital 50 Mil. Baht  99.99% (VL .01 %

Professional Collection Co., Ltd.
Registered Capital 20 Mil. Baht

Paid-up Capital 10 Mil. Baht 99.99%

Shineedotcom Co., Ltd.
Registered and Paid-up Capital
190 Mil. Baht 70.00%

ArcCyber Co., Lid.
Registered and Paid-up Capital
315 Mil. Baht 47.50%

Merry intermefone] vesment Com. 1)
Regleterse Ceplial 100,000 USD
Pele-up Cepltel 1 USD

J

1) Holding Company
2) Listed Company on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand
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The Year’s Milestones

In 2004, SHIN entered into joint ventures with partners in “wo new business areas: a budget eirline engaging ir business

under the name “Thai AirAsia” and consumer finance.

Thai AirAsia Co., Lid. is a jeint venture between SHIN and AirAsia Sdn 3hd from Malaysia. The compary started
operations in February 2004. With six aircraft servicing twelve routes and eleven destinations, the ccmpany marked a
high of approximately 1.2 mill:or. passengers at end-2004, after oniy eleven months of aperation. At the end of 2004, Thai
AirAsia serves seven domestic destinations: Chiang Mai, Chiang Rai, Udon Thani, Khon Kaen, Ubon Ratchathani, Phuket,
and Hadyai, and five internaticnal routes: Singapore (from Bangkok and from Phuket), Penang, Macau, and Kota Kinatalu.

Capital OK Co., Lid. is a joint venture between SHIN and DBS Banrx Singapore, providing consumer finance service. The
company opened its doors in August 2004 offering its first product, “Personal Loans”, followed by
“Sales Finarce”. The most recent service, “Creait Cerds” was intrccuced in January 2005. At present, the company has

achieved a custormer base of over 100,000 and a portfolio size ¢f 3aht 1.8 tillion.

SHIN Group’s core business continues to grow and develope. In its telecommunication business, flagship AIS achieved
a subscriber base of cver 15 miliion in 2004, adding - .2 miilion subscribers during the year, made possible by a variely of
new value-added services such as “calling meloay”, and consumear=pleasing promotional packages such as “Sewascee”,
and “Freedom Choices” tha® offer consumers a smorgasbord of prices and services.The growth is atirlbuted to the

company’s emphasis on customer care and exceptional service through its exiensive network.

The satellite and internationz! businesses are working up intc tne next step with the soon to launch of the IPSTAR-1
satellite, which is expected tc launch in 2005. All testing has prograssed smoothly with the testing of antennas and solar
arrays, mechanicel allignmen: and quality (cailed the Compact Antenna Range Test : CART) completed in 2004; SAT T EL
has readied its customers, completing the setup of first-generation gateways in several countries such as Thailand,
Myanmar, Taiwan, Australia, .ndia, China, and Laos PDR. Using conventicnal satellites, SATTEL is already providing
service in several countries such as Thailand, Laos PDE, China, Myanmar and Austrzlia. The company is now ir: the
process of installing the seccnd-ganeration gateways in certain countries such as Thailand, india, Australia, and New

Zealand.

On the Internet business side, CS Loxinfo PLC (CSL}, an Internet service provider, gained listing on the Stock Zxchange
of Thailand on April 8, 2004. 't acquired TMC, a yeliow pages printing and distributing comoany, taking 83.25 percent
ownership by purcnasing 38.25 vercent from SHIN, and 25 percent frem SingTel Interactive Pte _td. With the purchase of
TMC, CSL plans io build synergy by combining their related businesses of creating value-added services from the
combinatior: of two strong customer databases.




In the media anc adverising businesses, ITV underwent a major change in its programming to become more competitive
for television acveriising budgets. The restructuring added wider variety of entertainment to the existing core
programming ¢’ news and documentaries. The change has met with viewer acclaim, increasing 1TV's popularity
throughcut the couniry. The presentiation style of the morning news was modified, with a more extended news program
curing midday, £.us “he additior: cf Hot Sports during ITV Hot News. It remains strongly grounded in its concept of social
coriribution by setting .2 & help center for victims affected by the tsunami and a receiving center for those who wish to
coneie either gocods or money for the disaster relief fund. ITV was on the scene and broadcasting constantly to keep the
couniry informec. Thasz changes resulted in a rise in its share of advertising spending from 14 percent to 16 percent and
aucience share ncrsasad from 8 percent to 12 percent. The TV ratings, especially during prime time (18.00-22.30),
jumped from the averagz of .38 in 2003 to 2.82 in 2004. More importantly, ITV’s ranking in the industry shifted from fifth
place to third.
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Contributions to Society

“SHIN CORPORATION?”

A socially responsible organization providing the best for Thai society and its citizens.

o -In 2004, His Majesty the King graciously bestowed upon Shin Corporation Public Company Limited
the honor of the Garuda emblem, the highest honor 1o be bestowed oh businesses. The company feels
extremely honored by this, as this emblem represents business integrity, particularly in transactions
with the royal household. It is especially meaningful as a symbol of loyalty and love for His Majesty the

King that is central to the Thai people wherever they may be found.

For the past 21 years, Shin Corporation’s business operations have placed great emphasis on the creation of benefit tc
society, furthering this with sccial activities under the concept “Strong Thai, Strong Nation.” We believe that the key to a
strong Thai citizenry is basec on three facets: educativon, youth, and family. {f people are well-educated, able to make a
satisfactory living, anc have a loving and warm family environment, society will be strong and the country will be able to

sustain economic and social orogress.

The company has undertaken several projects in conjunctior. with this concept, including “Camp-Sanook-Kid-Kub-Shincorp”,
a program that ercourages voung people to think “out of the bex”, and let their imaginations explore in creative and
productive ways. Cther projects include educasional programs and scholarships for the poor and the disadvantaged pecple,
a program called “Sarn-Rak, Kon-Keng-Hua-Jai-Krang” that encourages loving family relationshios. it also has an ongoing

projects which involved with rescuing victims from verious crisis.

“Camp-Sanook-Kid-Kub-Shircorp” is an ongoing social project io encourage youth to think both systematically and
creatively and to use irair imaginations by way of scientific thinking prccesses and workshops. The program also encourages
the participants to make use of their knowledge for persona’ as well for the community and national develcpment. Organized
in 2001, the project has involvad over 2,000 secondary schoo! stugents in grades 10 and 11 from all 78 provinces. Towards
realization of the goal of educational equality, the compary organized “Camp-Sanook-Kid-Kub-Shincorp” at the regional
levels to open the door to opportunity for youth in remote ereas thrcughoui the country. This project now covers not just in
Bangkok, but also in the northzrr, northeastern, and southern provirces as well. Experts in various walks of life are invited to
talk and share their ideas with he young people in each region, fostering creative learning processes in a happy environment,
preparing participants o take heir places as responsible acults in tha Thai society.

The success of these activities can be measured by the number of interested young people who have submitted their
projects arising out of their own creativity and knowiedge to the “Shincamp Project” contest. Over the past four years,
many winners of the contest have applied the winning ideas to real life to benefit their neighborhoods.




The company organ'ze< a seminar, “Towards a Knowledge-Based Society, Experience Builds Knowledge,” inviting to
those who are irteresied to attend. This seminar focused on sharing experiences, new knowledge in management,
marketing, finance, risk management, and human resource management, and it was hosted by experts in the respective
areas from both insice and outside of SHIN Group. The seminar highlighted the building of a knowledge-based society

beneficial to the government and private sectors, individuals, entrepreneurs, students, and all citizens.

The company cooperated with the Phahonyothin community to organize a special event to pay homage to Their Majesties
the King and the Quzer. In collaboration with over 1,000 people from the community and the private and government
agencies, the event inciuded blooc donations, street cleaning, improvement of traffic areas and public places, decorative
lights, anc alms ¢ivirg.

The tsunami that hit “he six southern provinces brought dramatic losses and casualties among Thais and foreigners. Shin
Corporation immediziely marshaled all of its resources to answer the urgent needs, coordinating with the government and
the private secter in various activities, including building homes for the victims. Camp-Sanook-Kid-Kub-Shincorp traveled
to the south to he'p crgenize recreational activities for the affected young people, victims, and rescue teams. Advanced Info
Service PLC donatec Bzht 120 million plus bags of supplies. Shin Satellite PLC set up a broadband Internet service to
provide satellite lon¢-cistance phone service for Thai and foreign victims. Thai AirAsia Co., Ltd. provided free courier
services for victims ancd donated goods. The television station, ITV, set up a coordination center for donations of funds,

clothing, and othar supglies through the program, “Ruam-Mue-Ruam-Jai.”

The company is consiarly aware of its role as being part of the Thai society, and feels strongly that it is vital to help society
to the fullest exient dcssible. A special focus of SHIN Group is the role played by education. We strongly believe that
well-educated younc people living in a warm family environment will be able to play a pivotal role in developing the country

and ensuying sustairakbia growth in the future. This core belief is reflected in our slogan, “Strong Thai, Strong Nation”.
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General Information of the Company,
Subsidiaries, and Associated Companies

Shin Corporation PLC Registration No. Bor Mor Jor 58
Head Office 414 Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai
Phayathai, Bangkok
Tel : (662) 299-5000 Fax : (662} 271-1058
Home Page www.shincorp.com
Nature of Business Telecom and media investment and asset
management company
5,000,000,000
2,953,632,089
1
2,953,632,089

Registered Capital (Shares
Paid Up Capital (Shares
"~ Par Value (Baht

)
)
)
Paid Up Capital (Baht)

Advanced Info Service PLC Registration No. Bor Mor Jor 59
Head Office 414 Phaholyothin Road
Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok
Tel : (662) 299-5000 Fax : (662) 299-5719
Branch Office 1291/1 Phaholyothin Road
Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok
Tel : (662) 299-6000 Fax : (662) 299-6005
Home Page www.ais.co.th
Nature of Business Mobile phone service provider on 800 MHz frequency
Registered Capital (Shares) 5,000,000,000
Paid Up Capital (Shares) 2,945,440,821
Par Value (Baht) 1
Paid Up Capital (Baht) 2,945,440,821
Percent of Investment (%) 42.90

As of January 31, 2005




Shin Satellite PLC

TV PLC

As of January 31, 2005

Registration No.
Head Office

Branch Office

Home Page

Nature of Business
Registered Capital (Shares)
Paid Up Capital (Shares)
Par Value (Baht)

Paid Up Capital (Baht)
Percent of Investment (%)

Registration No.
Head Office

Home Page

Nature of Business
Registered Capital (Shares)
Paid Up Capital (Shares)
Par Value (Baht)

Paid Up Capital (Baht)
Percent of Investment (%)

Bor Mor Jor 163

414 Phaholyothin Road

Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok

Tel : (662) 299-5000 Fax : (662) 299-5224
41/103 Rattanathibet Road

Muang, Nonthaburi

Tel : (662) 591-0736 Fax : (662) 591-0705
www.thaicom.net

Service provider of telecommunications via satellite
1,113,694,400

877,193,600

5

4,385,968,000

51.40

Bor Mor Jor 647

1010, 13th Floor, Shinawatra Tower 3
Viphawadee-Rangsit Road '
Chatuchak, Chatuchak, Bangkok

Tel : (662) 791-1000 Fax : (662) 791-1010
www.itv.co.th

Operator of ITV television station
1,560,000,000

1,204,742,700

5

6,023,713,500

53.01
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AD Venture Co., Ltd.

SC Matchbox Co., Ltd.

IT Application and Service Co., Ltc.

As of January 31, 2005

Head Office

Nature of Business

Registered Capital (Shares)
Paid Up Capital (Shares)
Par Value (Baht)

Paid Up Capital (Baht)

Percent of Investment (%)

Head Office

Home Page

Nature of Business
Registered Capital (Shares)
Paid Up Capital (Shares)
Par Value (Baht)

Paid Up Capital (Baht)

)

Percent of Investment (%

Head Office

Nature of Business
Registered Capital (Shares)
Paid Up Capital (Shares)
Par Value (Baht)

Paid Up Capital (Baht)
Percent of Investment (%)

408/65,16th Floor, Phaholyothin Place,
Phaholyothin Road

Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok

Tel : (662) 619-1123 Fax : (662) 619-0311
Provider of Internet solutions, e-commerce, content,
and other Internet-related services
55,000,000

55,000,000

10

550,000,000

90.91

414 Phaholyothin Road

Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok

Tel : (662) 289-5000 Fax : (662) 299-5624
www.scmatchbox.com

Full-service advertising agency

900,000

900,000

10

9,000,000

99.96

388, 3rd Floor, SP Tower, Phaholyothin Road
Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok

Tel : (662) 273-0760 Fax: (662) 273-0191
Provider of computer software and applications
1,000,000

1,000,000

10

10,000,000

99.99




Thai AlrAsia Co., Lic.

Capital OK Co., Ltd.

Merry Internationai :nvestmeni Corp.

As of January 31, 2005

Head Office

Home Page

Nature of Business
Registered Capital (Shares)
Paid Up Capital (Shares)
Par Value (Baht)

Paid Up Capital (Baht)
Percent of Investment (%)

Head Office

Nature of Business
Registered Capital (Shares)
Paid Up Capital (Shares)
Par Value (Baht)

Paid Up Capital (Baht)

)

Percent of Investment (%

Head Office

Contact Address

Nature of Business
Registered Capital (Shares)
Paid Up Capital (Shares)
Par Value (USD)

Paid Up Capital (USD)

)

Percent of Investment (%

3300/98-99, 18th Floor, B Tower
Elephant Building, Phaholyothin Road
Ladyao, Chatuchak, Bangkok

Tel : (662) 515-9999 Fax : (662) 791-4546
www.airasia.com

To carry on budget airline business
40,000,000

40,000,000

10

400,000,000

50.00

1010 Shiawatra fower 3, Phaholyothin Road
Chatuchak, Chatuchak, Bangkok

Tel : (662) 713-3999 Fax : (662) 793-3970
To carry on consumer finance business
10,000,000

10,000,000

100

1,000,000,000

60.00

4th Floor, Li Wan Po House, 12 Remy Ollier Street,

Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius

414 Phaholyothin Road

Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok

Tel : (662) 299-5000 Fax : (662) 299-5224
Holding company

100,000

1

1

1

100.00
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Reference Persons

The Securities Registrar

Auditor

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building

4th ,6th ,7th Floor, Rachadapisek Road,
Klongtoey, Bangkok

Tel : (662) 229-2800

Fax : (662) 359-1262-3

Home Page : www.tsd.co.th

Mr. Prasan Chuapanich

Certified Public Accountant Registration Number 3051
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS |_td.

15th Floor, Bangkok City Tower,

179/74-80 South Sathorn Road

Yannawa, Bangkok, 10120

Tel : (662) 286-8999, (662) 344-1000

Fax : (662) 286-5050




Major Sharehoclders

Name

. Shinawatra Family and Damapong Family ~

. UBS AG, Singapore Branch+PB Securities Client Custody

. UBS AG, Singapore Branch

. American International Assurance Company Limited - DI - Life
. HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd.

. Thai NVDR Co., Ltd.

. Singapore Telecom International Pte Ltd.

. UBS AG, Singapore Branch A/C A

9. Government Pension Fund

W N OO W N

10. Social Security Office

11. State Street Bank and Trust Company
12. Chase Nominees Limited 42

Total

No. of Shares
1,158,540,120
253,239,470
100,094,000
68,453,500
58,798,200
49,727,216
44,693,100
36,642,130
32,646,500
28,321,600
28,072,135
27,956,820
1,887,184,791

Percent of Invesment
39.28
8.58
3.39
2.32
1.99
1.69
1.52
1.24
1.11
0.96
0.95
0.95
63.88

Source : Major Shareholders’ report as of August 30, 2004 prepared by Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

* Comprises

Name

1. Ms. Pintongta Shinawatra
2. Mr. Bhanapot Damapong

3. Mr. Phantongtae Shinawatra
4. Ms. Yingluck Shinawatra

5. Mrs. Busaba Damapong

Total

Shares
440,000,000
404,430,300
293,950,220

20,000,000
159,600
1,158,540,120

Percent of Investment
14.92

13.71

9.96

0.68

0.01

39.28
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Nature of Business

Wireless Communications Business

Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited (AIS) and its subsidiaries’ core business involves the operation of a

mobile phone network on two bands plus the distribution of mobile handsets and accessories, as described below :

o AIS operzates or the 900 MHz frequency under a 20-year-Build-Transfer-Operate (BTO) concession granted by the
Telephone Organization of Thailand (TOT) in 1990. In 19898, the concession was exiended to a period of 25 years
ending 2C15.

o Subsidiary Digital Phone Co.,Ltd. (DPC) provides service on the 1800 MHz frequency under a t8-year BTO
concession granted by the Communications Authority of Thailand (CAT) in 1990. The concession expires in 2013.

The BTO concession agreements require AlS anc DPC to build up a cellular network, transfer the assets to the
respective concession provider, and then operate the system, with each responsible for sharing revenues with its
concession proviger. ~he contract sets out revenue sharing as a percentage of total annual revenue or a stated minimum,
whichever is higher. At this point, AlS is required to pay 25% of its revenue from its postpaid service anc 20% of revenue
gained from its prepaid servica to TOT and the governmer: (in the form of excise tax). DPC also pays 20% of its revenue

to CAT and the government (in the form of excise tax).

Products and Services

As a mobile communications service provider, AlS has a broad service portiolio in 2004 encompassing four services:
© Postpaid subscripticn

© Prepaid subscription

© Wireless/Non-voice communications

.0 Enterprise business

Within each service category, a variety of services have been packaged in different combinations in a bid to serve the

differing needs and requirements of customers with their unique fifestyles.

Postpaid Subscription Service

Postpaid service is a contractiual cellular phone subscription service for which customers are required to register. On a
monthly basis, they are billed for the monthly service charce plus airtime and other wireless/non-voice usage. There is an
extensive network of paymer: channels throughout the country, including direct payment via bank Internet sites, ATMs,
AlS branches, Telewiz (AlS’ sole distribution channel), and other modern trade centers. Postpaid services are provided
under two brand names, “GSM Advance Evolution” and “GSM 1830".

Prepaid Subscription Service

Prepaid services are offerec as “One-2-Calll” The selling point for “One-2-Calll” is “Freedom,” appealing to user
segments that enjoy the freedom of pay-as-you-go telephone usage, particularly to the young age group and those
whose usage is on the low side. With “One-2-Calll”, user does not need ioc register for the service, and there is no
monthly service fes. Users can refill their prepaid card conveniently at many store locations. In 2004, “Sawasdee”, a new
prepaid package was launched under “One-2-Call!”, and was an immediate hit. It was positioned to tap into the minimal
use segment with a new low monthly charge of Baht 150, which is half the low end of the “Freedom Freesiyle” program
that ranged from Baht 300-6C0. “Sawasdee” has been especially popular in the suburbs with those who require basic
voice communication, and also prefer to have a mobile phone just for security reason.




Wireless/Non-voice Communications Service

AIS’ wireiess/nor-voics communications services are provided under the brand name, “mobileLIFE". In 2004, the service
platfcrm for these servicas was further enhanced. The “mobilelLIFE” WAP portal, initiated in 2003, was re-evaluated and
repcsitiored as z scri cf virtual shopping plaza called “mobileLIFE Plaza”. The “mobileLIFE Plaza” functions as a
ceniralized, sing.e-locgZon access to various non-voice/wireless services and contents, meaning that customers with
approgrigte handsets ¢ devices are only one click away from a wide variety of services and content. The “mobileIFE
Plaza" is dividec inic sx areas: “funLIFE", “LIFEstyle”, “sporiLIFE”, “bizLIFE", “LIFEinfo”, and “LIFEconnect”. The
categories are represaeniad by "mGANG,” consisting of six cartoon characters : X, Molly, Ken, Kris, Doc, and Booboo,
where one memkbar ‘cr each category symbolize the specific services.

Enterprise Business Service

During 2004, AlS’ antzrzrisa business services were provided under the brand name, “AlS Smart Solution”, which aimed
specifically at the coracrate and small and medium-sized enterprise (SME) segments. “AlS Smart Solution” integrates a
range of services tailore te each individual business operation. Because enterprise needs for wireless communications
vary across the indusiry, A'S is commitied to deveioping the most appropriate blend of services that not only increase
business aroductivity, tul also promote cost efficiency.

Industry Outlook and Competition

The “Creztive Growt1” >hase centinued for the majority of 2004. Working up different packages to attract different
behavioral and !‘eslyle segmenis. Thai mobile phone operators competed to offer the most creative, innovative
packages to atiract sucscribers to their networks. The campaigns were instead geared toward making mobile phone

subscription more aforcable or more attractive to the new, untapped, low-usage segments with low or variable monthly

income and their usage oatiern. Considering a positive development in the industry as a whole, this type of packaging
allowed operatcrs to excanc subscriber bases without eroding margins. However, towards the end of the year, a certain
leve! of price competicn began to rise. Hoping to entice subscribers to their networks, some operators competed via
lowerirg call chzrges ¢ a per-minute basis. Despite the intensity of the price competition, it was not severe when
compared to 2002 wien operators were extremely aggressive in pricing strategies and engaged in substantial airtime
and handset subsidies.

The industry saw subscriber growth of an estimated 20 percent in 2004, which is an expansion of subscribers by 4.4
million to end the year with 26.5 million subscribers that is equivalent to a market penetration rate of 41 percent. The two
major cperators. AlIS z~d Total Access Communications (TAC), continued to dominate the market with their active
subscriber bases ioteling 87 percent of all subscribers.

On the regulatory fror?, cne majcr development leading to industry liberalization took place with the establishment of the
Nationa: Telecormuriczions Commission (NTC) in August. This seven member independent body was set up to regulate
the Thai telecornuniceions indusiry as a whole. The NTC’s immediate and important task is to draft regulations that will
pave the way for indust, iseralizetion by 2008, chief among which are an interconnection regime and new licensing rules.

The convention ‘cr c2li charges in Thailand at the end of 2004 remained “sender-keeps-alil”’, which simply stated that the
operator of the networ< wrere the call originated keeps all revenue and does not required to pay any interconnection
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charge to the opergtor of “he network where the call terminzied. A series of active ciscussions and nagotictions
regarding en intercornectior regime, chairec by the NTC, have Leen conducted among operators and stakenolders and

an agreement or. arc issue of nterconnection rules can be expscted in 2005.

Anotner issue thzt is pending and needs to be resoived i3 the corcession conversion. Concession contracts need to e
converted in orcer to free "CT Corporation P_C {TOT) and CAT Telecom PLC (CAT) from the contlicting status cof
regulator-operator. 3oth TOT and CAT have been privatized anc were registered as public companies in 2002 and 2003
respectively. Now that the N7C has been established, TCT and CAT shouic be regaided as pure cperators. However, at
the end of 2004, =2 cortion ¢’ ravenues from privaie opeators (t~e original concessionaires) was still being sharec wit?
TOT and CAT as stizulated by “he concession contracts. To creete a truly level playing field, these concession contracts
must be converied, rot only o oe fair for othar operators, but alsc ic provids & clearer and more accurate assessment of

prospects “or TC7’s and CA’s listings on the stock exchange.

2005 appears to nc.c the premise of being a year with many chergas in the regulatory picture because tne industry now
has a body, the NTC, whose sole duty s to regulate the "hal telscommunications industry. This should mzke it possible
for Thailand to mae! ‘ts com nitment with the W7 O to liberalize tha telecommunications incustry by 2008. In view o this,

we feel the full lizarzlization of the telecom industry that wil: crez’e e leve! olaying fieic is on the near horizor.

Satellite and International Businesses
Shin Satellite Puziic Compary _imited (SATTZ_) nas operations in four arees of businesses - satellite transponder leasing

and relatec services, internel-releted-services, telenhons-relatec services, and yellow page directories.

Products and Services

Satellite Transponder Leasing and Related Services

SATTEL operates satellites “nat lease ‘ransponcers for comestic and international communications uncer a thirty-year
concessior whici: was obtaired from the Minisiry of :nforration Communication and Technology (MICT) that ends in 2021.

SATTEL now has threa satell:es ir orbit, with footprints covering the continents of Asia, Europe, Austrelie, and Africe.

Fully aware of the excellent future lying in broadband Internet vie satellite and the potential possibility in a new generation
of Internet Protecol (iP) satzliites, SATTEL formed an alliance with a US partner that experiise in advanced digital
encryption technology focusing on setting up a droadband sateli'te which they named, “IPSTAR”, that was designed to
support telacommunications via I2. The joint venture’s technologies supporting broadband Iniernet communication are

proprietary and are consideraa the country’s most advarcad tecnnology.

SATTEL began marxeting acivities by constructing first-generation gateways for the IPSTAR-1 satellite tc help increasz
the speed and efficiency of telecommunications ir distan: or less populated areas that would utilize existing conventional
satellites (Thaiccn). These firsi-generation gateways have been set up in saven countries; Thailand, Myanmar, Taiwan,
Australia, India, Chira and _aos PDR. Using conventicnal saiellites, SATTEL is already providing service in several
countries such as Trailand, _zos PDR, China, Viyanmar, and Ausiralia. Second-generation gateways are being installed
in certain countries such as " hailand, India, Australia, and New Zealand. IPSTAR-1 satellite has passed its mzjor testing,
and it is nearly ready for laur.ch which to be expected to take plece in 2005.




Internet Business

CS _oxinfo Puilic Comneny Limited (CSL) is an affiliate of SATTEL and was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on
Apri 8, 2004. I ogerzies under a 10-year concession from the Communications Authority of Thailand (CAT) to offer
commercial Interne” ezcess as “CS Loxinfo”, with the concession expiring in 2007. It also has a 22-year concession o

previde elevisicn trarszencer sarvice via satellite and internet via satellite, expiring in 2016.

s

C8L offers a fuli rarge of internet access across the nation for individual and corporate customers, from dial-up Internet

access 0 broscdard | iernet access via ADSL to satellite and leased line service.

Telephone Business

SATTEL has mzde irvasimen: ebroad in telecommunications through Shenington Investment Pte Ltd., which has

oparaticns in fwo couriries:

o Lzo Teleccmmunicztions Company Limited (LTC) - a joint venture with the government of Lao PDR. The
compeny is :censcd 1o offer fixed-line and mobile teiephone service, international call service, leased line
service ang nlernel access. ‘n 2004, the company added a new mobile service using the CDMA-450 system with
{2P8TAR technoleLy m0 expanc its network. The concession lasts 25 years and will be expiring in 2021.

o Ceambodia Shinav.ala Compeny Limited (CamShin) - a joint venture with the Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications
of Cambodiz. The company coerates under a license to provide mobile service using GSM 900 MHz and 1800 MHz
tachrology, Wirelsss _ccal Leop, and Internet access. in 2004, Camshin introduced digital CDMA 450 MHz technology

in order to further exzand its network to cover fixed-line wireless service and mobile service.

Thailand Yellow Pages

in 2034, CSL pecarte = major snareholder of Teleinfo Media Company Limited (TMC), whose main business is printing
and distiibuting “Trziznd Yellow Pages” to the business community. Revenue is generated via advertising in the yellow
pages, which is of zaricuiar interest to SMEs. It also sells advertising space in special business phone directories for
arenas such as experizrs, food and beverage industry, Guide to Traveling Thailand, etc. It offers other services, including

information service sz “elephonz and fax, and publishes marketing material.

Industry Outlook and Competition

Satellite Transponder Leasing and Related Services

Thaicom sateliiles crcvide a regional satellite communications service with marketing emphasis on the Asia Pacific
region. There zre 1CT satellites with footprints in this region, with the major competitors being Asia Satellite
Telecommuniczations (Asiasat), AT Sateliite Holdings (Apstar), PanAmSat Corporation (PanAmSat), and Satelindo (Palapa).
Competition is “ccused on terrestirial telecommunication networks via fiber optic cable, a highly effective media that is

able to deliver high-guziity, high-irequency video, voice, and data.
] Vi Yy

Internet Business

Theilanc has eightear commercial Internet Service Provicers (ISP), but only four can be considered of equal stature in
terms of competition: TSL, iINET, KSC and Asia Infonet, which boast a combined market share of over 85 percent of the
industry. CSL leads the market with the highest share at 40 parcent. Competition in this market is intense, as evidenced
by the cui-price offers —~ace by several iSPs to attract customers. Staying above the price competition, CSL emphasizes

network cuality end ve Ue-addec services.
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Telephone Business

Cambodia’s telecommunications business has eniered a stage of rapid development as operators build up the
penetration rate. The current fixed-line telephone penetration rate is 3.01 percent (ITU, 2003), which is guite low and has
resulted in greater mobile phone usage. In a population of 12 million, CamShin has the second largest market share,
following first-ranked CamGSM (Mobitel), and followed by third-ranked CASACOM.

The telecommunications system in Laos PDR is relatively undeveloped and in recognition of this, the government is
building up basic infrastructure. The current penetration rate is 1.12 percent for fixed-line and 1 percent for mobile in a
population of 5.53 million (ITJ, 2003). During 1995 to 2C00, the fixed line business enjoyed a 20% growth, the third
highest growth in Southeast Asia. At present, there are 2 ‘ixed-line operators (LTC and ETL) and four mobile operators
(LTC, ETL, LAT and Millicom). LTC has the biggest market share, followed by ETL and Millicom.

Thailand Yellow Pages

After the nullification of The Telephone Organization of Thailanc Act 1954, the liberalization of telecommunication
industry ushered in free comaetition in the printing of telephone directories and distribution of these to the busiress
community. TMC was previously the sole licensed printer and distributor of white and yellow pages, but there is now
some competition in the market, mainly from small printng comoanies who provide specialized industry directories.
There are also indirect compe’itors such as newspapers ar.d magazines. Among all competitors, it is estimated that TMC
has an advertising revenue share of over 80 percent. After the full implementation of telecom reform at the end of the
concession in 2005, we anticipate the entry of both foreign and local players into this field. However, with TM.C’s
extensive experience in the industry, qualified personnel, and gocd long-term relations with customers, we expect it to

maintain market leadership.

Media and Advertising Business

ITV Public Company Limited (ITV) is Thailanc’s first UHF television station, broadcasting as “iTV.” ITV was awarded a
thirty-year “Build-Transfer-Operate” concession by the Prime Minister's Office, which expires on July 3, 2025. ITV has
revenue sharing obligations amounting to a percentage of its total revenues as its concession fee, paid to the PM's Office

for the length of the concession period.

ITV filed a request with the Prime Minister’s Office for a change in the revenue sharing, citing several supporting factors.
The request was sent to an arbitration panel, which, on Jenuary 30, 2004, handed down a ruling in ITV’s favor, effective
immediately, that cut the concession fee substantially anc also removed content restrictions during prime time. ITV has
been remitting the new concession rate since January 1, 2004, anc restructured its programming lineup effective April 1,

2004, as allowed by the arbitration panel’s verdict.

ITV’s activities cover station cperations, management of the station’s airtime slots, sale of advertising airtime, rentai of
station airtime and the broadcast of television signals naticnwide, now blanketing 98 percent of the country’s population.
Over the yezr, ITV completed iwo additional relay stations, one in Petchburi and the other on Samui island in Suratthani,
expanding its broadcasting network to a total of 50 relay stations: 8 in the central region, 14 in the northern region, 13 in
the northeastern region, 3 in the eastern region, and 12 in the southern region. The station employs a digital broadcasting
system that helps maintain a consistent sound quality and also enables simultaneous broadcasting of different programs

for different coverage areas.




ITV’s sirength ere fro its news and documentary programs. It is popular with the viewing populace, respected for its
news reporting and arzalysis, and news cum documentary series. ITV has its own news production house and news team,
including support craw and ecuipment for in-house production. Apart from news content, it produces its own
documentaries and scme enteriainment programs. ITV also offers airtime rental for live event broadcasting and organizes
occasional special events. Some programs are outsourced from local program houses and some from foreign, with the
aim always being 1o echieve guality programming. Early in the year, ITV underwent a major program restructuring to
attract more viswers cy adding more variety to existing programs. Among the programs running from Monday through
Friday are new chilc-criented dramas in the 7.30 p.m. timesiot, a quiz show (“Millionaire Game”) that is both entertaining
and educationa! in tha 8.10 p.m. timesiot, an entertainment variety program in the 8.40 p.m. timeslot, and the news
analysis progrem “TY HOT NZWS” in the 9.40 p.m. iimeslot. New programs aired on the weekend include news
documentaries, Ycnroi, and Thod Rahas, which have gained a large following. Despite the greater number of
entertainment progrars, iTV's emphasis remains on being the leader in news with news programming starting from 6.00

1)

a.m., foilowed by “Ser tang Nug Long toon” at 2.30 a.m., noon news, Breaking News every hour, and evening news at
6.00 p.m. From Monday through Friday at 3.05 p.m., ITV broadcasts live programming aimed at the grassroots

pooulation, giving them an opportunity to air their problems and obtain assistance through {TV’s intervention.

ITV sells its advertising airtime through its own sales force, who contact advertising agencies and commercial sponsors.
Pricing strategies zre based on several factors, including ratings, timeslots, type of program and prices set by market
leaders for the same {'meslots. (TV at this time rents out an average of nine hours per day. Before allowing a program to
go on air, ITV consicars the program’s presentation style, content, and production quality, ensuring that they are

convergent with steiicn policies and goals.
Industry Outlock and Competition

According to Nielsen Vedia Research, TV ad spending in 2004 came to Baht 47.2 billion, an increase of 11.5 percent from

2003. TV ad spending “ock the greatest proportion, accounting for 56.1 percent.
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Nielsen Med'a Reszarch estimated advertising revenue for each siation by multiplying the list price and advertising time
prior to deduction of discount and other benefits provided o customers. The calculations, iliustrated in the charis abcve,
revealed that in 2004, Channe. 7 had the greatest market share of 29.7 percent, followed by Channel 3 with 22.¢ percent,
Channel 5 with 16.7 gercent, ITV with 15.6 percent, Chznnel 8 with 13.7 percent, and Channel 11 with 2.1 percent
(Channel 11 is a public service station and as such cannot accept commercial advertising). These figures reveal a hea'thy

2 percent rise in ITV's market share from 2003.

E-Business
Shineedotcom Co., Lid. is a leacding Content Aggregator in mobile business focusing on 4 core businesses.

1. Mobile ccntent including tone service, graphic service, information, Java game and apglication shown as online
catalog at www.shinee.com.

2. Corporate solution including SMS marketing (push and pull}, Bluetooth marketing and Web & WAP Development.

3. Online game, Lunentia, one of the most popular game from Koreg, launchec open beta at the end of the year 2004 and
will be launching in the second guarter of the year 2005 tc encourage more internet broadband in Thailand.

4. Hunsa Portal siie which is isted as the 6th populer wed site in Thailand. There are 1,000,000 visiiors or 12,000,C00
page views every month. There is also upcoming new porial site celled hubpiay.com focusing on entertainment for rew
generation especially high indvidual person or new generation as it can published their personal opiniori or grticle on this
web site. Moreover, AvatarMell is another interesting part of hutplay which members can create their owr cartoon
characters and dress up by themselves. Further more, members can also crezte their one lifestyle and published to other

members about their experier ces, interesting things and impress chotos via MiniHompy.

Budget Airline Business

On November 12, 2003, SHIN partnered with AirAsia Sdr. Bhd, Asia’s first low-fare airline from Malaysia, to establish
Thailand’s first budget airline, recistering the airline as Thai AirAsia Co,._td. This investment is aimed zat further
developing Thailand’s transpcrtaticn infrastructure and tc expand the domestic aviation market by providing another
travel alternative for the average Thai citizen. Thai AirAsia offers a simple “nc-frills” service at fares that are on average
markedly lower than those offered by traditional full-service airlines. Modelled on successiul budget airlines suchk as
US-based Southwest Airlines and Ireland-based Ryanair, “hai AirAsia was established o creaie a new aviation product
in Thailand, end hes already, in one short year, revolutionized local air iravel ard expanded the local aviation market, with

its extraordirarily low fares mzking flying affordable for a majority cf the population.

On February 3, 2004, Thai AirAsia began operating point-tc-point flights from its Bangkok hub, and this has been built up
to the current !evel of 168 weekly flights from Bangkck to thirteen destinetions domestically and
internationally: Chiang Mai, Chiang Rai, Hat Yai, Khon Kaer, Phuket, Ubon Raichathani, Udon Thani, Narathiwai, Macao,
Kuala Lumptr, Perang, Kota Kinabalu,v and Singapore. Future plars include the acquisition of additional aircraft to open

new routes to China, and Indcchina.




Tha! AirAsia is accessidle through the Internet (www.airasiz.com), its own call center, and other outlets such as
Tesce-Lotus (nine branches) anc 2if AlS Customer Service Centers nationwide. lts ticketless service cuts costs and also
makes fcr greater convenience for travelers. With payment accepted via credit cards over the Internet or via bank ATMs,
theras is no need 10 arenge for ticket pickup.

Consumer Finance Business

Capitai CX Comoary _‘mited is a joint venture formed by SHIN and DBS Bank of Singapore with the objective of
engaging in consumer "rance in Thailand. The three major areas of business for Capital OK include personal loans, sales
finance and crecit czrc’s. 'n 20C4, the primary source of income for Capital OK was the personal loan service, which
accounrted for €4 percert of tota! income.

Products and Services
Personal Loans

Capital CK’s persoral oens are all-purpose loans designed to provice added flexibility and emergency funcs for

consumers, with no coligieral ¢ guarantor needed. Customers are given the option of determining the number of

instaimenrt payments t-2t 2est rmeet their particular situation.

Sales Finance

Sales firance is nstail—ent financing provided for individuels who desire to buy products or services on instaliment.

Credit i=e and numizzr of payments is tailored to maich each customer’s credit qualifications. This service covers a wice
}.1

variety of oroduc:s £1¢ services, including electrical appliances, mobile phones, computers and peripherals.

Credit Cards
At the beginning of 22Cc. Capita: CK, in cooperation with T

nai AirAsia launched a co-branded credit card under the name
“Tha! AirAsia Wester Czr¢”. The holder of the card is able to use the card for regular purchases or cash withdrawals
anywhera Master Card s acceptad, all over the world. At the same time, they will be able to accumulate mileage on Thai
AirAsia.

To provice ease cf access (o Cagsital OK's services for customers, service outlets have been set up in leading shopping
centers, AiS service certers, chain stores and retail stores. These include the Mall Department Store, Telewiz, J-Mart,
and iEC; among others. At the enc of 2004, Capital OK hac 1,553 service outlets, mostly in Bangkok and vicinity. it plans
to exparc its service nziwerk greaily in 2005 by setiing up branches and service outlets in provinces all over the country.

industry Outlook and Competition

The maicr comzeatilicrs "1 consumer finance are commercial tanks and other financial institutions such as Aeon Thana
Sinsap {nailanc,, € Z Zacital (Trailand), Siam A&C and Cetelem. Capital OK believes it has some major competitive
advantages over these nowever, i its ground-breaking promotional campaigns that are carefully designed to meet the
varied needs ¢’ cus:oiars, amplified by its synergy with SEIN Group’s consumer service network nationwide that will

maxe exsansicr oregross smoeciny.
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Risk Factors

Risks Arising Out of Changes in Laws, Regulations, and Government Policies

The company has been supglying telecommunications services through government agencies in the form of concession
contracts that were drawn up in line with government reguiations during that time. Currently, however, industry
liberalization is on its way, and the market is looking fcrward to the conversion of the concession agreements in the
nearby future. Concession conversion will give equal rights to all operators, both current and future, who will hencefortn
be regulated and supervised by the National Telecommunication Commission (NTC). included in current operators are
the state enterprisas formerly in charge of Thailand’s teleccmmunicetions networks: the Telephone Organization of Thziland
(TOT), which was privatized on July 31, 2002 and is now known as TOT Corporation Public Company Limited, and the
Communications Authority of Thailand (CAT), which was privatized on August 14, 2003 and is now known as CAT Telecom
Public Company Limited. The conversion of these concession agreements has given rise to a number of issues thet are
yet to be concluded. The first step was achieved on August 24, 2834, when the members of the NTC were finalized which

was later confirmed by His Majesty the King on October 1, 2004.

Still in its infancy, the NTC is working to establish its internal setup, including the Secretariat Office, the selection cf the
Secretary-General of the Secretariat Office, and the drafiing of Thai Telecommunication Master Plan, which is expected
to be anncunced by mid-2305. Once these foundatiors are securely in place, the rules and regulations governing
telecommunications, including ar interconnection regime, schedule of fees and charges (including fees fcr licenses,
frequency assignments and numbers), and the opening of doors ‘or new entrants can be cetermined.

In the presence of this industry risk, the company has assigned sxperienced personnel to monitor the situetion cn an
ongoing basis, provicing data to the agencies concerned as needed, in this way managing the risk as it pertains to the
company. The data it provides makes it possible for the government, via the NTC, to accurately assess the reaiities of the
telecommunications ndustry, and thereby determine appropriate rules and regulations that will eventually give birth to
free and unbiased business competition. The vital concern is alweys the ideal of keeping the company’s image positive.

The liberalization of the telecommunication industry will iead to change in laws and regulations, but this is not a major
concern to the SHIN Group. The leveled playing field wil! lead to an increasing number of operators, but SHIN Group is
the major operator in this business, and it is confident tha? it will be able to maintain this status. Newcomers wiil enjoy the
leveled playing field, but they will face hindrances to entry, needing to buiic up a customer base, obtain the necessary
funding for network investment and development, as wel! as establish distribuiion channels, all of which have long been
in place for SHIN. We are fuily prepared for this reform, and in fact, believe strongly that rather than being a threat, it

provides promising new and exciting business opportuni‘ies.

The consumer finance business is facing the possibility of greater supervision in the future as the Bank of Thailand brings
the provision of parsonal loan and credit card services by non-Bank operators under its oversight, making this type of
business subject 10 laws related to financial institutes. In this regard, a bill was put up before the previous Parliament that
would govern the business of non-financial institutions in the consumer finance business and place them under regulatior.
by the Bank of Thailand, which would have superviscry centrol anc enact laws governing the way consumer finance firms
carry out their business. Even though compliance to any new rules and regulations may change operations at Capitai OK,
we are confident that adherence would cause no problems, as the company already maintains high standards.




Market and Competitive Risks

Wireless Communications Business

For a celiular market 2nat is on the verge of being liberalized, incumbents with relatively smaller size can sometimes act a
bit irrational as it s¥zices to gain the critical mass in terms of subscriber base ahead of new players entries. And if the
market ieader, in defense of its market share, jumps in and plays the same game, the entire industry will plunge. Margins
will get squeezed enc eventually some, and usually the smaller operators, will be severely damaged financially and, in
many markets, unzbic to remain in business. This is not only wicked to the entire industry’s financials, but it also

produces negative racercussion for the consumers as there will be fewer operators left for them to post the brutal price war.

Although the risk frem Irrationa! competition seems 1o be external and uncontrollable, AlS, however, continues to believe
that the low-pricec sirategy can only create awareness, but the quality of network and services is the essential key to
success in crecting <references and strengthening customer foyalty. In addition, the low-priced strategy cannot be
sustained for a long time in the cellular operator business, as the business is too capital - intensive. Furthermore, as part
of the liberalizetion 3rccess, the interconnection charges are also on the verge of being implemented in Thailand. This, at
whatever rate it turns out, will zutomatically become the floor for per-min rate pricing. Thus, any irrational competition
should be shori-lived. AiS, instead, continues to focus on quality and variety of services for various lifestyle segments to
create groduct orefsrece ameng quality-conscious, and value-accretive customers. Throughout the years, AlS has still

been atie to meinteir s distance leaderships, not only in terms of subscriber base, but also in terms of revenue despite

2s. Without being complacent, however, AIS closely and continuously monitors the market
dgevelogment ic accursiely eveluate the situation and to be able to formulate appropriate strategies to counteract, with a

prime objective in Lpcicing shareholder’s value.

Satellite and International Business

SATTEL has ceen preven successful as a leader in satellite communication in the region encompassing Southeast and
Scouthern Asia. Hovrevar, the high profitability of this business has brought in a number of newcomers which heightens
the cormoetitior. In resdonse to this and in recognition of Thailand’s acquiescence to the WTO mandate to open up the
telecommuniczions industry before the end of 2006, SATTEL has been developing new products, consistently improving
the quality of its services, expanding its customer base to give itself an edge as competition tightens even further, and
becomes centerac or service guality. As the government carries out its duties as outlined in clause 87 of the constitution
to open the country us o free end fair competition, other satellite operators can engage in the satellite communications

-

business in Thailarz, and SAT ZL can enter the same countries on a reciprocity basis, thereby expanding its market
base. Therefere, THN is certain that any negative impact on SATTEL will be nonexistent to
negligible, pariiculely since histerically it has been shown that customers are reluctant to change providers, such a move

mandates the expensive end deiicate task of aiming their dishes towards the new satellite.

Media and Advertising Business

The upcoming I'bera:zaticn of radio and television broadcasting services may intensify competition among existing
broadcest staticns, cazie subscription operators, and new entrants, could admittedly increase the competition for the
adveriising pie 2nc sz into the company revenues. Ai the same time, newcomers face barriers to entry that are not easily
overcome; by ratura Inis business is capital - intensive and highly competitive. Strengthening these barriers is the fact

that existing careizrs neve long experience and are highly capable with technoiogical and workforce advantages.

45



46

Risks Arising Out of Technology and Operations

Wireless communications business

The introduction of new technology in the mobile phone industiy, for example the GPRS and Location Based Service,
creates opportunities for third parties to cooperate with AIS to provide innovative services. This cooperation introcuces
a complex structure of network providers, service providers, and content providers, bounded by service level
agreements. The downside of this situation is the greater difficulty in controlling service guality. if any provider fzils to
meet the service level agreement, the perceived quality of the end-to-end service will be affected. With this concern,
uppermost control over the service level agreements and the iniroduction of quality assurance to each cooperating

provider is vital to ensure customer needs and satisfaction are met.

At present, the GSMA (the GSM Association), a central organization for the GSM mobile industry, has established ths
Open Architecture Platform ‘o standardize irterconnections between different platforms. We believe that this provides a

satisfactory framework within which we can assess and ensure cuality conirol.

AlS has implemented end-to-end service monitoring and put a control system in place to ensure smooth, top quality

service, and thereby satisfy customer needs.

The mobile industry is undergoing a rapid change in mobile technology towards high-spsed data and multimedia
communications. However, AIS will not be impacted in the near ierm as the majority of its subscribers, most of them in
the provinces, continue accessing only the basic services. However, mobile suppliers are cognizant of the importarce of
this new technology and are urging their skilled technicians to develop applications for the thirc generation mobile chonz
system (3C). Though this is an exciting development, at the same time, over the long term, it could put at risk the high
level of support for current Zachnology. In light of this, AlS is working to modify its digital GSM network to enable it to
accept 3G technology. Any rew eguipment AlS acguires to expand services must be flexible, capable of adanting o 3G
services as well as support current technology. Examples are Softswitch, the new switching platform, and IMS (Internet
Protoco! Multimedia Subsystem). In 2005, AIS will be ‘esting 3G applications on its existing frequency band that is
already licensed for 3G. With a rumber of manufacturers and ooerators having adopted the existing GSWM. frequency
band, AIS has an excellent opportunity to try out iis new techrology platform on its existing frequency band withott
having to obtain a new frequercy from the new regulator, the NTC, which is a bonus as the NTC has not yet had time to

establish the rules ard regu ations for new 3G licenses.

Satellite and International Business

Satellite telecommurication technology is another ‘echroelogy that is continually developing. Most of this development
tends towerds reducing satellite cost-per-transponder and enlargement of the geographical footprint, thereby allowing
more efficient use of resources. These technological changes cou.d impact the company’s operations, since the Thaicom
satellites were manufacturec a decade ago, and technology has advanced far in recent years, putting it at risk of losing
customers to competitors wno have launched more up-to-cate satellites, a threat that is particularly prominent as leasz
contracts expire. Several other factors are also leading tc (or wiii lzad to) loss of customers. These inc’ude market rivairy,

competitiveness of other operators, as well as naiionalism as more countries put up their own satellites.

To stay abreast of the new development in technology and to satisfy its customer needs, the company has steadily
invested its resources in research and development on satellite telecommunication technology. The IPSTAR-1 satelliie is




one such examp.e. This will be Asia’s first broadband satellite specifically designed to support demand from telecom
municatiors netwcrks. a3 2ecially with regards to the Internet, in the Asia-Pacific region. SATTEL also updates its ground
equipment on a reguler tasis in orcer to keep pace with the latest development in satellite technology. Studies and

develepment are a.sc 072 o exisiing satellites, keeping in the forefront the need to replace them when useful lives end.

The corstruction end lcunch of a satsllite demands complicated processes and technology. This has exposed SATTEL to
risks \nveiving construsticn aslay, system testing, and launch failure. To minimize all such risks, a satellite manufacturer/
launch company with ar exceller? past record of success, expertise, and global reputation was selected to handie

IPSTAR. Insurance was 30 taken cut to cover launch failure.

Risk specific to #8TA3 “isk inclucdes launch delay, as well as delay in manufacturing and testing processes, as these
ninder its markeling uhizh has ir fact been in progress for some time, with a soft launch of first-generation IPSTAR
service using IPSTAR ¢round technoiogy and the Thaicom conventional satellites) and may delay revenue from the satellite’s

services. owever, the fezling has srogressed well, with the satellite close to being moved to French Guiana for launch.

SATT=L was obti¢catec v its loan contract to launch the satellite and conduct in-orbit testing by November 1, 2004,
a deadline that wes nc’ el —owevey, it has applied to issuing banks for an extension of this deadline. As the banks have
given gocd supecet threrghout the process of manufacturing, SATTEL expecis approval to be granted, particularly as

there is ncw a nee~firm ~unch dete.

TJo minimize risks ‘ror czmeages to satellite systems that might adversely affect customer usage, the company has a
backup pen in clzce th=t involves temporary transfer of some customers to available transponders on the other
remaining ThaiccT sa'eles shouid the need arise. If more transponders are needed, it has also made agreements with
cther companies “C lec se “neir transnonders until a replacemant satellite is faunched. Insurance has been taken out on all
satellites, with ... covarene up to the value of the saiellite at the time the insurance was taken out. The insurance policy

‘s Tor fuil coverags wih

W

ertial lcss, meaning that the company can immediately claim damages when a satellite is
partielly urusabizs. mor axamsle, cn February 7, 2003, Thaicom 3 experienced an anomaly in its power supply system,
forcing the shutdcuwn 5f sorre transponders. A claim was filed and the insurance company agreed to pay US$33 million
in damages. The V.inisin of ‘nformation and Communications Technology, which has ownership of the sateliite and is the
ioint beneficiary, ~zs tut (his in an escrow account, from which SATTEL can withdraw to pay for transponder leases from

other crovicers ¢r to £ay “or the construction of a new satellite.

Business Risks

The artitration cenel ranced dow: iis decision on the case between ITV and the Office of Prime Minister on January 30,
2004, criering e sigrnicont reduction in concession fee and the removal of content restriction during prime time, with
‘mmediate effect. TV " s began ramitting the new concession rate as of January 1, 2004 and restructured its programs
on Anrit 1. 2004 -icvienar, the CHice of the Prime Minister, grantor of the concession, has filed an appeal with the
Administretive Court ohrenging “he ruling. ITV is thus et risk should the Administrative Court rule in favor of the Prime

Minister's Gffice 2d 2ve 7uie the erditrator’s decision.

Foreign Exchange Risks

*

Because e Sk ol 7's investiment lies mainly in wireiess {eiecommunications and satellite services, the company
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is by necessity exposed to foreign exchange risk, as the technology used in both areas must come from abroad, and
therefore must be paid for in foreign currencies. Providing a natural hedge, however, is the fact that ninety percent
of SATTEL's revenue is also dominated in US dollars, hereby reducing the Group’s exposure. Further reductions in
foreign exchange risks have bzsen made through financial derivatives such as swap and forward contracts. The media
and advertising businesses also involve the company in foreign exchange as new eguipment and programming are
purchased from abroad. The airline business also requires foreign currency for aircraft lease payments, SG&A, airport
fees, aircraft maintenance, jet fuel, and other operating expenses. Currency fluctuations affect all of these factors, and
could reach a level that would impact performance. SHIN Group focuses on risk management via use of hedging

instruments, entering into a forward contract in foreign currency to mitigate the risk from foreign currency fluctuation.

SHIN has consistently been very conservative in its financial policies; its policy to manage foreign currency risk is based
on net foreign currency dominated transactions, revenue structure, and cash flow structure. After careful and detailed

analysis, the most approprizie financial instrument is selacted.

As of December 31, 2004, SHIN and its subsidiaries had net assets and liabilities in the form of foreign currencies and

outstanding foreign currency forward contract as outlined in the table on the following page.




Assets

JE€ Dollars

Zuro

Australian Dollars
Scunds Steriing
Singapore Dollars
‘ncian Rupee
-crg Kong Dollars
Me aysian Ringgit

Mataka Macau

Total

Liabtlities

JS Dollars

=uro

Australian Dollars
Nerwegian Kroner
Pounds Sterling

ncian Rupee

Total

S Dollars

Currency
Unit : Million

38.01
0.26
0.08

0.001
0.02

183.36
0.04
1.17
3.68

35.89
0.02
0.05
4.37
0.01

43.90

Cutstanding foreign currency forward contracts

315

Baht Million

1,483.16
13.86
2.47
0.10
0.58
153.73
0.20
11.65
37.10
1,702.85

1,406.98
0.95
1.63

28.32
1.04
42.51
1,481.43

12,881
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Corporate Governance and Management Structure

Corporate Governance Policy

The Board of Dirsctors of Shin Corporation Public Cormpany Limited (the Company) recogrizes that gooc corporate
governance has a vital contr.ottion to the company’s bagic fourczaticns, previding a system of checks anc bziances and
ensuring transparency and eguitabdle treatment of all shareholders and stakeholders. 7o this end, ihe Board of Directors
and the menagemen: team must possess proven leadership, vision and accountability, joining io promcte sustainable
growth of business operations, securing tne confidence of investors ard &ll related stakehoiders and maximizing

economic value and sharehclders’ wealth for the long term.

The Board of Directors passed a resolution to acprove a Corgorate Governance Policy which became effective on
November 13, 2C02. The Pclicy has been updaied anntally to keep it lined up with bast business praciices and Iness
changes are communicatec to the Board of Directors, manegement, ard all company employees. The Corporate
Governancea Policy can be cvided into five chapters tha: provice coverage of good corporate governance principles as
follows:

1. The Board of Diractors of the Company

2. Rights and Equitak.e Treatment cf Shareholdzrs anc Role with regards to Stakenoiders

3. Disclosure of Infcrmation and Transparency

4. Control and Risk Management

5. Philosopiry and Etkics of Shin Corporation Group

The Board of Directors

Leadership and Vision

The Board of Directors must possess proven leacership, long-renge vision, and decision-making independence in orger
to steer the Company towards echievement of its objectives and missicn, always keeping in the forefrcnt the best
interests of the Com»any ard shareholders. The Board of Direciors has the responsibility ic develop ard approve the
company vision, mission, strategies, policies, objectives, goals, cudgets, business plans, KPi, and a balanced scorecard,
as well as incentive plans. Both the Board and the management are accountable to the shareholders and have
established a clear-cut line of communication between the boarc and management with detziled roles and responsibility
for each. The Board of Directors assigns and authorizes management to handle day-to-day operations of the company’'s
businesses towards achieving business objectives, anc at the same time stay within budget. The Board of Directors

monitors operatirg results, comparing these against the preset budget on a cuarterly basis at minimum.

During Bozard meetings, all board members are to be decisive and ready to comment and give recommendations %o the
management team. ~he boz d members are to bea role models, working as a team, and maintaining good relations with

management.

Board Structure, Balance of Power with Non-Executive Directors, and Independence

The Board of Directors is mede up of nine directors who have broad experience in several business areas as listed below:

1. Mr. Bhanapot Damapong Chairman cf the Board of Directors (major sharsholdear)
2. Mr. Boonklee P.angsiri Director anci Chairman of the Group Executive Commitiece

3. Mr. Niwattumroag Boonsongpaisan Director and Executive Director




4. Mr. Arex Chenlatanon Director and Executive Director

5. Mrs. Siri2e Sitasuwzn Director and Executive Director

5. Mr. Suraszx Vajasit indepencent Director

7. Mr. Ole:n Chaiprava:, Ph.D. Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Independent Director
8. Mr. Virech Aprimetestamrong, Ph.D. Indepencent Director

9. Mr. Vithit _senutapong Independent Director

Mr. Wichai Kitwittayakul is the Secretary to the Board of Directors.

As shown in the list of the members of the Board of Direciors above, the proportion of non-executive directors to
executive is 5:4. As a general ru'e, the number of the non-executive directors comprises over than halif the Board, with

N

four indspendent ¢'rectors or four out of nine seated on the Board. (In 2003, there were three independent directors,
which was a Zreak in the usial pattern.) This ensures an optimal balance of power and independence between
non-executive anc axeculive cirectors. The Board strongly believes the qualifications of all board members, and the
current size cf the 3czard enabies the Board to effectively and efficiently supervise and monitor the performance and
business opere:ions ¢’ the Company, which encompasses telecommunication, aviation, finance, media and television,
as well s any new nvostment that may take place.

The Chairman ¢ the Ecarc of Cirectors is the represantative of major shareholders.

Authorized Signatories

Directers who zrz gutnorized sighatories are designated as follows:

Mr. Bhanapot Camencng, Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri, Mr. Arak Chonlatanon, and Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan.
Any two of these four cirectors are authorized to sign for the company, affixing the Company’s seal.

Definition of Independent Director
An independent dirscor is a cualified and independent person according to the definition established by the Stock
Exchange of Treiland:
1. Holdirg nc’ rmore than 5 percent of paid-up capital of the Company, affiliated company, associated company or
relatec cormpeny.
2. Does rot teke Dart in the management Company, affiliated company, associated company, related company or
majority sharenholder of the Company.
3. Has nc direct or indirect benefit or interest in finance and management of the Company, affiliated company,
associzaied ccmpany, relaied company or majority shareholder of the Company.
4. Not a ralated zerson or close relative of any member of management or majority shareholder of the Company.
5. Not apzoiriec as a representative to safeguard interests of the Company’s directors, majority shareholders or
shareholders who are related {o the Company’s majority shareholders.

in addition, an indepercent director must feel free to give opinions or report work performance as required by his duties,
free of any perscnai inierest, benefit or position and free of the control of any party, including any circumstance by which

pressure may te exariad and make an independent opinion impossible.
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Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The main duties of the Board of Directors are given below.

e}

Perform its duties ir accordance with the law, the objectives and the Articles of Association of tne Company
inciuding the resolutions of the shareholders’ meetings with honesty, integrity, and prudence, and carefully
protect the benefit ¢cf the Company.

Set out tha vision, pclicy and direction of the operations of the Company, and supervise the management team
to operate in accordance with the plan set out efficiently and effectively, and thereby maximize economic value
and wealth of the Company and the shareholders.

Consider anc approve major issues such as large investments, policy, management power and authority, anc
any transaction as prescribed by law.

Assess the performance of the Executive Chairman and the Executive Directors regularly, and fix appropriate
remuneration.

Responsibie to oversee operational results and performance of the management team to ensure due
attentiveness and care.

Arrange appropriate accounting systems, including the production of financial reports and refiable auditing;
oversee processes znd evaluate internal contrels and inhe internal audit system to ensure sfiectiveness anc
efficiency, risk management and financial reporting and follow up results.

Ensure avoidance of conflicts of interest among the stakeholders of the Company.

Supervise business operations to enforce ethica: work standards.

Report or the carrying out of its responsibility to prepare financial reports along with the report of the auditor in
the annual report covering key issues accerding to the Policy Statement, the SET Code of Best Practices for

Directors of the Listed Company.

Segregation of Positions: Chairman of the Board of Director and the Chief Executive Officer

The Company has a policy tc separate the position of Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chairman of the Group

Executive Committee. This ersures that duties of governing and managing are separated so that the balance of power is

well secured. Both duties anc responsibilities are determ’ned as follows:

Mr. Bhanapot Damapong - Chairman of the Board of Directors is the leader of the Board of Directors and
Chairman at the Board of Directors’ Meetings ard Shareholders’ Meetings.

Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri - Chairman of the Group Executive Committee is the leader and nead of the Group Executive
Committee, which is accountable for achievemert of the Company’s oblectives, business plans, and goals.

Since he is a major sharehcider, the Company’s Chairman of the Board of Directors is not an independent director.

However, the Chairman of the Board of Directors does not have management authority to approve company financiai anc

business transactions.

Appointment of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for nominating new members with the qualifications and experiences that meet

company standards and neecs. Those nominated must be ready and willing to contribute time, knowledge and expertise




to the Company. The Nominating Committee is responsible for selecting and nominating names of persons worthy of

becoming a member o7 the Boarc of Directors. The appointment of any individual to the Board of Directors must first be

approvec oy the 2oard ¢’ Directer and/or the shareholders at the Shareholders’ Meeting in accordance with the rules and

regu'ations speciiied n the Articles of Assaciation of the Company, as follows:

<4

At every anrue. Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, one-third of the board members are required to retire. If the
tetal number of members is not a multiple of thiee, the number of directors nearest to one-third shall retire. The
cirectors 1o rziire from office in the first and second years after the registration of the Company shall be selected
by drawing iots. In subsaguent years, the director who held office longest shall retire, but if he vacated office
under this concition, he may be re-elected.

Regulaticns "o the election of members to the Board of Directors at the Shareholders’ Meeting are as foliows:

2.1 Each shareholcer shall have a number of votes egual to the number of shares held.

2.2 Eacn sharzholder may exercise all the votes he/she has under 2.1 to elect one or several persons as
director or Zirectors. .f several persons are to be elected as directors, the shareholder may not distribute
his/her voizs among the candidates he/she is electing.

2.3 The canzicztes will ze ranked in descending order from the highest number of votes received to the lowest,
anc candicztes will oe appointed in order until all of the positions are filled.

Where there is a Zle 2n¢ selection of both would result in an excessive number of directors, the Chairman will cast the

deciding vote.

3.

If there is a vaczncy in the Board of Directors for reasons other than expiration of the director’s term of office, the
Board of Directers will, at the next scheduled meeting, select a temporary replacement, choosing a person with
appropriate guz!ifications that possesses none of the prohibited characteristics under Section 68 of the Public
Limitec Comdenies Act B.£.2535. The selection must be elected by a vote of not less than three quarters of the
remaining numgear of directors and he/she will hold office only for the time remaining in the term of office for the
director that resigned. If the remaining term of office of the said director is less than two months, there will be no
{emporary redlzcement.

There is no maximum number of iimes that directors may be relected, nor is there a specified age limit.

Succession Planning

The Board of Directors has set out a succession plan for top executives, especially the Chief Executive Officer (Chairman

of the Grcup Executive Committee) in order to guarantee smooth handover, continuity of operations, and retain the

conficience of stakehoiCers. If 2 situation arises that causes the Chief Executive Officer to vacate the office, the

Nominating Committes will select and nominate a new Chief Executive Officer from the pool (currently four persons) of

Vice Chairmen of the Group Zxecutives, submitting the nominee to the Board of Directors for approval. If no suitable

candidate from within tre creup can be found, the Nominaiing Committee will select a candidate from without the group.
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Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors will holc at least five (5) meeiings sach yezr, and meet at other times as necessary. The schedule
for the year’s meetings, specilying date and time, are to be drawn up in acvance. The major agenda will consist of
consideration of zusiness plens, guarterly financial staterents, key policies and new invesiment projects, anc operating
resulis. The Secrstery to the Board of Directors is responsible fcr making the appointments, preparing and distributing
the supporting dccumentaticn seven days before the date of the meeting so as o provide the directors with adecuate

time to study the details aheac of the meeting.

Each meeting will generally ‘ast two to three nours. Tne Cheirman of the Board will orovide edequate time for
management to present neeced irformation and to allow the members of ire board to fully discuss the imporiant issues
to ensure all is in keeping witn shareholders’ test interest and fairness. All directers have the right to exoress their

opinions ard submit iems tc the meeting agenda.

The Secretary to the 3oard ¢’ Directors is to orepare and keep minutes of the meetings (later agreed upon and acceptec
by the Bozrd of Directors) as well as other supporting documantation. All Board papers are always available and

accessible by mem>ars of the Board of Directors, sharehclders, and concerned pariies.

The record of attendance of *he directors in 2004 is given pelow.

2004 Annual Board of Audit Nominating Remuneration Executive
Name General , ) ) ) )
Meeting Directors  Committee Committee Committee  Committee
1. Mr. Bharzpct Damedong yes 5/5 1/1 1/
2. Mr. Boorklee Plangsir! ‘ yes £/5 i/1 1/1 12/12
3. Mr. Niwegltumrong Eoonsongpaisah no 5/5 12/12
4. Mr. Arak Chonlatancn yeé 4/5 11/12
5. Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwan yes 4/5 10/12
6. Mrs. Chuz Sozk Koong” no Cr2 '
7. Mr. Olarn Craiprave®, >h.D. yes 55  5/6 =1/
8. Mr. Virach Aphimetestamrong, Ph.C. ves 5/5 6/6
9. Mr. Vithit Leenutapcng yes 5/5 6/6 1/1 11
10. Mr. Surzsax Vajasit™” - 2/2
* Resigrec on May 4, 2034
. Replacea Mrs. Clue Sock Koong on May 18, 2004

e Attendac only the ESO?> program session




The Board of Directors Self-Assessment of Performance

The 3card of Zirecto conducied a self-assessment of performance on August 13, 2004 to evaluate its performance
with the aim ¢ 'mo - ag s eiciency. The evaluation covered a broad spectrum of the duties of the Boérd, including
strategic direcion, o ic/ing end supervision, respensibilities, teamwork, structure, policy, meetings, and training and
deveiopment.

The resuits ¢7 ne =e -assessment were satisfactory, but to further improve its performance, the Board of Directors
agreec ‘cineTtlioinL:

* To hield a sescrate r-3e%ing e consider corporate governance and related issues.

" To esteblish 2 rellin end devzicpment program for the Board of Directors.

*To commmunicate (oo T Rformetion via the electronic mail system.

Sub-Commitiees
The Bozrd 0f Sivecizrs nes appointed three sub-committees tc take charge of reviewing specific essential tasks to assist
the Boeard of Zirzctzre Trhose committees are the Audit Commiittee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nominating

Ceommiitee. zach nis wieary outined policies and terms of reference detailing duties and responsibilities, meetings, and

w

reperts o the =zarJ ¢ Zirectier

Audit Committee

As cf February "4, 2073, “he Acdit Committee comprisec of:

Mr. Olarn Cheizrevat =h.0. Chairmzn cf the Audit Committee
Mr. Virach Azrime'se 2m7ong, =n.D. Audit Commitiee Member
Mr. Vithit Leen_iagzcr Audit Committee Member

The Augit Committze wes appcinted on May 5, 1988 and was composed of three (3) independent directors with full

qualificaZions m line vith guideinas provided by the Stock zxchange of Thailand. Mr. Olarn Chaipravat, Ph.D. and Mr.

Vithit Leenutecong g2 experiznced in the field of Finance while Mr. Virach Apimeteetamrong, Ph.D. has in-depth
knowledge anc exgar =1ce in Accounting and Auditing. The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board of Directors for

the perfcrmarco of s

o Reviev; the zzouracy of the Company's financial reports in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Princit.es =r- ensure trere is adequate disciostre.

o Revievs the [7marme! Centrol and Internal Audit Systems to ensure these are appropriate and effective.

o Zznsure thel sne Comzeny nerforms in accorcance with the laws governing Securities and Exchange, the
Reguiatiors =7 the Steck Zxchange of Thailand and the laws applicable to the business of the Company.

o Consicar, ze =2, 2nd nominate the Company's external auditor and propose remuneration.

o Deterrnine z sorooriats disclosure of information in the case that there are connected transactions or

fransactions =t may lezg o the conflicts of interest in orcier to ensure complete compliance with all rutes and regulations.

o Revievwi conracied transactions of the Company and 'is subsiciaries to ensure all are in line with the notices and
guide’nes o’ Tne Stocx =xchange of Thailand.

o Review the s menagement system to ensure it is appropriate and effective.

o Review an” comment o0 the internal audit plan, the performance of the internal audit office and cooperate with

i

external ard ors.
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o Consider and approve the appointment, rotation, termination, performance appraisal, and reward for the head
of tne Internal Audit Department.

o Prepare a report for disclosure in the annual report on the Corporate Governance of the Audit Committee,
affixing the signature of the chairman of the Audit Committee.

o Report the performance of the Audit Committee ‘o the board of directors at least four (4) times a year.

o Inthe course of the performance of its duties the Audit Commitiee has the authority to summon members of the
management team, executives and employees cf the Company for their comments, to attend meetings, or to
submit documents ceemed relevant and necessary.

o Hire advisors or external personnel in line with company regulations to provide comments or advice as
necessary.

o Annually undertake a self-assessment to evaluate the scope of work and performance of the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee
As of February 14, 2005, the Remuneration Committee consisted of:

Mr. Bhanapot Damapong Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Olarn Chaipravat, Ph.D. Remuneration Committee Member (ESOP Program)
Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri Remuneration Committee Member

Mr. Vithit Leenutapong Remuneration Committee Member

The Remuneration Committes is composed of at least three directors and the majority - or all - the members must be
non-executive directors; the powers and duties of the Committee are as follows:

o Fix an appraopriate annual remuneration in monetary and/or non-monetary form as a motivation and retention
measure for the Board of Directors, committee members, and top executives of the Company.

o Draw up the guidelines for appropriate remuneration for the Board of Directors and top executives for
submissicn to the Board of Directors for approval and/or submission to the shareholders’ meeting for approval
as approgriate.

o The Remuneration Committee is accountable to the Board of Directors, and its duty to explain and answer
questions concerning remuneration for directors and top executives at the shareholders’ meeting.

o Report and disclose nolicies governing director remuneration in the annual repori.

Nominating Committee
As of February 14, 2005, the Nominating Committee consisted of;

Mr. Bhanapot Damapong Chairman of the Nominating Committee
Mr. Boonklee Plangsiri Nominating Commitiee Member
Mr. Vithit Leenutapong Nominating Commitiee Member

The Nominating Committee is made up of a minimum of three directors, and the majority or all of the members must be
non-executive directors; the powers and duties of the Nominating Committee are as follows:
o Set out criteria and policies regarding the nomiration of members of the Board of Directors and members of
other Company committees.
o Consider the selection of directors from qualified personnel and submit the names of the candidates to the
Board of Directors for approval and/or to the Shareholders’ Meeting as the case may be.




o Consider enc nominate appropriate persons to assume the position of Chairman of the Executive Committee in
case of vacancy in line with criteria established for the succession of the Chief Executive Officer.

Executive Committee
As of February 14, 2025, the Executive Committee consisted of:

Mr.  Boonklee Plargs!i Chairman of the Group Executive Committee

Mr.  Semprascing 3ccnyachai Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee
Mr. Dumrong Kasemset, Ph.D. Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee
Mr.  Niwattumrong Boconsongpaisan Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee
Mr.  Arak Chonlatznon Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee
Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwen Member of the Executive Committee

The Board of Directors has delegated authority and duties to the Executive Committee as follows:

o Formuiate arc submit to the Board of Directors policies, direction, strategies, and management structure for the
Company’s business, in recognition of the status of the economy and competitive environment, informing the
shareholders of the Company.

o Prescrine anc propose to the Board of Directors Company business plans, budget, and delimitation of
management zutnority.

o Moniter and zursue cecmpliance with policy and management direction to ensure business efficiency.

o Monitcr ard “silew up on Company operating results as stipulated in the approved business plan.

o Assess anc evaluate lerge investments proposed by the Company.

o Take on otnher duties as may be required from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Management Team
As of December 31, 2204, the Company’s management team as defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission

consistec of the fol 2w:1g Dersons:

Mr.  Beconklee Rlargsis Chairman of the Group Executive Committee - Shin Corporation PLC
Mr.  Dumrong Kasamsat, ~h.D. Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee

Mr. Somprascng Becnyachai Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee

Mr.  Niwattumrong 3consongpaisan Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee

Mr.  Arak Choriatencn Vice Chairman of the Group Executive Committee

Mrs. Siripen Sitasuwen President

Mr.  Angk Panz-apichon Vice President - Finance and Accounting

Remuneration for Directors and Management Team
The Company ras a clearly defined remuneration policy, with remuneration for directors and the management team

)

reviewed annuely 2y he Remuneration Committee and submitted to the Board of Directors and shareholders for
approva.. Remunereiicn is adecuate and determined in a manner equitable with industry standards and is performance-

based as a way ‘0 rmcvate and ratain qualified directors.

The Company pays c¢irecior remuneration to the Chairman of the Board, independent directors and non-executive
directors only. Since =l =xecutive girectors already receive regular compensation as a member of management, they receive no

separate remureraticn £s cirectors. Remuneration for management is based on Company performance and the performance
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of each person. The Ccmpany nas in addition set up an ESCP program for management to motivate and retain management.

In 2004, remuneration was paid as follows:
1. Monetary remuneration
1.1 Totai remuneration for the Chairman of the Board of Directors and independent directors (five persons) was
Baht 7.89 million, which comprises salary, bonus, meeting allowance and provident fund. This excludes
remuneration for the Executive Committee and the management team.

Name 2004 remuneratlon (Baht Million)
Mr. “3_hAa‘napot Damaoong T - 577
Mr. Olan Chaipravat, Ph.D.** 0.78
Mr. Virach Aph metestamrong, Ph.D.** 0.75
Mr. Vitith Leenctapong™* 0.79
Mr. Suasak Va'asrt** 0.35
- Total - - ” 8.44
* Remu \era’non comp ises salary Sonus and provldent fund T 7he;aét[1a14c;ir<;tgr-é' r'er-'nfuneration is greater than the'figures
** Remuneration como>rises meeting allowance and bonus. shown in the 2004 financial statements (Baht 7.89 million)

due to underaccrued bonus.
1.2 Total remuneration for the managemen: team (six persons) was Baht 68.14 million which comprised szlary,

bonus, providert fund, and other remuneration. This excludes remuneration paid to the Vice Prasident of
Finance and Accounting.
2. Otrer remuneration
The Compazny estaktiished an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) program as a way to retain, motivate, and
reward tha Company’s diractors and employees 0 the Company’s best benefit. The ESOP program is a repeat,
five-year orogram wnereby the Company shall zllot the grant of warrants annually for five consecutive years.
The Company has s.bmitied an annual allocation of warrants to the annual shareholders’ meeting for approval.

So far, three progrars have been allotted and ars summerized as follows:

Description ' ESOP Program Grant 1 ESOP Program Grant2  ESOP Program Grant 3
Number of warraﬂts grarted 29, COO DOO vnits 18,083,700 units 13, 6”0 20C units
" Price S Baht-0- Beahi- O-  Bzht-C-
Exp]r_a_t_ on S No. moret an five years since the date of warrants grc.nted
~ Exercise Ratio " o - 1 warrant for 1.00540 shares o
* Exercise Price ™ - B‘ 17.704 Der share Bt ‘13 597 per share Bt 30 214 per share
ND“aEe—wé;a;tc oréﬁ@‘ T Merch 27, 2002 i\’/iAai/‘éo_ 2003 May 31, 20"4
List of directors and management receiving the warrants  (Unit) % (Unit) % (Unit) %
1. Mr .Boonklze Plangsir 12,426,200 42.85 9,484,600 52.45 7 083,700 51.85
2. Mr. Sompresorg Booryachai 3,244,500 1119 1,793,800 9.82 975,000  7.i4
3. Mr. Dumrong Kasemset, Ph.D. T 3244500 1.4 1,793,800 ©.82 978,000 7.14
4. Mir. Niwattumrong Bocnsongpaisan 1980800 6.83 633,600 350 764200 558
" 5. Mr. Arak Chonlatanon ~ 1,520,700 524 456,300 2.58 679,300  4.97
6. Mrs.Siripen Sitasuwar 2,665,800 9.9 r§43,‘7_ob"" 522 763400 559
‘7. Mr. Tanadit Charoenchan 243,800 0.84 316,500 1.75 170,200 1.25
ﬁ/bAeAE)?Warrant " Non-transferable unless received from underwriter or as an inheritance

** Because the company mede a cividend payout of greater than 50 percent of nat profit after tax, it was required by the documents
filing to the SEC to adjust the exercise ratio and the exercise price of the ESOP warrants, which was done on August 20, 2004,




Right and Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
The Company hes a pc.icy 0 provide equitable treatment to all shareholders, including minority shareholders, foreign
sharehoicers, institu*’cral invesicrs or major shareholders; their rights are outlined below.
1. The right tc receive sheare certificates, share transfers, and to be sufficiently informed of operating results and
managemert coiicies on a timely basis.
The right tc ar eguitable gividend.
The right to Deicipate, vote, make recommendations on decisions concerning major corporate actions such as
amendrents tc the Articies of Incorporation, appcintments to the Board of Directors, appointment of the Company’s
exterrz. audiic-, end issuance of new share capital.

4. Thneright tc s furnished with information concerning connecied transactions.

Therigrt tc a.cot directors.

The rigrht ic resel their shares to the company shouid the sharenolder disagree with the resolutions of the
sharencide s’ meeting “c amend the company’s Articies of Association concerning voting rights or dividend
paymen.

Mioreover, all sherel olcers have ecual rights as set fortn in the company’s Articles of Association, related laws, and
regulaticns. Te ansurs eqguitatle treatment for all sharehclders, the company provides regular and transparent
shareholders’ meatirgs, a mechanism to protect against the release of inside information, a system to oversee related
paries transacticns anc ic adecuately disclose compary information.

Shareholders’ Meetings

The Company ~as 2 :olicy to conduct regular and transparent shareholder’s meetings, establishing appropriate
procecures for gcenzre. sharehc ders’ meetings according io the law, including calling for a meeting, distribution of
supporting documenieiion and agenda as well as Boarc resolutions in both Thai and English. This encompasses the
mesting srocedUres a~d greparziion, and distribution of minutes in accordance with regulations issued by the Stock
Exchange of Treliars.

The cormpany nzs intrcduced a bar code system to facilitate registration procedures. Before the meeting begins, the
sharehoicers arz infsrmad of the rules, meeting, and votiing procedures, including their right to ask questions and give
opinions on items acdoressed in tne agenda. The Cnairman of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the Executive
Commitiee, suocor i lee merm2ers, and the external auditor shall attend the meeting to provide explanations and
answer cuesticrs rziezd Dy issues listed on the agenca. The Chairman of the meeting shall allot sufficient time to
encourege sharsnc.Ze s ic exprass their opinion and ask guestions. At every meeting, the Company shall appoint at
leas’ one inderendent tirector i undertake proxy voting on benalf of shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting
anc hac informed tre comoany prior to the meeting.

Minutes cf the sharehc ders’ mesting will be drawn up within 14 days, inclusive of details of questions arising during the
meeting end the arnswers, and t~en posted on the Company’s website so that the absent shareholders can gain access
anc apprise themseivas ¢f the minutes. Shareholders may cbtain any further information or submit their questions in
advance of the sh c.cers’ mzating by contacting the !nvestor Relations Department.
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Role with regards to Stakeholders
The Company assigns the highest priority to the rights of stakeholders, and has a policy to oversee and ensure the

appropriate priorities are maintained for all stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, the management team,

customers, business partners, creditors, and the public and the community at large, and shall facilitate cooperation

among the various groups of stakeholders according to their roles and duties to stabilize and smooth the running of the

Company's businesses, and respond fairly to the benefit of all parties.

Shareholders:

Employees:

Customers:

Competitors:

Public and
Community :

The Company aims at being a good representative for shareholders in carrying out the business in such
a way as to maximize satisfaction for shareholders with sustainable growth in the value of the Company
for the long term, including the disclosure of transparent and reliable information to shareholders.

The employees are the resources of best value, and are crucial to driving company achievement, so the
Company emphasizes developing and nromoting a gooa corporate culiure and working atmosphere. [t
encourages teamwork and encourages politeness between and among all employees, placing strong
emphasis on respect for the individual. Employment, appointments and rotation of employees is
considerec on the basis of the merit system and the best placement of human resources to maximize
the benefit to the Company. Employees shall be treated egually without discrimination in any form. The
Company is responsible for maihtafning a safe working atmosphere, safeguarding lives and
property of empioyees, and adhering sirictly to the couniry’s labour law.

The Compszny aims at satisfying its customers, building confidence in using the company’s procucts
and services by providing fop auality £t reasonable prices with the aim always of fostering excellent
customer rzlations. In this regard, the Company has established guidelines es follows:

Products and Services

The Company shall produce only excellent guality goods and services and with a steady improvement in
standards and disclosure of correct and undistoried information concerning its producis and services.
Protection of Customer Information

The directors, the management team, ard the employees of al! levels shall not disclose the information of
the customers without prior permission from the customers or authorized officers of the Group of
Companies, unless it is the information to be disclosed to the third party concerned according to the law.

The Compeny supports and promotes the policy of fair and free competition without monopoly nor
does it force business pariners to dezl solely with the Company. In addition, the Company has no
policy to compete on any other than a fair basis and will not engage in any practices to acguire
competitor information that are contrary to the law or moral standards.

The Company considers itself as a company built by and for Thai people and as such, it has a duty to
take a responsible role in society, helping to build society and undertake and initiate a wide range of
activities designed to help improve citizens ancd their communities, in a way, paying back a debt ic
society for the way in which society has allowed it to grow.




Business The conduct of business with any business partner is not to do anything to damage the reputation of the

Partners Comany nor e contrary to any laws governing equitable treatment in carrying out business and mutual

and Creditors :  in‘ersst between business partners. The selection of business partners will be done in a fair manner,
since the Company considers business partners as vital to jointly creating a value chain for customers.
Tre Company will hold to its promises and perform in accordance with creditor terms and conditions for
the repayment of principal, interest and guarantees.

Disclosure of Information and Transparency

It is the Company mission and policy to disclose to investors financial information, operating results, and other
information that is fair 2ccurate, complete, transparent, and issued in a timely manner for use for investment decisions.
An Investor Reigtions . nit was established in 1995 to communicate information to shareholders and investors through
various channels, inc.uding roadshows, meetings with analysts, press releases, teleconferences, investor and analyst
visits, answering gues’ions over the telephone and via e-mail, and by publication in various media and its own web site.
The Company has cevzloped a policy manual on investor relations activities in order to ensure thorough compliance with
all relevant laws anz ragu'ations.

in 2004, the Comgary arrangec four Analysts Briefing Meetings to announce the operating results of each quarter,
inviting investors anc enalysts o attend. Executive Commitiee members joined the meetings to provide explanations
and answer questicns raised by investors, analysts, and fund managers and other interested persons in attendance. The
four meetings were he'd as folicws.

o February 28, 2004 Shin Group Annua! Briefing

© May 14, 23C4 1Q04 Shin Group Quarterly Briefing
o August 17,2204 2Q04 Shin Group Quarterly Briefing
© Novembe- 14, 2004 3Q04 Shin Group Quarterly Briefing

Infcrmation disclosac during the meetings will also be presented on the Company web site to ensure fair and adequate
distribution of informe’ion to otner stakeholders. Interested persons are invited to contact the Investor Relations Unit for
more informaticn g% Tz 0-229S-5050 or e-mail investor@shincorp.com or via the web site www.shincorp.com.

Internal Controls and Risk Management

internal Controls
The Compary has a 3olicy to set up and maintain an efficient and effective internal control system. The Board of
Direcicrs and trhe management team have the duty and responsibility to arrange and maintain the internal control system
as well as review thz eTliciency of the internal control system regularly in order to safeguard shareholders’ investment and
the Company’s asse’s. The internal control system covers the areas of finance, operations, compliance, and risk
management. This e¥'cient iniernal control system provides reasonable assurance that the following objectives and
goals of the Ccmpzany cen De echieved.

o Religtility a~d irtegrity of information and financial reports.

¢ Comgience with reguiations, policies, procedures, and related laws.

o Safeguarning cf the Cocmpany’s assets.

O

Efficient, =fzctive, and operational economy for employment of resources.
o The ooerzi’~g resulis are consistent with the Company’s objectives and goals, and are being carried out
efficiently.
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A good internal control system can provide early warning signals of any problems as well as reduce risk to an acceptable level.
The Company’s internal control system has been established based on the internal control framewocrk developed by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). The following summaries the key conirol
systems implemented by the Company.

1. Organizational & Control Ervironment

The Company has formulated business plans complete with objectives, strategies, vision and budget and has
determined evaluation criteria. .t restructured the organization fo align it with the business plans. The Company has
implemented a good corporate governance system, hiring qualifed personnel and continuously develops its human
resources. It has established key policies and procadures 1o bz used as guidelines to control financial transactions,
purchasing activit es and risk management. Codes of Conduct were also developad as guidelines for directors,

management, anc employees.

2. Risk Management System

The Compary has iad in placzs a formalized enterprise-wice risk management system since 2002. The Risk Management
Unit, Risk Management Commititee and Audit Committee play major roles in overseeing the implemantatior: of a risk
managemen’ system. 3isk is integral to busiress activities and everyone in the company in all business units have the
task of performing risk assessmants when executing business transactions.

3. Management Control
The Compary has establishec controls over and segregation of duties io ensure there is a cneck and balance system,
outlining prooer wiitten autho-ity and approva!l levels and iimits. Guidelines for connected and related iransactions have

also been developed o ensure compliance with laws.

4. Information and Communication

The Company has impiemented a management information system to assist in decision-making. Critical information and
data are collected, anailyzed and stored in the Company’s c atabass. Two-way communications are dong efficiently within
the Company. At the Board level, information and supporiing documentation are provided to the Board of Directors to
make possible more informed decision making.

5. Monitoring
The monitoring system is hendled by the management team and the Board of Directors to assess adherence to
established plans. The interna: audit unit is responsib’e for following up, independently assessing controls, reporting and

giving recommendations to the management team.

At the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 2/2004 held on February 18, 2005, with the Audit Committes present, the Board of
Directors assessed the Compary'’s five areas of internal contro! system: organizational and control environment, risk
management, management control, information and comm.unication, and monitoring, and found that the internal control

system was effective.




PricewatesrhouseCocpzrs ABAS Limited, the Company’s extiernal auditor who performed the audit of the 2003 financial

statemenis, conclucac nhat there was no material deficiency in the Company’s accounting and financial contro! system.

Internal Audit

The Company nes esizslished an internal Audit unit that reports directly to the Audit Committee and advises, maonitors,
anc assaesses {he efactiveness ¢f the internal control sysiem, risk management system, and corporate governance to
ensire the internal corirol system, the risk management system and corporate governance are effective and adequate.

The Internal Aucit unit serforms Us duties independently, and has sufficient personnel, resources, and budget to carry
out cperatione,, cord iance, financial, and informaticn technology audits.
The augi: plans zre cevzicted and designed based on risks. Tne audit results and progress will be reported to the Audit

Commiitee on & guertely oasis.

Risk Management
There ras vesn = colicy managing risk throughout the organization in place since 2002. The Risk

Managerent Scmiitice 2nd the isk Management Unit were formed to establish policy and manage both internal and

extearnal risks, nclucing writing risk management guidelines tc reduce risks to an acceptable level. Communication with

emzloyess was uncsrzken anc ‘nis included training and workshops to bring them to greater awareness and realization
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of the importance of ‘isx management.

Employees, the manzgement team, and ali units are all to take charge of risks and responsibility for risk management to

keep them to an accep’zbie level. The Company’s risk management processes are iliustrated as follows.

1. Establish Policies and Criteria

Set out the policies, okisctives, scope of responsibilities, criteria, and risk management procedures to line up with the
strategies, goals, and business pians that are reviewed annually. This process is to be performed at the same time as
business planning to ersure they align.

2. Risk identification

Identify the risks affecting the achievement of goals and objectives. Risks arise from both internal and external factors
and must be identified. These include such things as environment, law and regulation changes, financial, information
technology, informatior. for decision making, investor relations, portfolio management, human resources, reputation,
security system, anc among others. The Company will then set priorities and rank risks before considering a control
system. The risks that were identified as high and exiremely high will be analyzed and action plans will be set out
immediately.

3. Risk Analysis

Ascertain the leve! of “he residual risk after assessing the existing control, and prioritized risk level based on the likelihood
and the impact cf risx events. If the residual risk is still high or extremely high, executives are to establish an action plan
immediately. If the resic.al risk is at medium or low, managers may set out the action plan or it may be resolved during

normal operational processes.

4. Risk Treatment
Establish procedures and plans for the key risks identified at the risk analysis step. Risk treatment can be done in various
ways; such as risk ccnirol, risk transfer, risk avoidance, risk expioitation, and risk acceptance.

5. Monitoring and Review

Monitor risk managemeant resulis to ensure they are consistent with the established action plans as well as risk
management assessment. The Risk Management Unit is to follow up and report on risk management results and risk
manageiment assessment to the fop executives and the Audit Committee.

Audit Fee

In 2004, SHIN and its subsidiaries paid the following fees to audit firm

o Audit fee of 3aht 4.8 million and Baht 5.7 million to the audit firm and its related firm respectively.
o  (Other fees such as service fee and tax consulting fee totaling Baht 0.8 million.

There is no other fee except the stated fees as mentioned.

Business Codes of Conduct

To maintain high ethice. standards, the Company has formulated a Business Code of Conduct to guide Company
directors, managemen: and employees as they perform their duties in a highly ethical manner. The Code of Conduct
covers the interest ¢ siakeholders, related party transactions, compliance with laws and regulations, protection and
proper use of compary assets, monitoring the handling of insider information, confidentiality and the Company’s
securities trading, givirg interviews, and preventing conflicts of interest and loss of corporate opportunity.

The Company hes ar-argec ongeing programs to communicate ethical values to alf employees. In addition, management
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and supervisors &t ali levels have he obligation ‘o encolrage thelr subordirates to abide by the Code of Conduct, anc
always behave as mcdel citizens and to monitor sudordinates’ ccmpliance. All employees, management, and directors
are encoureged to report any violetion of the Code of Conduct to their supervisors, the internal audit department or the
Audit Comnittee.

Conflict of Interest
The Board of Directers has zstablished policy to contrc! nossiie conilict of interest among related parties, such as
directors, the management team, major share~olcers or erioloyees, in order 1o ensure integrity, fairness, and ransparsncy

of all transactions. What comrprises conflict of interest is stated and definec in the Business Code of Conguct.

Related Party Transactions

The Board of Directors has established policies governing relatec party anc connected transactions to avoid conflict of
interest and to control these transactions. Relaied party iranseciions invclving assets and services will be madszs on
terms and pricing tha? has been negotiated on an arm’s I2ngth basis. If the product price or service is not aveilable, the
Company shall compare external party transactions urder the same or similar conditions. The Company may use
information from the report ¢f an independent appraiser nired by ne Company to compare =rices for impertant refatec
party transzctions to snsure “2zsonable pricing and the Company’s best interest. Approval for related party transactions
is based upon the role of regular transactions. The authority of the individual authorized to approve the ransaciion will be
determined according to the iransaction type and the authorizaticn limit.

The Company has no policy 2 give financial support in the form of loans or as a loan guarantor for iis group companies.

A manager or direcior who tas a conflict of interest will not be z2/'owed o vote on or approve a transacticn. The Audit
Committee is obliged to review significant related party transacticns 'n orcer to monitor and drevent conflicts of interest
as well as ‘o protect the interest of minor sharehclders. in exscuting reieled party transactions, the Company shal:
comply with the regulations cf the Securities and Excharge Commission ard the Stock Zxchange of Thailand.

Monitoring the Handling of Insider Information

The Company has 2 policy to protect anc prevent materials and undisclosed and corfidential information from
unauthorized access and misuse of the information. It has devealoped an information security policy that classifies
documents as to the ievel of cenfidentiality, controlling access tc a need-to-know level only.

In addition, directors, management anc employees are prohibited from using information that has not been released to
the public to trace tne Company securities for their own or others’ interesis. The policy also requires them to avoid or

refrain from trading Company securities one month prior to the reiease of such information to the public.

The Company has he'd informational meetings and trainirg sessicns as well as distributing wiitten guidelines governing
trading the Company’s securiiies and announces the per.od in wiich trading cannot be undertaken.

The Board of Directors requires the Compliance Unit =0 report the holdings and change in holdings of Company
securities held by directors and managemen? to the Board of Direciors’ Mesting every quarter.

Offences against the above shall be regarded as opposing the Company’s policy and are subject to serious disciplinary
actions according to Sections 241 and 242 of the Securities and Stock Exchange Act B.E.2535.




&7

SHIN CORPORATION
ORGANIZATION CHART

Nominating Committee

{j BXECUTIVE COMMITTEE - —l ——> Remuneration Committee
( CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ‘f — Audit Committee
Risk Management : : ' [ I Internal Audit
Committee Ve PRESIDENT : > & Risk Management

L/

Portfolio Management
Accounting & Finance
Compliance & Legal
Investor Relations
Human Resources
Information Technology
Corporate Affairs

New Business




68

$002 £00¢

saseyg AeuipiQ
diog ewyseau)

euoneuIBIU| ALBIN

002 €002
saleus AeuipiQ

O7d ALl

Y00¢ £002

saseys Aeupig

PE1 0D MO tende)

ooy 00c

00a 004

00S 0S¢

0008t 000'6

000°9vS 000°'cle

=¥00¢ «£00e
saieyg AleuipiO

O'1d SHI9IES VIS

002 JeaA ayl Jo sauelpisgns sil pue Auedwo? ayl

002 £00¢
saseys AreuipiQ

"PIT 0D BISYAY UL

0002 000°2

000°G 000's

Y008 €002
sanuaged

002 ‘¥ ARy UO pauzal sem BUOOY ¥I0S eNUD Sy (S
p00Z ‘L1 ABIN UO 82UBWIWOY 10 ANSIUIA a4l yum fendeo paieisiBor ui iyeg ¢ o1 yeg 01 woyj aseys s,Auedwod syl jo anjea Jed oyl ut pabueyo O1d ayjeIes uls (2

eg 0L anje Jed (1

‘0z Jopun abe uaIpjyo pue asnods AQ sBUIP|OY SAPN|OU) SaIMUIGaP pue Saieys AIBUIPIO JO Jaquuinu 8y} ‘y00g ‘LE J8quiads( Jo sy

Y002 £00¢

sateyg AeupiQ

P 0D $82IMag pue

suoneonddy

000'gL 0002}
000°L 00S°L
000°651 000651
002 £00¢
sareys AleuipiQ

57d 901AI3S OJU] PAOUBAPY

ot V]38
0L 0z
038 01
06 06
002 €002

saleyg AeuIpIO

"PYT 00 XoquoleN O

000'02 -

¥00S €008

saimusqa(

002 £00¢

saieyg Aeuipio

“PIT 00 SINUBA QY

§52'906 005888
000°28¢ -
oov'eLe 0G.'981
000°2re’t -

006'685'v0r 006685 +OY

¥002 €002

seleys AeuipiQ

071d uoteiodiod ums

10308410

1030817 Juspuadapu]
B9INLIWIOD UPNY

oL} JO JOqLUDIN
SORLUILIOD NPNY

8y} JO JBqLUBIN
1010840

J0y8uQq

1010811

ioyauq

SSTHLILIOD IPNY

ayy Jo ueLurEyD)

pug s100ali] JO PIEOg
ay} JO UBWUIEYD) SDIA
10128410 JO pieoyq

auy) JO uewLRYD

uotsod

10309413
10)02.41(] Juspuadapu)
S3PIUWOYH PNy

8y} JO JBquapy
FORIULLOT IpNY

8y} JO JOqLUaIN
10328.I(]

Joyoaig

10300413

FOLET]

SIPUUIWOY yPNY

8U) JO UBWLIBYD)
pue 101991((] JO preog
3y} JO UBLLIIBYD) BOIA

10108417 J0 pieOg
3y} JO UBLLIRYD

uonisod

 Buo0y| %003 enyD "Sin
Jselep yeseung upy

Buodeinuss HUNA YN

‘aud

‘Buosweealawydy YOBIA WA
ueMNSelS uaduig "SI
uoueRjUoYD Mely I\
uesedbuosucog BuoiunyemiN Ua
uisbueld sapjucog U

"Q'yd ‘renesdieyn wieiQ U\

Suodewre(q jodeueyg U\

awen

« DUOO) D08 BNYD "SHN
Hsefep yesens

Buodenusa NupA N

‘Qud

‘Buoiweiestswliydy yoeIIA N
uemnseps uadulg 'sipy
uoueielUOYD) Meiy U
uesredbuosuoog BuoiUNEEMIN N

sbueld aapuoog Uy

‘Q'ud venesdieyd wieio In

Buodewreq jodeueyg Wy

aweN

ul Buipjoysseys ,s101291iq




Related Transacticns

During the year, Snin Scrooration Public Company Limited (SHIN) and its subsidiaries and joint ventures had entered into
a number of transactions with related parties, the terms of which are negotiated on an arm’s length basis in the ordinary
course of business ard according to normal conditions. The details of related transactions are disclosed in Note 30 to the
Financial Statements ercing at Deacember 31, 2004,

Significart relatec trensections between SHIN, its subsidiaries, joint ventures, and the related companies are as follows:
1. Office space rentz’ 2»d facility service

Type and nature of transaction

SHIN, its subsidiaries, 2nd joint ventures entered into rental and related service agreements for office space for period
ranging from 2 to 3 years with companies held by the company’s major shareholders, the Shinawatra family. SHIN and its
subsidiaries and oin: ventures have fully invested in public utilities on the lease promises and the utilities are fully

functioning. Any char.ge in the leased premises will create additional costs. The rental and services fees are comparable

to the market price a~d in ine ordinary course of business and according to normal trade conditions.

Related Companies Relationship Type of Transaction Amount (Baht Million)
1. 8.C. Office Park Shinawatra family, a major Office space rental and 40.1
Company Limited shareholder of SHIN, holds facility service
30 percent
2. PT Corporaticns Shinawatra family, a major Office space rental and 1.9
Company Limitec snareholder of SHIN, holds facility service
39.99 percent
3. Pramaisuri Property Shinawatra family, a major Space rental and facility 8.0
Company Limitec shareholder of SHIN, holds service

©9.89 percent
4. Asset Corporation Shinawatra family, a major Office space rental and 85.4
Public Company _irited shareholder of SHIN, holds facility service
50.82 percent
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2. Advertising Expenses

Type and nature of transaction

SC Matchbox Comipany Limited was provided a televisicn advertising service from a company held by SHIN’s major
shareholders, the Shinawatra family. The related company’s television program viewers are the same target group of the

Company. The service fee is the same rate as for external customers in the ordinary course of business and according to

normal trade conditionrs.

Related Companies Relationship Type of Transaction Amount (Baht Million)

Howcome Entertainment Shinawatra family, a mgjor Television advertising 2.3
Company Limited shareholder of SHIN, helds expense
32 percent

3. Construction of satellite
Type and nature of transacticn
SATTEL entered into a satellile construction agreement with Codespace inc, which has common shareholders with

Spacecode LLC, a SATTEL's subsidiary. Codespace ‘nc is an expe:t in broadband technology. The service fee based on

hourly rates alus reimbursement of actual expenses.

Related Comparnies Relationship Type of Transaction Amount (Baht Million)
Codespace .nc SATTEL ard Codespace Hired by SATTEL for satellite 60.2
Inc were joint owner of technology development in the
Spacecode LLLC whick is IPSTAR project.

SATTEL’s subsidiary

4. Income from computer and cother related services

Related Companies Relationship Type of Transaction Amount (Baht Million)
Shinawatra family’s Shinawatra family, a major - Computer , payroll 5.8
companies shareholder of SHIN, is the and Internet services

major sharenholder - Advertising services 4.6




5. Others
Related Companies/Parties Relationship Type of Transaction Amount (Baht Miilion)
1. Other relatec cormpzries: Car rental, space rental, and 3.1
- Alpine goif & sacls Shinawatra family is the major  other services

clup Company L'mited shareholder

- OAlleasing Cormoany  Shinawatra family is the major

Limited shareholder
- Netiona: insurarce Cirector of SHIN is the major
Company .imited shareholder
2. Shareholders and Dividend paid to Shinawatra  Dividend paid 2,710.9
directors 0? SHIN family, major sharehoider of

SN, and directors which are

management of SHIN

Related Transacticon Policy

The Group has a olicy on relaied transaction procedures based on arm's length principle. The prices are normally
charged at the same rate as external customers. If there is no comparable external customer price, SHIN will compare
with the products cr sarvices given under similar conditions and circumstances. In some cases, we seek appraisal from
indeperdent const.iienis to ensure that the price is fair and reasonable. Similar to other transactions, the approval must
come from autrorizec person (s) according to the type and size of transaction. Moreover, management with conflict of
interest in the trarsaction will not have approval authority for the transaction. Additionally, the Audit Committee is
responsible for reviewing the significant related transactions every quarter in order to ensure that no conflict of interest

occurred.

The reiated trarsacticns, which required by the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), are made in according to the SET’s
rules and regulations.

Policy and Trends of Related Transaction
The relzted transactic s are made as part of normal business operations. Therefore, it is likely that such transactions will

occur in the fuiure cn 2 continue! basis. SHIN will place special emphasis on suitable business conditions and fair pricing

methods.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Overview

On 31 December 2034, the value of investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associaies (as per Eguity Method)

increased by Baht 3.3 villion cr 9.6 percent to Baht 37.4 billion from Baht 34." billion at the year end 31 December 2003.

The increase came from the share of subsidiaries’ net results, net of dividends received of Baht 5.8 billion. The primary

source of the added value wes the share of nat profit from AiS.

Table 1: Investment value anc share of net results

Irvestment portion (%)

Compoany 3% Dec
2004~
AlS 42.91
SATTEL 51.40
v 53.01
TAA 50.00
OK 60.00
Others
Total

31 Dec
2003

43.05
51.53
53.22
50.00
60.00

rvestment value

Unit: Baht million

Share of net results

31 Dec 31 Dec % increase

2004 % 2003 Y% 2004 2003 (decrease)
23,662 79.3 26,24¢ 769 8,686 7,985 9
4,635 724 4,377 128 437 538 {19)
2,144 57 2,107 6.2 26 (448) 105

71 02 195 06  (124) @ (4033
459 12 599 1.8 (140) (0) -
418 1.2 572 1.7 1) 121 (101)
37,3892 100.0 34,002 7000 8,803 8,174 2]

* Percentage decreased from the exercise of warranis under the ESOP program.

In the year 2004, SEIN again recompensed ts shareholders by zaying dividends using cash from d'vidends received

from its subsidiaries and asscciates, particularly from AIS. Details of dividends received and paid are as follows:

Source

Dividends received
Arnual dividend
AS

Other subsidiaries

interim dividend
AS

Total dividends received
Dividends pzid

Annual dividend

‘nterim dividend
Total dividends paid
Net dividends received

For period

2403
2003

104

2403
1-04

Unit: Baht million

Baht / share Amount
2.70 2,654

220

2.15 2,717

5,591

0.80 2,653

0.92 2,714

5,367

224

In February 2005, the 3oard cf Directors of SHIN approved the payment of dividends for the year 2004 at the rate of 3aht

2.00 per share, of which Bah: 0.92 per share had already been pzid as an interim dividend. The remaining Baht 1.08 per

share will be paid in April 20C5.




Operating Resul’s

SHIN is a holding cornoany whese primary investments are in telecommunications, satellites, television broadcasting,
media, tudget aiflinz £2d consumer finance. AIS, the leading cellular phone service provider and its principal investment
(42.91 percent stake), s not censolidated but is recorded by an equity method. For analytical review purposes, SHIN
assessed the ogeralonal results and financial position of each major investment separately. The operational results of new

businesses, the nucge! airline anc consumer finance were insignificant, so their results are not included in the analysis.

Table 2: SHIN’s selectzd financiai information (the Company only)
Unit: Baht million
31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2003 % increase

(decrease)
Normelized net prot” 8,700 8,047 8.1
Net profit 8,700 9,596 (9.3)
Other income 32 1,638 (98.0)
Share cf net results 8,893 8,174 8.8
EPS {Bant) 2.95 3.27 (9.8)

* Normalized net zrofit in 2003 exciuded other income from reversal of provision for liabilities and charges from loan guarantees

Net profit
SEIN’s rormaiized ~el orofit in 2004 increased by 8.1 perceni from Bzht 8.0 billion in 2003 to Baht 8.7 billion in 2004.
Heowever, net 3-¢fit 1 2004 deceased by 9.3 percent from Bant 9.8 billion in 2003, if non-recurring income from reversal

Other income
in 20C3, the Ccmrzry hed non-recurring income of Baht 1.5 billion from the reversal of provision for liabilities and
charges from -2 !car guarantze incurred by successfully negotiating the release of corporate guarantee to a former

subsidiary with a trirc

9

arty. The final settlement was agreed upon in the amount of USD 3.1 million or approximately
Baht 132 millior. Tre 'cmaining zrovision balance for iiebilities and charges was reversed and written back to the “other
income” line [lem ir. i-2 income statement. As a result, other income in 2004 decreased by 98.0 percent from Baht 1.6
biliion ir 2003 ¢ Bzn? 32 millier.

Share of net results from investments
Share ¢f net resulis T-om subsiciaries, joint ventures, and associates increased by 8.8 percent to Baht 8.9 billion from

Bah 8.2 villion in 27CE. The mein reasons were as follows: (see table 1)

AlS: The share ¢f net ~csults frem AIS increased by $.2 percent from Baht 7.96 billion in 2003 to Baht 8.69 billion in 2004.
The ircrease rezulicd Trorm the growth in subscriber bese, especially in prepaid subscribers, and a decrease in allowance

for dousiful acsour’s

SATTEL: The srare ¢ ne: resu’s from SATTEL decreased by 18.8 percent from Baht 538 million in 2003 to Baht 437
miiion "~ 2004, Tnic v 78 mmziniy Zue o the decrease in revenus from trensponder services and loss on foreign exchange
{white SATTEL ~ac gz - fom fcreign exchange in 20C3). Alsc, marketing expenses and allowance for doubtful accounts

e Tatal

increesed in 2224 {0 iast yeer
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ITV: The share of net results from ITV increased 105.8 percent from a net loss of Baht 448 million in 2003 to a net profit of
Baht 26 million in 2004. This was mainly due to the increase in revenue as a result of improvement in TV ratings and a

reduction in the concession fee following the Arbitration Panel’s cecision.

Financial Position

SHIN’s net zssets (net of liabiiitias) or shareholders’ equity increased by Baht 3.8 billion from Baht 32.7 billion at the end
of 2003 to Baht 38.5 billion at the end of 2004. This was primarily cue to a net increase in the velue of investments in the
amount of Baht 3.3 billion (net of dividends received of Baht 5.6 billion), with the main increase from the share of net

results from AIS.

Cash Flow
SHIN had net cash outflow from ooerating activities in the amount of Baht 44 miliion for 2004, while its cash inflow for
2003 was Baht 101 million. This was mainly due to the final receiot of payment on an accounts receivable cf telecom

project in 2C03.

SHIN had net cash infiow from investment activities in the amount of Baht 5.9 billion from major activities as follows:
- Dividencs received from subsidiaries and associates of Baht 5.6 billion.
- Cash proceeds from sale of investment in TMC to CSL_ (a subsidiary of SATTEL) in the amount of Baht 305 million.

SHIN had nst cash outflow from financing activities in the amcunt of Baht 5.4 billion mairly from major activities as
follows:

- Dividenc paid of Baht 5.4 billion.

- Paymen® on long-term loans of Baht 236 million.

- Cash received from the ESOP project of Baht 223 million.

Capital Structure and Liquidity
SHIN’s liquidity ratio rose to 34.36x as of December 31, 2004, from 4.89x as of December 31, 2003, due to an increase
in cash from dividends received and disposal of investment in TMC.

The debt to equity ratio increased slightly to 0.09x as of December 31, 2004 from 0.10x of December 31, 2003, as aresult
of growth in sharenolders’ eguity, which was generated from operating resuits and the release from provisions for loan

guarantee.

Advanced Info Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries {AlS)

Operating Results

AlS’ net profit was Baht 20.3 aillior, growing 9.3 percent from last year because of growth in its customer base brought
by steady growth in the market and demand for prepaid One-2-Czill. in 2004, its customer base increased by 1.9 million
subscribers or 14.7 percent from 31 December 2003 to 15.2 millicn subscribers, comprising 2.1 million postpaid (GCSM
ADVANC ard GSM 1800) subscribers, and 13.1 million prepaid {Cne-2-Calli) subscribers.




Revenue

AIS generated total revenue of Baht 96.4 billion in 2004, increasing 7.6 percent from 2003. Revenue from services and
equipment rentais wes £3.6 billion, increasing by 14.4 percent from the previous year due to an increase in subscriber base
especially for One-2-Jell. AlS hac attractive promotion campaigns, including “Sawasdee” and “Freedom Choices” scheme.
Average Revenuz Far Jser (ARPU) for GSM ADVANC and One-2-Calll was Baht 1,233 and Baht 359, respectively,
increased from 200C. This was Gue to sales promotions that offered options and price plans clearly differentiated for
customer lifestyles. Fevsnue from handset sales decreased by Baht 3.7 billion or 23.5 percent from 2003 to Baht 12.0 billion

as a resuli of a decreass in both sales volume and selling price, affected by intense competition in the handset market.

Cost of services and sales

Total costs came to 32t 53.0 billion, an increase of 7.2 vercent from 2003. Cost of services and equipment rentals was
3aht 22.4 billion, grewia of Baht 3.1 billion or 15.8 percent from 2003 due to higher network amortization resulting from
expansion in the moaiie service network. Concession fees ana excise taxes amounted to Baht 19.9 billion, an increase of

12.7 percent from 23C2, in line with the rise in revenue from mobile services. Cost of sales decreased by 14.0 percent

Selling and adminisirative expenses
Total selling anc zdminisirative expenses in 2004 amounted to Baht 11.0 billion, a decrease of Baht 1.3 billion or 10.5 percent.
The decrease mainly resulted from a decrease in bad debt expense due to efforts that strengthened collection performance.

Financia! Position

Assets

At the end of 2004, tc:a! assets were Baht 121.2 billion, 3.0 percent lower than 2003, mainly due to depreciation and
amortizetion of plar?, croperty and equipment and assets under the concession agreement. However, cash and cash
eguivalents increased rom operations.

Liabilities
Total liaiilities were 3zt £3.1 bilion, a decrease of Baht 12.2 billion, or 18.7 percent. This was mainly due to redemption
of long-term cebenurss (Baht 8.0 billion) and repayment on borrowing (Baht 4.9 billion).

Shareholders’ equity
At the end of 2204, ¢zl shareholders’ equity was Baht 68.1 billion, an increase of Baht 8.5 billion from 2003, mainly
resuliing from net 007 of Baht 20.3 billion minus Baht 12.5 billion dividend paid.

Liquidity

At the end of 2004, Ai€ recorded net cash inflow from opérating activities of Baht 38.9 billion, comparable with last year.
AlS had net czsh oztfow in investing activities of Baht 13.1 billion, decreased from Baht 16.4 billion of last year, as a
resuit of lower invesimant in assets under concession. AlS' net cash outflow in financing activities was Baht 25.0 billion,
mainly cue to rederaption of lorg-term debentures, borrowing, and dividend payments. Thus, at the end of 2004, cash

and cas’ equivelen’s i“crezsed Dy Baht 817 million.
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Shin Satellite Public Company Limited and Subsidiaries (SATTEL)

The IPO of CSL in Aoril 04 diluted the investment in CSL from 50.02 percent to 40.02 percent, changing the status cf the
investment in CSL. from a sudsidiary to an associate, and the method of recording contribution was changed from full
consolidation to equity method from the second quarter of 2004,

Operating Results
SATTEL reported consolidated net profit for the year 2004 of Bah? 856 million, a decrease from Baht 1.1 billion in 2003.

Sales and service income
SATTEL reported corsolidated sales and service income of Baht 5.1 billion, a decrease of Baht 685 million or 11.8

percent from last vear, mainly due to the change in the status of CSL.

However, if the revenue for 2304 of CSL was consolidated, SATTEL. would report consolidated sales and service income

of Baht 6.7 billion, an increass of Baht 813 million or 14.C percent from last year.

Revenue from transponder services in 2004 was Baht 3.1 killion, a cecrease of Baht 166 million or 5.1 percent compared to
Baht 3.3 billion last year. This comprised of Baht 502 million from PSTAR service, an increase of 243.8 percent, and 3aht
2.6 billion from Thaicom, a decrease of 16.7 percent. The increase in the IPSTAR service anc sales of IJT gateway came
from concentration on IPSTAR marketing activities and the installation of ail seven IPSTAR first generation gateways. This
was offset by a decrease in revenue from transponder services due to the end of transponder service agreements with
Department of Space, India (D08} in 2003 and the mandatory termination of a transponder service agreement with one

client wha is facing financial trouble.

Revenue from the telephone network business in 2004 was Baht 1.6 billion, an increase of Baht 219 million or 16.3
percent compared to Baht 1.3 billion in 2003. This was the result of a gradual increase in sudscribers of 122 percent to
LTC’s Mobile Prepaid services. This was accompaniad by an increase in minutes of usage of subscribers.

Revenue from the Internet business in 2004 was Baht 408 million, & decrease of Baht 785 million or 65.7 percent
compared to Bah® 1.2 billion for 2003. This was largely & result of the change in the status of CSL. However, if CSL's
revenue for 2004 had been consolidated, revenue from Irternet services would be Baht 1.5 billion, a steady increase of
22.4 percent from the orevious year. This is due to the high growth of the Internet industry, especially in ADSL and leased
line services. Also, the consolidated sales and service income of 2004 increased from the revenue of printing and
distributing phone directories business of TMC, which SATTEL has acquired in March 2004.

Cost of saies and services
SATTEL reported consolidated cost of sales and services of Baht 3.2 billion decreased by Baht 316 million, or 8.9 percent

from last year.

Costs relating to transponder leasing and related services were Baht 2.18 billion, an increase of 1.1 percent from Baht
2.16 billion in 20083. This was duz to an increase of Baht 240 millicn in the cost of providing IPSTAR service, refiecting the
cost of sale of IPSTAR user terminals and depreciation of the IPSTAR gateways. This was offset by a decrease of Baht
217 million in cos’s relating to Thaicom business, mainly from a drop of 3aht 153 million in the concession fezs in

accordance with lower transponder service revenue.




Costs reiating ‘¢ the “e.cohone business amounted to Baht 737 million, an increase of 21.8 percent from Baht 605 million last
year. This was because SATTEL nes been expanding and developing its fixed line and mobile network in Cambodia and Laos.
This led to an increase i amortization of telephone network eguipment from the previous year. CamShin’s revenue sharing cost

in 2004 was lower trar 17 2303 fc:lowing a reduction in rate of revenue sharing from 11 percent to 7 percent since July 2004.

Costs associaied with “he internet business were Baht 275 million, or a 64.2 percent decrease from Baht 769 million last
year. This was mair.y cue o the change in the status of CSL. However, if CSL’s cost of Internet business for 2004 was
consolicated, ne corsclidated cost of providing Internet service in 2004 would be Baht 919 million, an increase of 19.5
percent from last year, 2s a resuil of an increase in international leased line costs related to the expansion of the customer
base and {o mainia:n sarvice gueality. Also, the cost of sales and services of 2004 increased from the cost of printing and
distributing phene cirectories business of TMC, which SATTEL has acguired in March 2004.

Selling and adminisirative expenses

SG&A was Bent 1.C &ilior in 2804, a decrease of Baht 102 million, or 9.2 percent compared to Baht 1.1 billion in 2003.
This was mainly duz ‘o the change in the status of CSL. However, if the SG&A for 2004 of CSL was consolidated, the
consolidated SG&A ¢’ 2004 weuid be Baht 1.5 billion, an increase of Baht 358 million or 32.4 percent. This was mainly
because of the recognition of SG&A of printing and distributing phone directories business of TMC following iis

acquisition in March 2504.

Gain (Loss) on exchange rate
SATTEL reporied 2 icss of Baht 28 million in foreign exchange in 2004, in contrast to a gain of Baht 120 million in the

previous year.

Other income
SATTE s other iIncemz wes Baht 334 million, an increase of Baht 42 million or 14.4 percent compared to Baht 292 million

in 2C03. This wes ma~y etiribuiable to a gain of Baht 294 million on an unwound / exercised option contract.

Financial Position

Assets

At the end of 2004, SATTZL reporied total assets of Baht 27.6 billion, an increase from the end of 2003 of Baht 2.5 billion
or 8.8 sercert. .nvzsiment in “ne iPSTAR project and ihe expansion of the telephone network in Cambodia and Lzaos
accourted forinis incraase. In 2004, SATTEL presenied CSU's net assets as an investment in an associate because of the
change in the status = CSL foilewing its IPO, as described above.

Liabilities

SATTzUs tota: zorrowing at the end of 2004 was Baht 16.3 billion, an increase of Baht 1.3 billion from Baht 15.0 billion at

-yt
[

the enc of 2CCE. Tris s iargely accounted for by the IPSTAR project.

Sharehoider’s equily

SATTE s paic up cagital increased from Baht 4.37 billion at the end of 2003 to Baht 4.38 billion because of the exercise
of warrants uncer ‘1e Z8CP program. In addition, SAT T EL recorded an unrealized gain on dilution of the investment in
CSL ¢ Baht 373 miilcn under shareholders’ equity and dividends paid out in 2003 of Baht 218 million. Therefore, the

shareho.ders’ eguity vwas 3aht 2.2 billion at the end of this year.
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Liquidity
At the end of 2004, SATTEL had a current ratio of 0.44x, down from 0.57x at the end of 2003. This was because of an increase
in the current porticn of long-term loans for the IPSTAR project of around Baht 1.1 billion. At the end of 2004, the debt to equity

ratio was 1.78x.
ITV Public Company Limited (ITV)

Operating Resulis
2004 was aiso a benchmark year with ITV posting its first year net profit of Baht 205 million, which resulted from an 8.1
percent increase in revenues and & 30.6 percent decline in total expenses from last year.

Revenues

ITV's revenues continued to increase, showing an 8.1 percent rise from 2003. Advertising income amounted tc Baht 1.4
billion, or a 7.6 percent increase from the previous year, caused by increasing market share from 14 percent to 16 percent
in 2004. Air time renta! totaled Baht 403 million, or a 12.4 dercent increase from the previous year as a result of arise in

airtime rate.

Costs and SG&A

In 2004, ITV’s cost of service and SG&A was Baht 1.4 billion which is a decrease of 5.9 percent from last year due to the
decrease of cost of service by Baht 136 million, or 12.5 percent. This was due to a reduction 'n entertainment
programming cosis brought by changes in the production scheme from “hired production” basis to “revenue sharing”

or “airtime sharing” basis.

Concession expense
ITV recordec a concession exdense of Baht 230 million, based on the required minimum return set in accordance with
the verdict passed by the arkitrator on 30 January 2004 requiring a downward adjustment of the required minimum

concession compensation.

Financial Position

Assets

At the end of 2004, ITV's tota! assets amounted to Baht 2.2 billior, a decrease from the Baht 215 million at the end of
2003, or 6.7 percent. This was mainly due to a decline in accounts receivable as a result of improved trading account

monitoring and collection maragement and a decline in concession assets as a result of amortization.

Liabilities

Tota! liabilities stood at Baht 1.3 biliion, reflecting a drop c¢f Baht 445 million, or 25.1 percent. The decline resuited from
full repayment of short-term leans and a reduction in the amounts of long-term loans outstanding brought by scheduled
and early payments made possible by excess liquidity brought by profits.

Shareholders’ equity

At the end of 2004, TV’s total shareholders’ equity was Batt 1.6 billion, an increase of Baht 230 million from last year. The
increase resulted from a net profit of Baht 205 million and a capital injection from the exercise of warrants under the
ESOP program. The debt to equity ratio improved from 0.81x in 2003 to 1.25x in 2004.




Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Board of Sirecics is resgonsible for Shin Corporation Public Company Limited’s financial statements and Shin
Corporation Public Compoany _imited and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements, including the financial
informetion preserier in this annual report. The aforementioned financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generaily accedtec eccounting orinciples, using careful judgement and the best estimations. Important information is
adequetely and trarzoerently cisclosed in the notes to financial statements for the company’s shareholders and
investers.

The Beard of Cirecicrs hes previded and maintained a risk management system and appropria{e and efficient internatl

controis to ensure thel accounting records are accuraie, reliable and adequate to protect its assets and uncover any
weakness that mav tz present in order to prevent fraud or materially irregular operations.

In this regarq, the 3czra of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee to be responsible for reviewing the accounting
policy, financizl reac s, internzl controls, internai audit, and risk management system. The Audit Committee has also
reviewed a disclosuie of related party transactions. All their comments on these issues have been included in the Audit
Committee Recort wch is presented in this annual repont.

The firancial statemeris of the company and the consolidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries
have been exzmined 2y an exiernal auditor, PricewaternouseCoopers ABAS Limited. To conduct the audits and express
an opinion in accorcance with generally accepted auditing standards, the auditor was provided with all of the
compeany’s recorcs 2-d related data as requested. The auditor’s opinion is presented in the auditor’s report as part of this
annual report.

The Board of irecics believes that the company’s overall internal control system has functioned up to a satisfactory

leve! and renderec credibility and reliability to Shin Corporation Public Company Limited’s financial statements and Shin

Corporation Fublic Company cimited and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
IsYalas

December 2024, "o Boara of Directors also believes that all these financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with ¢ererally acceotied principles and related regulations.

£ Doy D/

{3harnzoot Damapong) (Boonklee Plangsiri)
Chairrman of the Board Chairman of the Executive Committee
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Auditer’s Report

To the Shareholders of Shin Corporation Public Company _imited

| have audited the accompanyng consolidated and company balance sheets as of 31 December 2004 and 2003, and the
related consolidated and comoany statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years
then ended cf Shin Corporaticn Public Company Limited end its subsidiaries, and of Shin Corporation Public Company
Limited, respzactively. These finarcia! statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. My responsibility

is to express an opinion on these financial statements basad on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those stendards require that | plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance zbout wiether the financial statements are free of material
misstatemen?. An audit incluces examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principies used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaiuating the overall financial staiement presentation. | believe that my audiis provide a

reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the consolidated and company financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consclidaied and company financial position as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated and
company results of operations and cash flows for the years then enced of Shin Corporation Public Company Limited and
its subsidiaries, and of Shin Corporation Public Company _imitec, respectively, in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles.

g . [(22 A

PRASAN CHUAPEANICH

Certified Pubiic Accountant

(Thailand) No. 3051
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited

Bangkok
18 February 2005




Balance Sheets

ASSETS

Current asseis

Cash and cash eguivzien’s
Current investments

Trade accounis and notes

(>}

receivable, net
Current portion of loan and eccrued

interest receivabie, nzt 7
Amounts due from and acvances

to related parties 30
Inventories, net 8
Current porticn of accour’s

receivable-forward coniract, net

O

Other current assets
Total current zssets

Non-current assets
Loan and accrued interes:
receivaple, net 7
Investments in subsidiaries, associaies
and joint ventures 10
Cther investments 11
Loans to other company
Property and egquipment, net i2
Other assets
Property and ecuipmer: under

concassion egresrmants, net 13

Goodwili, net 14
Intangible assets, ne: i5
Other essets 30

Total non-cursent assets

Total assets

2004

Baht

3,5663,016,327
485,343,080

1,931,200,566

590,292,209

10,858,353
363,212,976

557,130
592,205,042
7,536,685,683

455,949,553

30,141,262,135
26,249,038
29,174,451
20,019,468,040

6,098,020,583
1,404,375,690
356,721,412
295,743,459
58,826,965,261

66,363,650,944

Consolidated

2003
Restated
Baht

3,579,241,762
296,258,468

2,004,038,629

6,080,308
562,341,162

741,611,956
7,189,572,285

26,223,131,378
25,000,000
26,421,642
17,443,340,494

7,075,769,244
1,5566,639,366
377,278,720
241,832,708
52,969,413,552

60,158,985,837

Shin Corporation Public Company Limited
As at 31 December 2004 and 2003

Company
2004 2003
Restated
Baht Baht

1,852,172,180
275,199,345

15,338,833

264,903

42,584,726
2,185,559,987

37,389,405,079
26,249,938

48,602,500

28,329,733
6,630,805
37,499,218,055

39,684,778,042

The accomparnying rstes are an integral part of these consolidated and company financial statements.

1,401,310,373
283,746,087

19,307,643

1,210,531

34,967,618
1,740,542,252

34,099,433,031
25,000,000

61,153,316

30,688,908
6,780,805¢
34,223,066,060

35,963,608,312
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Balance Sheets (COﬂtﬂ nued ) Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

As at 31 December 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2033
Restated Restated
Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from banks and financial institutions 17 2,112,039,934 1,197,0C0,000 - -
Trade accounts and notes peyable 16 1,182,802,110 1,024,457,664 1,604,820 1,625,773
Amounts due to and loans frem related
parties 30 6,434,171 2,285,863 660,404 3,163,812
Short-term loan from other company 17 - 6,101,895 - -
Current portion of long-term 2orrowings 17  2,227,293,356  1,875,117,721 1,130,372 227,582,441
Current portion of forward ccntracts
payable, net 19 563,674,263 604,489,820 - -
Accrued concession fees 1,024,641,661 586,8C3,454 - -
Other current liabilities 18 1,413,881,828 1,311,830,132 60,218,029 123,403,322
Total current liabilities 8,530,827,323  6,708,087,536 63,613,632  355,775,343e
Non-current liabilities
Forward contracts payable, rat 19 - 356,521,000 - -
Long-term borrowings, net 17 12,790,386,388 12,641,124,598 1,601,149 2,276,980
Long-term cebentures, net 17 2,680,088,930 2,672,585,813 2,680,086,930 2,672,595,813
Other liabilities 520,959,567 397,013,888 404,033,177 242,534,117

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

15,991,432,885

24,522,260,208

15,747,256,299

22,455,343,835

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated and company financial statements.

3,085,721,256

3,149,334,888

2,817,407,910

3,273,1883,258




Shin Corporation Public Company Limited
As at 31 December 2004 and 2003

Balance Sheets (continued)

Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Restated Restated
Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht
Sharehciders’ equily
Share capital 20

Authorised share capital -
common sheres
Issued ancd paic-u= share capital -
common sheres
Warrants 20
Premium on share carciial 20
Unrealised gair on gilution of
investments 3
Unrealised loss frora revaluation of
investment 5
Advance receipt for smare subscription
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve 21
Unzppropriatec
Cumulative foreign currancy translation
adjustmen:
Total parent’s sharenolders’ equity
Minority interes’s 22
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shereholders’ equity

5,000,000,000

2,953,632,089
607,928,668
5,109,278,491

3,619,811,564

(26,801,817)

500,000,000
23,867,925,905

(96,331,746)
36,535,443,154

5,305,947,582
41,841,390,736
66,363,650,044

5,000,000,000

2,936,047,500
607,940,845
4,871,898,000

3,317,161,638

(18,614,953)
25,272,440

500,000,000
20,534,743,231

(87,023,647)
32,690,425,054
5,013,216,948
37,703,642,002
60,158,985,837

5,000,000,000

2,958,632,089
607,928,668
5,109,278,491

3,619,811,564

(26,801,817)

500,000,000
23,867,925,905

(96,331,746)
36,535,443,154
36,535,443,154
39,684,778,042

Tre accompany ng ~otes are an integral part of these consolidated and company financial statements.

5,000,000,000

2,939,047,500
607,940,845
4,871,888,000

3,317,161,638

(18,614,953)
25,272,440

500,000,000
20,534,743,231

(87,023,647)
32,690,425,054
32,690,425,054
35,963,608,312
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Statements of Income

Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

As at 31 December 2034 ana 2003

Censolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Restated Restated
Notes Banht Baht Baht Baht
Revenues 30
‘Revenues from sales and services 10,630,927,238 10,378,908,432 296,816,958 308,943,893
Other income 23 379,564,486 2,087,416,413 31,804,866 1,638,31%,677
Share of net resuts from invastments
- equity methoa 10 8,814,649,052 7,970,429,260 8,893,083,204 8,174,248,033

Total revenues

19,825,140,776

20,436,754,105

9,221,705,728

10,121,503,505

Expenses 30
Cost of sales and services 6,903,893,966  6,320,120,058 116,322,645 116,517,800
Concession fee 662,299,007 1,436,123,033 - -
Selling and administrative expenses 2,308,272,668 2,036,625,919 219,882,988 212,237,648
Directors’ remunazration 24 14,406,634 13,890,575 7,820,900 7,520,902
Total expenses 9,888,872,275 9,805,830,588 344,096,531 336,275,449
Profit before interest and tax 9,936,268,501 10,629,923,51¢ 8,877,609,197 9,785,227,157
Interest expense (347,639,156)  (385,255,559) (177,860,036) {188,283,216)
Income tax 34 (361,502,881) (382,626,213) - -
Profit before minority interests 9,227,126,364  9,862,041,047 8,699,749,161 ©,598,943,941
Share of net restits from suasidiaries to
minority interests (527,377,203)  (265,097,1006) - -
Net profit for the year 8,689,749,161 9,595,943,941  8,699,749,161 ©,598,943,941
Basic earnings per share (Baht) 25
Net profit for the vear 2.85 3.27 2.85 3.27
Diluted earnings per share (3aht) 26
Net profit for the year 2.85 3.26 2.85 3.25

The accompanying notes are an integral part cof these consolidated and company financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

Net cash flows frcm/ {used in)

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of suzsidiaries and
associates, nzet of cash acquired
Acquisition of other investment,
net of cash acquired
Purchases of proserty and equipment
Investmenis in intangible assets
Investments in arcoerty and equipment
under concession agreesments
{increase) decrzase in current
invesimen’s
Increase in advar.ces o other company
Decrease ir lozns and advances
1o relaied tarties
Disposals ¢f a suissiciary/
joint ventu-e, net of cash disposed
Proceeds from gdisnosal of equipment
Dividends received from subsidiaries
and assoc ates
Net cash flows from/ (used in)

investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Receipts from shcrt-term lcans

Receipts from ‘ong-term loans

Receipts from share capital issued by
subsidiaries

Receipts frcm shera capital increase

Receipts from zdvance receipt for share
subscripticn

Repayments of short-term loans

Repaymen’s of icng-term loans

Redempticn of dezerture

Dividends zaid

Dividends zaic tc minorities

Net cash flows from/ (used in) financing

activities
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Shin Corporation Public Company Limited
As at 31 December 2004 and 2003

Consolidated

2004

Notes Baht

29 2,004,505,380

(180,037,912)

(1,249,938)
(3,122,725,926)
(52,375,174)

(81,842,850)

(200,148,850)

10 -
19,017,362

10 5,408,290,999

1,788,827,711

5,111,366,307
1,674,243,434

10  1,135,861,956
20 226,680,463

(3,694,819,679)
(1,327,766,503)

35 (5,366,566,308)
(106,206,167)

(2,347,206,497)

2003
Restated

Baht

1,818,378,837

(206,239,166)

(6,113,174,571)
(77,637,658)

(123,020,173)

298,054,785
(5,503,965)

28,222,890

9,990,000
27,175,350

4,486,177,600

(1,675,954,908)

4,397,599,289
8,186,648,679

585,000,000
36,445,500

25,272,440
(5,974,882,326)
(2,050,648,122)

(310,674,396)
(3,668,894,692)

1,225,866,372

The accomperying noiss are an integral part of these consolidated and company financial statements,

Company
2004 2003
Restated
Baht Baht
(44,313,213) 101,232,971

(1,249,938)
(26,451,239)
(21,500)

945,629

306,000,000
2,028,221

5,590,453,685

5,871,704,858

226,680,463

(236,643,993)

(5,366,566,308)

(5,376,529,838)

(2,345,623,297)

(19,210,585)

297,638,960

1,675,621,363

1,735,327

4,641,120,564

4,251,282,332

36,445,500

25,272,440

(11,789,738)
(310,674,396)
(3,668,894,692)

(3,829,640,886)
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Statements of Cash Flows

Consolidated

2004 2003
Sestated
Baht Bant

Net increase in cash and cash eqguivalents 1,446,126,594  1,368,290,301
Cash and cash equivalents, openirg ba'ance 3,579,241,762  2,13C,358,782
Cash recognised on change of status

of associate to joint venture - 84,789,168

Cash recognised on change of status

of joint venture to associate 10 (1,469,857,634) -
Unrealised loss on exchange rate 7,505,605 (4,205,880)
Cash and cash equivalents,

closing balance 4 3,663,016,327 3,578,241,762

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Interest and income tax paid

Shin Corporation Public Company Limited

As at 31 December 2004 and 2003

Company
2004 20023
Restatec
Baht Baht
450,861,807 422,874,417

1,401,310,373

1,852,172,180

Interest and income tax paid durirg the year ended 31 Decemaer 20C4 and 2002 are as follcws:

Consolidated
2004 2003
Restated
Baht Million Bant Million

Interest paid 457.37 432.69
Income tax paid 384.08 35C.81

Non-cash transactions
Purchase of property and equipment and

intangible assets by ‘iablities 452.11 134.56
Property and equipmenrt under finence ieases 3.00 0.95
Purchase of programming rights and production costs

by liabilities 8.08 19.28
Acquisition of investment in a subsiciary

through share swap - 88.99
Conversion of accounts peyable - purchase of equipment

to long-term loans - 16.5¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thase consolidated and company financial statements.

984,133,511

(5,697.555)

1,401,310,373

Company

2004 2003
Restated

Baht Million Baht Million
0.19 25.79

9.68 1.75

0.55 11.22

0.65 -
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General information

Shin Corporaticn Pudiic Compeny Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company and is incorporated and domiciled in
Thailanc. The regisie=d coffice ¢f the Company is :

- P

414 Shirawatrz Tov:ar 7, Zhahc.yothin Road, Phayathai, Bangkok 10400.

The Company, i’s suba!dieries, essociates, joint ventures and cther related companies (together “the Shin Corp Group”, or the
Group”) are principe iy ancaged in the satellite, internet, telecommunications, media industries, low-fare airline and consumer
finance sectors. The Croup rendars satellite transponder and related services, operates a television channel, is an internet
service provider anc content producer, provides advertising services and publishes telephone directories, trades in cellular
telephone equizmert, crovides nationwide cellular network services, provides data transmission services, operates a low-fare
airline and offers ccnsumer finance.

The principai business Uiits are Shin Corporation Puplic Company Limited, its subsidiaries, Shin Satellite Public Company Limited
and 1TV Public Cormpzny _imited, and associates, Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited and CS Loxinfo Public
Companry Limized. All cf tnese companies are listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The Shin Corp Grour hes cziained concessions from government agencies, in Thailand and other countries, to provide satellites and
transponder services tc se an Intarnet Service Provider, to procduce telephone directories, to act as a television broadcaster, and {0
provide comestic mcilz shone networks in Cambodia, to provide telecommunication services in the Laos PDR and Cellular Telephone
Systems in Theiland. Tz periods of the concessions range from 10-35 years. Under these concession agreements, certain companies
in the Group must pcy ~inimum fees to the relevant government agencies based on a percentage of service income or at the rate
specifiec in the relevar’ agreemenis, whichever is the higher. !n addition, certain companies in the Group, according to their
corcession agreemerts must precure property and eguipment for their operations and must transfer the ownership of such property
and eguioment ic the re.avant government agencies within the periods specified in the concession agreements.

The principal concess’cns neld by subsidiaries, associates ard a joint venture at 31 December 2004 include:

Concessicn Country Held by Expiry
Subsidiaries
Sateiiites Thailand Shin Sateilite Public Company Limited September 2021
Radio-television Thailand iTV Public Company Limited July 2025

brozdcasting- Lacar

sy

Ut system

Ceiiuiar telephcne sysiam Cambodia Cambodia Shinawatra Company Limited  March 2028

Associates

80C-M=z celivier Thailand Advanced Info Service Public September 2015
telephone sys’am Company Limited

18C3-M.Hz celilar Thailand Digital Phone Company Limited September 2013
telephone sysizm

Datekit Virtual Circu 't & Thailand Advanced Datanetwork Communications 2022

Company Limited

inteinet services Thailand CS Loxinfo Public Company Limited April 2007

Joint Venture

Fixed ghone, —obis Tt cre, Laos PDR Lac Telecommunicaiions 2021

Cornzany Limited
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2.1

2.2

Accounting pclicies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated and company financial

statements are set out below:

Basis of preparation

The consolidated and company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai generzily
accepted accounting principles under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543, being those Thai Accounting Standards issued
under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547, and the financial reporting requirements of tne Securities and

Exchange Commission under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

The consolidated and company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention

except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

Group accounting

a) Subsidiary undertakirgs

Subsidiary uncertakings, which are those companies in which the Group has power to govern the finarcial and
operating policies, are consolidated; attention is directed to the substance of the power, and not merely the
legal form.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which effactive control is transferred to the Group and are no
longer consolidated from the date on which the Group ceases to have the power to exercise control over the
operations. The purchasz method of accounting is used to eccount for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of
an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given up, shares issued or liabilities undertaken at the
date of acquisition plus costs directly attributable ‘o the acquisition. inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group ccmpanies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless costs cannot ba recovered. Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. Separate disclosure is made for minority interests.
The interest of third parties in subsidiaries is accounted for on the basis of their share in the underlying equity of
these undertakings. A list of the principal subsidiaries is set out in Note 10.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, the Company accounts for its interest in subsidiaries on an

equity basis.




2 Acccunting policies (continued)

2.2 Group accountng {continued)

b)

c)

Joint ventures

The Group’s inlerest in jointly controlled entities ("joint ventures”) is accounted for by proportionate consolidation
in the consciiczted financial statements. The Group combines its share of the joint ventures’ individual income and
expenses, £ssets and liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the Group’s financial
statements. T-e Group recognises the portion of gains or losses on the sale of assets by the Group to the joint
venture tha’ it 's atiribuigble to the other venturers. The Group does not recognise its share of profits or losses from
the joirt veriura that result from the purchase of assets by the Group from the joint venture until it resells the assets
to an inCepsancent party. However, if a loss on the transaction provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable
value cf current essets or an impairment loss, the loss is recognised immediately. A list of the principal joint
ventures and TUrther details about joint ventures are set out in Notes 10 and 31 respectively.

In the Comdzany’s separate financial statements, the Company accounts for its interest in joint ventures on the
equity basis.

Associzted undertakings

Investmenis in associated undertakings are accounted for using the equity method of accounting in the
consolicated "narcial statements. Under this method the company’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of asscciatas 's recognised in the income statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recogrisec ir reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the cost of the
investment. Associates are entities over which the Group generally has significant influence, but which it does not
control. Unreziised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interes? in the associates; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impeirmeant of the asset transferred. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill (net of
accumiuiated emcertisaticn) on acquisition. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in {1e associate, the Group does not continue to recognise further losses, unless the Group has incurred

obligations or Mmade payments on behalf of the associates. A list of the principal associates is set out in Note 10.

in the Comrpzny's seperate financial statements, the Company accounts for its interest in associates on an

2quity bas's.

Gain (loss) on dilution from investment

Dilutior gaias cr icsses that arise on shares issued by publicly traded subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates to
the puziic e r2cognisec in shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet. The dilution gains or losses from non-listed
subsidaries, cint ventures or associates are recognised as an unrealised gain on dilution from investment in the
share~cide s’ zguity in “he balance sheet in the proceeds from the sale can be objectively determined (Note 3.2).
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2.4

2.5

2.6

Accounting policies (continued)
Related parties

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controilec
by, or ae undar common control with, the Company, ircluding holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
are related parties of the Company. Associates and irdividuais owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting
power of the Company that gives them significart influence over the enterprise, key management personne., including
directors and officers of the Cocmpany and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associaiec

with these indivicuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, anc

not merely ths legal form.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are ‘ranslated into Baht at the rate of exchange prevailing or the
transaction cates. Realised gains and osses on exchange are recognised as income or expense as incuyred.
Monetary assets and liatilities at the balance sheet cate dercminated in foreign currencies are iranslated into 3aht
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Urrealised gains and losses on exchange are recogrisec

as income or expanse as incurred.

Statements of income of foreign entities are translated into tihe Croup’s reporting currency at the weighted average
exchange rates fcr the year and balance sheets are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Currency translation differences arising from the retranslation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken
to shareholders’ equity. Cn disposal of a foreign entity, accumulated currency translation differences are recognised

in the statement of incorne as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenrts are carried in the balance sheet at cosi. For the purposes of ihe cash flow statement,
cash ard casn ecuivalenis comprise cash on hand and depcsits held at banks and other short-term highly liguid
investments with origina. maturities of three months or less.

Current investments

Current investments reprasent time deposits, bills of exchange and oromissory notes with original maturities of more

than thrze menths but less than twelve months.




Accounting policies {(continued)
2.7 Trade accounts receivable

TraCe accounts receivable are carried at anticipated realisable value. An allowance is recorded for doubtful
accounts receivat 2, which is equivalent to the estimated collection losses that may be incurred. The estimated
losses are tased cn historical collection experience combined with a review of the current status of the existing
receivables at t e ~alance sheet date.

2.8 Loans and accrued interest receivables

lLoens anc zccred interest receivables are carriec¢ at anticipated realisable value. A group company fully sets up the
allowance fcr douziful acccunts when the payment is in default for more than three consecutive periods and writes
them off when ine payment is in default for more than 180 days. In addition, a general ailowance for doubtful
accounts nes kzen sel for the outstanding balance.

Bac debts gre writien off diring the year in which they are identified.
2.9 Inventories

-nvenriories are va._ec at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are determined using the moving weighted
averege meinod excent for the cost of mobile phones and paper, which are determined using the first in first out
method. Werk i crogress is valued using the specific identification method. The cost of purchase comprises both
the ourchese grice and cosis directly attributable to the acquisition of the inventory, such as import duties and
‘ransportetion cherges, less all attributable discounts, ailowances or rebates. The cost of finished goods and work in
Drogress cCmMeiscs raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal opzratirg capacity).

Ne! realise>.2 valus is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less costs of completion and
se.ling expenses. An ellowence is made against cost where there is diminution in value arising on obsolete and
defective irventory

2.10Programming rights

A ¢roup cocmpany buys pregramming rights for broadcasting. Programming rights are stated at cost. The cost
comorises 2otf ifha purchase price and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the programming rights,
such as duties, (z3s &ll atlributable discounts, allowance or rebates. Provision is made, where necessary, for

impairmen’ dasec on the estimated recoverable value.

The cost ¢f toz Trogramriing rights is amortisad according to the number of transmissions specified in the
breadcasting egreement. T the program is broadcast more than once, the cost of the programming rights is
amoriisec 2 a ratz 07 80% cn the first transmission and 20% on the second transmission.
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2  Accounting policies {continuec)
2.11Investments {(cther than subksiciaries, associates and joint ventures)

Marketable equity securities which are classified as avzilable-for-sale securities are carried at fair value. Fair value of
marketable equity securities is calculated by reference to the Stock Exchange quoted selling prices at the close of
business on the balance sheet date. Increases/decreases in the carrying amount are credited/charged against

unrealised gains/losses frcm revaluation of investment in sharenolders’ equity.
Investments in non-marke’able equity securities which are classified as general investments are carried at cost.

When disposing of part of the Group’s holding of a particular investment in debt or equity securities the carrying
amount of the disposed part is determined by reference to the average carrying amount of the total holding of the

investment.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is chargad

or credited to the statement of income.
2.12Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged or. a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, or, if it is shorter, the lease term, based on the

following useful lives:

Years
Leasehold land, buildings and improvements 3-30
Furniture, fixtures and ecuipment ' 5-10
Vehicles (including vehicles under finance leases) 5
Computers anc equiprient 3-5
Rental equipment 2-5

Borrowing costs to finance the construction of property and eguipment are capitalised as part of the cost of the
assets, during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the property and eguipment for its
intended use. Borrowing costs of Baht 440 million were capitalised in 2004 (2003: Baht 576 million). Expenditures
for additions, renewals and improvements of property and equipment, which result in a substantial increase in an
asset’s current replacement value, are capitalised. Repair and maintenance costs are recognised as an expense

when incurred.
The Group’s policy is to review asset values annually and to adjust depreciation to match estimated useful lives.

Gains and losses on dispesal of property and eguipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying

amount and are included in operating profit.




2 Accounting poficies (continued)
2.13Property and eculoment under concession agreements

Property and eguiaoment under concession agreements comprises assets used under concession agreements,
ownership of which must be transferred to the regulatory government agencies in accordance with the specific
terms of the resgective corcessions. Property and equipment under concession agreements is amortised on a
straight line basis cver the shorter of the useful lives of the property and equipment or the remaining concession
term, basec on the following useful lives:

Property and eguinment

under concessior agreements Years
Satellites Design fife (14 - 15 years)
Telemetry, tracking,
commend zn< menitoring equipment 5 to 27.5 years
Computer systers 5 years, not exceeding the concession term
Land, netwerk stelions, intangible assets and 5 to 20 years, not exceeding
equipment under UHF broadcasting agreement the concession term

Borrowing costs tc finance the construction of concession assets are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets,
during the cericd cf time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for their intended use. No borrowing
cosis were cap.tai'sed in 2004 and 2003.

2.14Goodwill

Goodwill represeris the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
identifiabie tancitie and intangible assets of the acquired subsidiary or associated undertaking or joint venture at the
date of acguisiiicn. Coodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries and joint ventures is reported in the consolidated
balance sheet es ccogwill. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in investments in associates. Goodwill
is emortisec us.n¢ the straight-line method over its estimated useful life not exceeding 20 years.

The gain cr .oss or. disposal of an entity includes the unamortised balance of goodwili relating to the entity disposed of.
2.15intangible assetls

intargible asseis “epresen’ proprietary software for internal use and service, costs of computer software and

equipment arovidcd to ceriain overseas customers in connection with the utilisation of transponder services from

the Grougp, anc coareting rights, expenditure on acquired patents, trademarks or licenses. Intangible assets are
amortised using t-e siraight-line method over the estimated useful lives not exceeding 20 years.
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2

Accounting policies (continued)

2.16Leases - where a group company is the lessee

Leases of equipment where the Company assumes substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership are classifiec
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the estimated present value of the underlying lease payments.
Each lease payrent is gllocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstancing. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in finance
lease liabilities. The interest element of the finance charge is charged to results over the lease pericd. The equipment
acquired under finance !2zsing contracts is deoreciated over the useiul life of the asset. Leases of assets under
which ell the risks and bznsfits of ownership are effectively retainecd oy the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Paymenis made under coerating leases are charged to resulis on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
When an operatirg lease is terminated before the lease period has expirad, any payment required to be made to the

lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expens2 in the ceriod in which termination tzkes place.

2.17Leases - where a group company is the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are ircluded in preperty, plant and equipment in the balance sheet. Thay
are depreciated over their expected useful lives cn a besis consistent with other similar property, plant anc
equipment cwned by the Group. Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recogrised on z

straight-line nasis over the lease term.

2.18Impairment of leng-livec assets

Property anc equipment and other non-current assets, including property an¢ equipment under concession
agreements, goodwill ard intangible assets are rev.iewed fcr impairmant losses wherever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment [oss is recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets esceeds iis recoveradle amount, which is the higher of an asset’s
net selling price and valtz in use, For the purposes of assessing impairmert, assets are grouped at the Icwest leve.

for which there is separz’ely identifiable cash flow.

2.19Employee benefits

The Group operates a provident fund, being a cefined contricution plan, the assets of which are held in a separate
trustee-admiristered fund. The provident fund is funded by nayments from employees and by the relevant Group

comparies. Coniributions tc the provident funds are charged to *he statement of income in the year o which they relate.

2.20Provisions for liabilities and charges and contingency assets

Provisions are recognisec when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that en outflow ¢’ resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be

made. The cortingency asset will be recognised as a separate asset when only the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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2  Accounting pclicies [continued)
2.21Revenue recognition

Seles ere recognicec upon delivery of products and cusiomer acceptance.

Revenue from “slezinc e services, transponder services and other services related to the satellite business is recognised
when services are oroviced te the customers.

Revence frem arede’c mobile ohone services and internet packages is recognised when the service is used by the
customers.

Revence from the drcduction ¢f advertising is recognised upon completion or publication. Revenue from advertising

mediza s reccgnisac whan the service is rendered o the customers.

Revence from lelcvision adverlising is recognised when the advertisement is broadcast and revenue from airtime
rentai is recognised wvinen the srogram is broadcast.

Interest and fee inccine are recognised in the statement of income on an accrual basis, except for income which is
urcoiiected efter thrze consecutive periods or more, after which interest and fee income are recognised on a
coilection bes’s. "1z use of the accrual basis coniinues for these overdue loans only when there are no arrears in
princinal or irilerest cayments.
Reverue from airline services ere recognised when services are rendered to the customers.
Interes! inccme is recognisec on an accrual basis unless collectibility is in doubt.
Dividend income ‘s "acognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.

2.22Advertising and preduction costs
Advertising ccsts arc expensed in the financial period in which they are incurred.
Productiion ccsts ccgrise ¢irect costs related te production. News production costs are expensed as incurred.
Costs relating to o%-er in-hcuse productions are capitaiised based on estimated recoverable revenues and are
amortised wren the reducticn is broadcast.

2.23Research and deveicpment

Resezrch a-¢ de e’z 220t costs are expensed in the financial period during which they are incurred.
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2

Accounting policies (corlinued)

2.24Income tax

The Group calculaies income tax in accordance with the Revenue Code and records income tax on an accrual basis.
The Group does not recognise income tax payable or receivabie in future periods in respect of temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

2.25Financizl instruments

Financial instruments carrqied on the balance sheet include cash and bank balances, current investments, trade
receivatles, related party receivables and payables, trade payables, [eases, borrowings and certain derivative
financial instruments. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual pclicy statements

associated with each item.

The Group is a party to financial instruments that manzage exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange and

interest rates. These instruments mainly comprise:;

Foreign currency forwarc contracts

Foreign currency forward contracts establish a predeterminac exchange rate (“forward rate”) at which the Group will
receive or pay foreign currency amounts on a predetermined future cate. Obligations under foreign exchange
forward contracts are recognised in the balance sheet on inception. At the balance sheet date the foreign currency
amounts receivable or payable under these contracts are translated at the balance sheet exchange rate. Unrealised
gains or losses that resul: from the translation are recognisec in the income statement. Any premium or discount
equal to the dif‘erence beiween the exchange rate anc the forward rate &t the inception of the contract is amortised

over the life of the contract.

Cross-currency and interest rate swaps

In cross-currency and interest rate swap contracts, the Croup agrees with a counterparty to exchange their
respective currancy and irterest rate positions between an agreed pair of currencies. An exchange of principal in the
different currencies occurs &t the incepticn of the cross-currency interest rate swap at a predetermined exchange
rate, with an equal but cpposite exchange of principal at the maturity of the contract. The foreign currency
receivable/payable under “hese contracts is translated at the year-end exchange rate and the unrealised gains or
losses are recognised in the income statement. Each party aiso pays and receives interest on a predetermined
amount of principzal in dif’arent currencies over the contract nariod. Any differential to be paid or received on the
interest rate swaps is reccgrised as a componert of interest income or expense over the period of the agreement.
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Accounting policies (continued)

2.25Firancial instruments {continued)

Interest rate sweps

Interest rate swe0n agreements enhance the Group’s capability to manage exposure from movements in floating
interest rates. Any difference to be paid or received on an interest rate swap agreement is recognised as a
component of irlerest expense over the period of the agreement. Gains and losses on early termination of interest

rate swaps or on repayment of the borrowing are taken to the statement of income.

Currency options

Currency options are coniractual agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right,
but not the otligztion, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at a set date, a specific amount of a foreign
currency et a orecetermined exchange rate. In consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange risk, the seller
receives & premum from the purchaser. The principal of option contracts is not recognised in the balance sheets.

remiums are ar-ortised in the statements of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the contract. Options

are accorcing.y mot adjusted to fair value or recorded on the balance sheet.

Disclosures related o financial instruments to which the Group is a party are provided in note 32.

2.28Segment reperting

The segmentel renorting has been prepared based on the Group’s method of internal reporting, which disaggregates

its business ny szarvice or product.

2.27Earnings per share

Basic consolideted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the consoclidated net earnings, after considering
minority irteres? in subsidiaries, attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the vear.

Basic Company sarnings per share are calculated by dividing the Company’s earnings by the weighted average

number of orCirery shares in issue during the year.

For diluted eerrings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume the
ccnversion of aii notential dilutive ordinary shares, which is the weighted average number of ordinary shares which
would be issueZ on the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The assumed
proceeds from e exercise of ESOP would be considered to have been received from the issue of shares at fair

value. These rapresent share options where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company’s
snares curing the year ended 31 December 2004.
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2.28Dividends

Dividends are reccrded ir the consolidated and company financial statements in the period in which they ere
declared by the Board of Cirectors and approved by the sharenolders.

2.29Presentation of comparative information

The comparative figures have been amended to confcrm with the reclassification of certain items in the financial

statemens for tne year ended 31 December 2004.

3 Change in accounting policies

3.1 Changes in the accounting palicy for revenue recognition of telephone directory publication

In 2004, Teleinfo Media Co mpany Limited (“TMC”), changed its accounting policy for revenue recognition in respect
of telephone directory publication (calencar year). Revenue was previously recognised evenly over the year of
publication and {s now recognised everly over the useful life of the telephone directory. This change wes
implemented in order to comply with the change in business circumstances and the international practice of the

telephone directory publicziion business.

The Company recorded the effects of the change in revenue reccgnition in TMC in 2004, but it did not retrospectively
adjust the consolidated and ccmpany financial statements since the outcome of the change does not have a
material impact on the finaacial statements. However, if the Company resiated the financial statements, the effecis
of this change cn the consolidated and company financial staiements would ba as follows:

As at 31 December 2003 (Baht Million)

Consolidated Company
Balance sheet
Increase (decrezse) in totai assets 60.95 (73.19)
Increase in total liabilities 134.14 -
Decrease in retained earnings carried forward 73.19 73.19

Statement of income

In addition, this would resu’” in a decrease in the net prcfit for the year ended 31 December 2C03 in the consolidated
and company financial statemerts of Baht 5.42 million.
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3.2 Accounting for gain {{loss) on dilution from investment in subsidiaries and associates

On 30 Apri 2C04, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand (SEC) issued a memo regarding the
accounting treztiment of investments in subsidiaries and associates following a letter issued by the Institute of
Certified Acccuniant and Auditor of Thailand dated 23 April 2004. This is related to the recognition in the
shareholcers’ eguily of the increase in the value of investments in subsidiaries or associates, whose shareholders’
equity increased Trom a sale of its shares to the public at a price higher than the carrying amount.

During the perioc enced 3% December 2004, the Company changed its accounting treatment for such gain on
dilution 1o 1ook as an unreaiised gain on dilution from investment in the shareholders’ equity in order to comply with
the memo. Previcusly, such gain was booked it as other income as part of the statement of income in order to
comply witr tha mame. The Company has retroactively applied this accounting treatment.

The impact of this change on the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2003 and the
consolidaied a~d Soempany statements of income is as follow:

31 December 2003 (Baht Miillion)
Consolidated and Company

Balance sheet

Shareholders’ equity

Increase in unreasec gain on dilution from investment 3,317.16
Decrease in retainsd earnings carried forward 3,191.26
Decrease in retairsd earnings brought forward 3,317.16

Statement of income

The change also resulied in & decrease in the consolidated net profit and the Company net profit for the year ended
31 Decemier 23C3 of Baht 125.90 million.

4 Cash and cash ecuivalents
Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million

Cash on nend 26.61 23.30 0.02 0.01
Cash at banks 2,491.25 2,086.14 947.15 701.30
Bills of excrhange #nd promissory notes 1,045.15 1,469.80 905.00 700.00

Total cash end szsh ecuiva.ents 3,563.01 3,579.24 1,852.17 1,401.31
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4 Cash and cash eguivalents {continued)
The weignted average effective interest rate of bank depositis, dills of exchange and promissory notes was 1.21%
per annum (20C3: C.79% par annum) on a consolidatec basis and 1.77% per annum (2003: 1.18% per annum) on a

Company basis.

5 Current investments
Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Bahi Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million

Term deposits 210.14 12.51 - -
Marketable securities

- available for sale 275.20 283.75 275.20 283.75
Total current investments 485.34 2956.25 275.20 283.75

The movements in the mar<etabie securities - available for sale, which is investment in debenture can be analysed as

follows:
Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million RBaht Million Baht Million Baht Million
Opening Halance 283.75 - 283.75 -
Additions - 302.57 - 302.57
Amortisation of premium (0.36) (0.21) (0.36) (0.21)
Fair value changes of investment (8.19) (18.61) (8.19) (18.81)
Closing balance 275.20 283.75 275.20 283.75

Term deposits which have an original maturity date of more thar three months and less than one year earn weighted
average effective irterest =t the rate of 2.70% per annum (2033: 2.27% per annum) on a consalidated basis and
2.24% per annum on a Company basis (2003: 2.24% per annum).

As at 31 Decemiber 2004, “erm deposits of Baht 209.88 millic~ (2003: Beht 12.51 million) on a consclicated basis

were plecged as collateral in respect of bank guarantess.




Trade acccunts 2-d notes receivable, net

Trade accounts 273 notes receivable

- Third parties

- Related parties '\ote 30}

Accrued incormz

- Third pariies

- Reiated cartics "Nete 30)

Tota. trade zccainis end notes receivable
Less allcwzncs ‘o coubtfur accounts
Total trads accsu ~is and notes

receivaciz, na?

Consolidated

2004
Baht Million

1,600.90
478.07

265.51
14.32
2,358.80
(427.60)

1,931.20

2003
Baht Million

1,688.25
575.25

207.40
16.54
2,487.44
(483.40)

2,004.04

Cutstanding trace =ccounts and notes receivable from third parties can be aged as follows:

Current - 3 moirs

Overdue 3 - 6 cths

Cverdue 8 - 12 manirs

Cverdue over 72 Tonins

Tote:

Less allowancz icr doubtfut accounts-
tnird periies

Totai trade accal nis and notes receivable-
third peries, re!

Consolidated

2004
Baht Million

680.50
203.33
178.48
538.59
1,600.90

(426.96)

1,173.94

2003
Baht Million

780.87
225.06
149.80
532.52
1,688.25

(483.40)

1,204.85

Company
2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million
0.91 0.91
11.39 13.84
3.95 5.37
16.25 20.22
(0.91) (0.91)
15.34 19.31

Company
2004 2003

Baht Million Baht Million

0.91
0.91

(0.91)

0.91
0.91

(0.91)
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Loans and accrued interest receivable, net

Outstanding loans and zccrued interest receivanle as at 31 December can be analysed as follows:

Consolidated
2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million

Up to 90 days 1,093.80 -
Over 90 days 0.11 -
Total loans and accrued interest receivable 1,094.01 -
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 47.77) -
Loans and accrued interast receivable, net 1,046.24 -

Inventories, net
Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Millior.

Raw materials 155.71 258.07 - -
Work-ir-progress 21.94 13.42 - -
Finished goods 254.40 339.956 - -
Goods-in-transit 1.89 0.83 - -

433.94 610.08 - -
Less allowance for obsolete stock (70.73) 47.74) - -
Total inventories, net 363.21 562.34 - -

Other current assets
Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Millior

Prepayments 181.06 193.28 4.56 2.78
Recoverable tax 117.49 155.12 21.44 26.67
Advance payments 71.29 162.42 0.16 0.06
Deposit 23.19 24.10 - -
Debtor - others 29.42 6.36 - -
Accrued income receivable - others 33.22 32.77 - -
Others 136.53 167.56 16.42 5.46

Total otner current assets 592.20 741.61 42.58 34.97




10

Investments in sulssidiaries, associates and joint ventures

g) Long-term investments in subsidiaries, associaies and joint ventures as at 31 December 2004 and 2003

comprise:

Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million
Investments ‘n subsidiaries - - 7,197.49 6,899.16
Investments in zsscciales 30,141.26 26,223.13 29,661.85 26,248.74
Investments in icir® ventures - - 530.06 951.53

Total invesiments i subsidiaries,

associates and ici~t ventures 30,141.26 26,223.13 37,389.40 34,099.43

b) Movements ‘n ~vestmenis in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2004

and 2023 comrise:

Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million
Opening net bock value 26,223.13 23,481.84 34,099.43 28,946.29
Additions 4.50 2.26 - 1,591.32
Change from associate {0 joint venture - (777.80) - -
Change from suzsiciary to associate 419.82 - - -
Disposal ¢f investent in a joint venture - - (43.98) -
Unrealisec ¢zin o sale of investment in
2 jcint venture - - (262.02) -
Share of net resuits rom invesiments 8,814.65 7,970.43 8,893.08 8,174.25
Divicends receivac rom subsidiaries
and associztes (5,408.29) (4,486.17) (5,590.45) (4,641.12)
Cein on dilut'on 7rc investments in
supsidiaries and esscciates 87.45 32.57 302.65 125.90
Foreign currency trensiation zdjustment - - (9.31) (97.21)
Closing net zoox veiue 30,141.26 26,223.13 37,389.40 34,099.43
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10 Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (continued)

c) The cetails of investmeants in subsidiaries, associates and oint ventures can be summarised as follows:

Name

Subsidiaries

Shin Satellite Public
Company Limited and
its Group

ITV Public Compzany Limited
and its subsidiary

AD Venture Company
Limited and its Group

|.T. Appiicaticns and Services
Company Limited and
its subsidiary

SC Matchbox Company
Limited

Merry Irternational

Investments Corporaticns

Associates
Advanced Info Sarvice Pub.ic

Company Limited

CS Loxinfo Public Compzny
Limited

Joint ventures
Teleinfo Media Company
Limited

Thai AirAsia
Company Limited

Capital OK
Company Limited

Business

Operating and administering communication satellite
projects and rendering transponder services
for domestic end iniernaticnal communications

Broadcasting of UHF system and lease of equipment
for program production, preducing TV programs
and arranging related marketing events

Internet business

Computer services

Providing advertising services and production of
advertisements for ~adio and television broadcast
Investment company

Operating a 930 MHz cellular ielephone sysiem
under a concession from TCT

Corporation Public Ccmpany Limited

Providing television transponder and internet

services via satellite

Publication of telephone directories under a
concession agreement from TOT
Corporation Public Companry Limited

Providing low-fare airline service

Consumer finance provider

Country

Thailanc

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Mauritius

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Thailand

Currency

Baht

Baht

Bant

Saht

Baht

Us

Dollars

Baht

Baht

Baht

Baht

Baht
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Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (continued)

d) Carrvirg vaiue of invesiments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Associates

Advancec Info Sarvice Public
Cempany L mited

CS Loxin%o Pukic Compeany
Limited

AD Venture Corrpany Limited's
asscciates

Tctal investmar s in associates

Associates

Advancec In"o Sarvice Public
Corpany mited

CS Loxir®o Solution
Commoany L mited

AD Verture Corrpany
Limited’s associates

Total investman's in asscciates

Paid-up
capital

2,945.19

625.00

20.00

Paid-up
capital

2,938.52

0.05

20.00

Consolidated - 31 December 2004 {Baht Million)

Investment
portion (%)
(inciuding
indirect
portion)

42.91

40.02

40.00

Accumulated
change in
investment

Cost valuation

8,807.46 20,827.10

1,669.10  (1,162.40)

30.00 (30.00)
10,506.56  19,634.70

Equity

29,634.56

506.70

30,141.26

Consolidated - 31 December 2003 (Baht Million)

Investment
portion (%)
(including
indirect
portion)

43.05

44.99

40.00

Accumulated
change in
investment

Cost valuation

8,807.46 17,410.64

0.05 2.66

30.00 (27.68)
8,837.51 17,385.62

Equity

26,218.10

2.71

2.32
26,223.13

107

Dividend

5,370.78

37.51

5,408.29

Dividend

4,486.17

4,486.17
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10 Investments ir subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (continued)

Subsidiaries
Shin Satellite Pubtic
Company Limited
ITV Public Company Limited
AD Venture Company Limitec
I.T. Applications and Services
Company Limited
SC Matchbex Company Limited
Merry Internationzai Investments
Corporations

Total investments in subsidiaries

Associate

Advanced Info Service Public
Company Limited

Total investment in an associate

Joint ventures
Thai AirAsia Companyimited
Capital OK Compezny Limited

Total investments in joint ventures

Paid-up
capital

4,384.41
6,023.71
550.00

10.00
9.00

UsD 1.00

2,9456.19

400.00
1,000.00

Company - 31 December 2004 (Baht Million)

Investment
portion (%)
{(including
indirect
portion)

51.4C
53.01
€0.91

99.99

99.95

100.03

42.91

50.0C
60.0C

Accumulated
change in
investment

Cost valuation

3,612.98  1,022.29
329726 (1,153.52)
500.00  (392.61)

10.00 50.61
71.97 193.05
- (24.55)

7,492.21 (284.72)

8,807.46 20,854.39
8,807.46 20,854.39

201.23  (130.17)
600.00  (141.00)
801.23  (271.17)

Equity

4,635.27
2,143.74
107.39

70.61
265.03

(24.55)
7,197.49

20,661.85
29,661.85

71.06
459.00
530.06

Dividend

112.72

5,370.78
5,370.78




10 Invesiments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (continued)

Subsidiaries

Shin Satellite Public
Company Limited
ITV Public Comgany _imited
AD Venture Company _imited
I.T. Appiications and Szrvices
Company Limited
SC Matchbox Comgpgary Limited
Merry internatioral invastments
Corgorations

Tota! investments in sucsidiaries

Associate
Advancegd Info Service “ublic
Company Limitea

Total investment in &7 2sscciate

Joint ventures

Teleinfo Media Com=arny Limitec
Thai AirAsia Compary _imilted
Capital CK Comnan Limite

Total investmers in 0in! ventures

Paid-up
capital

4,375.00
6,000.00
550.00

10.00
9.00

usD 1.00

2,938.52

694.14
400.00
1,000.00

Company - 31 December 2003 (Baht Million)

Investment
portion (%)
(including
indirect
portion)

51.53
53.22
20.91

89.89
99.96

100.00

43.05

38.25
50.00
60.00

Accumulated
change in
investment

Cost valuation

3,612.98 764.32
3,297.26  (1,190.10)
500.00  (349.66)

10.00 36.88
71.97 170.06
- (24.55)

749221  (593.05)

8,807.46 17,441.28
8,807.46 17,441.28

875.60  (719.23)
201.23 (5.79)
600.00 (0.28)

1,676.83  (725.30)

Equity

4,377.30
2,107.16
150.34

46.88
242.03

(24.55)
6,899.16

26,248.74
26,248.74

156.37
195.44
599.72
951.53

109

Dividend

5.00
149.94

154.94

4,486.17
4,486.17
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10

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint veriures (continued)

e)

Significant movements in investments during the year ended 31 December 2004 were as foliows:

1)

Shin Satellite Public Company _imited Group

a)

Shin Satellite Public Company Limited (*SATTEL"}

The issued and paid-up capital of SATTEL increased from Baht 4,375.00 million to Baht 4,384.47
million anc share premium increased from Bzht 2,190.0C millicn to Baht 2,198.39 million in orcer to
support the exercise of 1.07 million urits of werrants by SATTEL’s directors and employees (ESOP).
Consequertly, the Company’s investment in SATTEL was diluted from 51.53% to 51.40%. The gain on
dilution amounting to Baht 8.68 million has been recognised under shareholders’ equity in the balance

sheat.

On 5 July 2004, SATTEL filed an application to issue an additional 208,000,000 ordinary shares to the
public with the Securities and Exchange Commission. At present, the Securities and Exchange

Commission is considering the agplication.

Star Nucleus Company Limited (“Star Nucleus”)

On 21 Aprii 2004, iPSTAR Company Limited, a SATTEL’s subsidiary, established a new company, Star
Nucleus. The total authorised number of ordinary shares of Star Nucleus is 50,000 shares with a par
value of USD 1.00 each, totaling USD 5C,000.00. On 13 August 2004, the Board of Director’s of SATTEL
passed a resolution to apprcove a change in the shareholding structure of Star Nucleus from a
subsidiary of iPSTAR Company Limited to a subsidiary of SATTEL.

On 13 Deczmber 2004, Star Nucleus called on 10.00 shares with a par value of USD 1.00 each.

As at 31 December 2004, Star Nucleus had not yet commenced its business operations.

CS Loxinfo Public Company Limited (“CSL")

On 2 April 2004, CSL registered additional issued and paid-up share capital from 500 million shares at
the par value of Baht 1 each to 625 milion shares at the par value of Baht 1 each with the Ministry of
Commerce. CSL issued and offered these new shares {o the public and registered on the Stock
£xchange cf Thailand on 8 April 2004. The increase in share capital of CSL resulted in a decrease in the
interest of Shin Broadband Internet (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of SATTEL) from 50.02% to 40.02%.
SATTEL reassessed its power to contrc! CSL afier the dilution and changed the status of CSL from a2
subsidiary 0 an associate. SATTEL has deconsclidated CSL and recorded investment in CSL using the
equity method of accounting since the second quarter of 2004.
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investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (continued)

2)

c) CS Loxinfo Public Company Limited (*CSL") (continued)
SATT ZL -as acccunted for this change as a change in the status of its investment, and has not restated the
comiearz’ives. This change has neither impacted the shareholders’ equity nor the statement of income for
the year znced 37 Dacember 2004. SATTEL recognised the unrealised gain on dilution of such investment
of Bant 377.08 miiiion and presented it in shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

At tho Zoard of Cirectors’ meetings of CSL on 10 May 2004 and the extraordinary shareholders’
Teetings of CSL on 14 June 2004, resolutions were passed to approve the issuance and allocation of
2.882 STT warran's to purchase ordinary shares to directors, employees and advisors of CSL (ESOP Grant
i1}, and << approve the increase in CSL’s registered capital by issuing additional ordinary shares in order to
reserve “cr the exercise of warrants under the ESOP above.

ITV Public Cempany Limited (“ITV")

On 1€ January 2304, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of ITV approved the allocation of newly
issuec sheres capital s a reserve for a private placement to strategic partners as follows:

© Tc allccate 150 million shares or 10% of ITV’s paid-up capital to Kantana Group Public Company Limited
{Kantznz); end
© ¢ ellecete 150 million shares or 10% of the Company’s paid-up capital to Mr. Tripop Limpapath.

The oflering srice for the strategic partners was Baht 10 per share. On 26 November 2004, the Board of
Direcicr’ Meegling approved an extension of the share subscriptions and payments of both strategic partners
until 37 Gciczer 2505.

On coimpieticn ¢f this ‘ransaction, the Company’s investment in ITV will be diluted from 53.01% to 42.44%.

in 2024, the ‘ssted and paid up capital of [TV increased from Baht 6,000.00 million to Baht 6,023.71 million
following tne sxercise of 4,74 million units of warrants by ITV’s directors and employees (ESOP). Consequently,
the Ccmpzny's investment in ITV was diluted from 53.22% to 53.01%. The gain on dilution amounting to Baht
10.48 millizr ~as beer recognised as sharenolders’ equity in the balance sheet.

AD Venture Company Limited Group (“ADV")

a) Shineedoicom Company Limited
Cn 7 Acii and 256 April 2004, the shareholders of Shineedotcom Company Limited at the extraordianry
meeti~g confirmed their resolution to approve the decrease in authorised and issued ordinary share capital

from C£€,22C,000 crdinary shares of Baht 10 per share to 19,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 per share.
The dzerzese in ordinary shares was registerec with the Ministry of Commerce on 23 September 2004.
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Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures {continued)

4)

b) AT Cyber Compeny Limited
In Juna 2004, AT Cyber Company Limited disposed cf all 0.87 million shares in Cata Line Thai Company
Limited at a total amount of Baht 1.15 million {according to proportion of invesiment by the subsidiary)
to Advanced Info Service Public Company L'mied. 7 e loss on disposal of investment amounting to
Baht 0.34 millior (according to proporiion of investment by tnhe subsidiary) was recognised ir the

consclideted stetement of income.
Teleinfo Media Company Limited (“TMC”)

In March 20C4, the Company sold all of its investment in TMC, a 38.25% joint venture with TOT Corporation
Public Compeny Limited (“TOT"), SingTel Interactive Pte., Ltd. (“SiP”) and the Company, to CS Loxinfo
Pubiic Company Limited {*CSL"), a subsidiary of SATT=L (SATT=L changed the status cf CSL from
subsidiary to associate since April 2004), for Baht 308 million. The Company had an unrealised gain on
disposal of investment in the amount of Baht 262.02 million. This entire amount was fuily eliminated with

investment in subsidizries, associates and jcint ventures in the financial statements.
Furthermore, CSL a'sc acquired 25% of TMC from S'? in the amount of Baht 201.50 million. The
transactiors resulted in the investment in TMC by Shin Group increasing from 38.25% tc 63.25% in the

consolidated financia. siatemenis.

The book value of assets and liabilities of TMC at the date of acquisition from SIP can be summarised as

follows;

Baht'000
Cash and cash eguivalents 25,965.08
Current assets 56,399.77
Non-current asse’s 24,887.26
Current liabilities (78,331.78)
Non-current liabilities (172.23)
3ook value of ne” assets 28,748.10
Cash paid 201,503.00
Goodwill (Note 14) 172,754.90
Cash, net 175,537.92

Goodwill from acquisition of the investment in TVIC from SIP of Baht 172.75 million is presented as an
intangible asset in the consolidated balance sheet (Note 14) and is amortised using the straight-line method

over its estimated usaful life of 12 years.
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Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (continued)

5)

Net assets from acc uision of investment in TMC from SiP are stated at the net book value at the date of acquisition. The
subsidiary is in the zreoess of agpraising the fair value of the property and equipment. The fair value of other TMC assets
approximates the boox vaiue. The difference between net bock value and net fair value will be adjusted through goodwill.

fonger a loint verture ¢ the Company since April 2004,
Thai Crunch Time Company Limited

On 12 April 2004, Tral AirAsia Company Limited, a joint venture of the Company, registered a new company “Thai Crunch
Time Cemparny Limitec”. The registered share capital was Baht 4 million for 400,000 shares with a par value of Baht 10.

Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited (“ADVANC”)

The issted ard pa'd-.2 cepital of ADVANC increased from Baht 2,238.52 million to Baht 2,945.18 million and share
premium increased “rc.m Baht 2C,274.52 million to Baht 20,470.52 million in order to support the exercise of 6.31 million
units of warrar’s by AZVANC's directors and employees (ESOP). Consequently, the Company’s investment in ADVANC
was diluted from 45.04% 10 42.21%. The gain on dilution amounting to Baht 87.67 million has been recognised under
sharehoiders’ ecuity i~ the balance sheet.

Dividend payment

For the year 2024, tre Company’s subsidiaries and associates paid dividends as follows:
Par value  Dividend ratio Amount paid
{Baht per share) (Baht per share) (Baht Mitlion)

SATTZL {a subsidia-y) 5.00 0.25 218.92
SM3 (a subsiciary) 10.00 111.11 100.00
ITAS (a subsicizry) 10.00 7.00 7.00
ADVANC (an zssocizts, 1.00 4.25 12,494.86
CSi_ {an associz’e) 1.00 0.15 93.75

11 Other investments

Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Miliion Baht Million Baht Million
General investments
fmperial Techrclogy Vanagemant
Services Fudlic Company Limited 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00
Other 1.25 - 1.25 -

Total otrer invesimens 26.25 25.00 26.25 25.00
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12 Property and equipment, net

Buildings &
improvements

As at 31 December 2003

Cost 395.26
Less accumulated

depreciation (197.06)
Less provision for

impairment -
Net book value 198.20

Transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2004

Additions 38.05
Increase from acquisition

of a joint venture 0.01
Decrease from change in

status from subsidiary

to associate (0.03)
Disposals, net (0.23)
Transfer, net 4.92
Write-off, nat (7.64)
Reclassification, net -
Depreciaticn charge (31.486)
Foreign currency

translation adjustment (8.07)
Closing net book vealue 192.75
As at 31 December 2004
Cost £622.77
Less accumulated

degreciation (230.02)
Less provision for
impairment -

Net book value 192.75

Consoclidated (Baht Million)

Furniture, Vehicles &
fixtures & vehicles under Computers& Rental
equipment finance leases  equipment equipment
4,235.82 144.03 679.02 11.34
(1,830.40) (66.24) (369.05) (9.39)
- - (18.72) -
2,405.42 77.79 291.24 1.95
516.13 36.67 129.G69 -
0.e9 1.15 14.09 -
(76.€7) (6.72) (180.23) -
(14.C1) {2.86) (23.94) -
1,322.98 0.79 (4.34) -
(4.13) {3.37) {1.45) -
(474.52) (27.863) (78.2C) (1.67)
(53.13) {0.14) 0.14 -
3,622.76 75.68 148.40 0.28
5,433.48 154.86 264.28 11.34
(1,810.72) (79.18) (29.81) (11.06)
- - (18.07) -
3,622.76 75.68 146.40 0.28

Assets under

construction Total
14,468.73 19,934.20
- (2,472.15)

- (18.72)
14,458.73 17,443.33
2,756.7¢ 3,476.73
2.75 18.68
(7.20) (271.85)

- (41.04)
{1,259.62) 64.73
- (16.59)

3.60 3.60

- (613.48)

17.25 (44.95)
15,981.60 20,019.47
15,981.80 22,268.33
- {(2,230.79)

- (18.07)
15,081.60 20,019.47




12 Property and ecuipment, net (continued)

Buildings &

improvements

As at 31 Decemper 2003
Cost 143.13
Less accumulated

depreciaticn (135.37)
Net book value 7.76

Transactions during tne year
ended 31 Deceimber 2004

Additions -
Dispcsals, net -
Transfers, net -
Write-offs, net -
Deprecization chargs (3.55)
Closing net book value 4.21

As at 31 December 2004

Cost 143.13
Less accumuiated

depreciaticn (138.92)
Net bock value 4.21

Furniture,
fixtures &

equipment

26.35

(22.17)
4.18

4.26
(0.07)

(0.03)

(2.01)

6.33

28.66

(22.33)
6.33

Company (Baht Million)

Vehicles &
vehicles
under

finance leases

47.33

(21.43)
25.90

2.84
(0.16)

(8.67)

19.91

44.10

(24.19)
19.91

Computers

Assets
under

&equipment construction

262.51

(248.39)
14.12

6.01
(0.12)

(5.68)

14.33

266.38

(252.05)
14.33

9.19

g9.19

4.04

(9.41)

3.82

3.82

3.82

Total

488.51

(427.36)
61.15

17.15
(0.35)
(9.41)
(0.03)

(19.91)
48.60

486.09

(437.49)
48.60

As a: 31 Decembper 2024, consciicated property and equipment included a subsidiary’s propeity and equipment under

concession agreemen’s of approximately Baht 2,016 million {2003: Baht 2,170 million). According to the concession

agreement, the subsic’ary must transfer its ownership of this related property and equipment to the Government of

Cambedie on the exoirztion date of the concession agreement, on 4 March 2028.

Furtherrmore, conscide’

property and equipment as at 31 December 2004 included a subsidiary’s project in progress

ad ¢
of Bant 15,313 millicm 2883: Bant 13,337 million) relating to the iPSTAR-1 project. The iPSTAR-1 project will be fully
operational with the ‘a.~ch of IPSTAR-1 in the middle of 2005. According to the concession agreement made with the

Ministry of informat or Commurication and Technology, the subsidiary must transfer its ownership of the iPSTAR-1

Satellite to the Vinisir of ‘nformation Communication and Technology on the date of completion of construction and

instailaticn.
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12 Property and eguipment, net (continued;}

The assets under consiruction are transferred to property and eguipment under concession agreements on

acceptance 2y the concessionaires and the transfer of legal title.

Borrowing costs of Baht 440 million (2003: Baht 576 millior), arising from the financing sgecifically entered into for

assets under corstructicn, were capitalised curing the year.

13 Property and equipment under concession agreements, net
Consolidated (Baht Million)

Redio &
telavision
Satellite broadcast
equipment equipment Total
As at 31 December 2003
Cost 10,915.86 3,482.96 14,408.82
Less accumulated amortisation (6,147.35) (1,185.70) (7,333.05)
Net book value 4,768.51 2,337.26 » 7,075.77
Transactions during the year ended
31 December 2004
Additions - 81.94 81.94
Decrease from change ir status from subsidiary
to associate, net (114.13) - (114.13}
Amortisation (723.31) (222.25) (945.586)
Closing net book value 3,931.07 2,156.85 6,098.02
As at 31 December 2004
Cost 10,582.71 3,574.90 14,157.61
Less accumulated amortisation (6,651.64) (1,4C7.85) (8,059.59)
Net book value 3,831.07 2,166.85 5,098.02

As at 31 December 20C4, the Group has the following future minimum lease receivables under non-cancelable
operating lezses in respect of its satellite equipment:
Consolidated

Banht Million
Less than 1 yeer 2,060
More than 1 year but less than 5 years 3,845
More than 5 years 714

6,619
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Property and eguiciment under concession agreements, net (continued)

In the first cuarte” ¢ 2033, Thaicom 3 satellite suffered damage in relation to a power supply system failure, resulting in
a loss of certain trarspcnder capacity. In the last quarter of 2003, the insurers paid compensation of USD 33 million for
the loss of trensconder capacity. MICT, the legal owner of Thaicom 3 satellite and SATTEL, a joint
beneficiary, have egreed to deposit the insurance claim proceeds from the insurers in an “Escrow Account” with
restricted terms cf reiease, such that SATTEL will be eligible to use the proceeds only for reimbursement of expenditures
relaiing to trensponcers and/or the construction of a new satellite to supplement losses on the transponder capacity of
Thaicom 3 satelite and such use of the proceeds will be limited to the maximum of the actual expenditures and is
subject to the ceasent of MICT. On 11 October 2004, SATTEL and MICT entered into the Escrow Agreement.

In the third cuarer cf 2004, due to spacecraft power maintenance, Thaicom 3 satellite was temporarily unavailable
when the ontoard catteries were recharged in order to prepare for the night of the eclipse. Currently, SATTEL and an
independent corsuiant are in the process of evaluating the impact of the above events on the remaining life of
Thaicom 3 satelite. The accounting remaining useful life of Thaicom 3 satellite is 6.4 years. These financial
staiements have rct recognised the implication that may have from the evaluation of the Thaicom 3's remaining

estimated usefui life.

Goodwill, net
Consolidated

Baht Miillion
As at 31 December 2003
Cost 1,863.77
Less accumulated emortisation (307.13)
Net book value 1,556.64
Transactions during the year ended 31 December 2004
‘rcrease from acsuisition of a joint venture, net 172.75
Decrease from change in status from subsidiary to associate, net (225.41)
Transfer, net 1.36
Amortisaticn (100.97)
Closing net ook vziue 1,404.37
As at 31 December 2004
Cost 1,800.53
Less accumulated zmertisation (396.16)

Net pook vaice 1,404.37
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16

intangible assets, net

As at 31 December 2003
Cost
Less accumulated amortisation

Net book vaiue

Transactions during the year ended
31 December 2004

Additicns

Increase from acquisiticn of & subsidiary, net

Decrezse from change in status from joint venture to
associate

Transfer, net

Amortisation

Foreign currency transletion adjustment

Closing net 500x value

As at 31 December 2004
Cost
Less accumulated amcrtisation

Net book vaiue

Trade accounts and notes payable

Consolidated

2004
Baht Million

Trade accounts and notes payable
- Third parties 1,115.90
- Related parties (Notz 30) 66.90
Total trade accounts and notes payable  1,182.80

Consolidated Company

Baht Million Baht Million

939.41 80.36

(562.13) (29.85)

377.28 30.70

60.92 0.02

1.39 -

(5.04) -

14.72 9.41

(89.08) (11.80)

(3.47) -

356.72 28.33

921.59 589.7¢

{564.87) (41.46)

356.72 28.33
Company

2003 2004 2003

Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million

994.¢1 1.47 0.31

29.55 0.13 1.31

1,024.48 1.60 1.82




17 Borrowings
Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million

Current

3ark overs zfte a2 s-ort-ferm loans

rom Tranca: Cstiiutions 2,112.10 1,187.00 - -
Shert-terr [oar. yo T other company - 6.10 - -
Current periion of ‘ong-term Zorrowings 2,223.73 1,871.30 - 226.76
Tinarce lezse ubilies 3.56 3.82 1.13 0.82
4,339.39 3,078.22 1.13 227.58

Non-current
Long-term ooy "gs 12,782.12 12,608.27 - -
Long-term csbentias 2,680.09 2,672.60 2,680.09 2,672.60
8.27 31.85 1.60 2.28
15,470.48 15,313.72 2,681.69 2,674.88
Tota! borrcwing: 19,809.87 18,391.94 2,682.82 2,902.46

In May 20C2. tha Somzeny issued and offered 3,60C,3CC units of debentures at Baht 1,000 each. The debentures
were unsuocrdina.sd and unsecured with a maturity period of 5 years from the issue date. The effective interest rate
of the couzcon iz £ 4C% per annum or Baht 305.28 per unit and will be paid once only at the maturity date. The
Company ~zs it e c3otion to redeem the debentures at the end of the third year from the issue date. The debentures

are presented nat o7 fransaction costs.

In 2C03, the Corpzny pought back certain debentures of Baht 301.20 million (excluding premium).

With respec: to “re alcremertioned debentures, the Company must comply with the conditions in the debenture
agreement concars .ng mainiaining certain financial ratios, dividend payment policy, guaraniee, sales or transfer of

assels, and maintening its interest in certain subsidiaries and associates.

Facility agreements in relation to the financing of the iPSTAR satellite project

On 7 Noverber 232, 2 suzsidiary entered into & USD 389.3 million credit agreement which comprises of three
agreements as fallcws:

a) Loan credi: zgrsement fer USD 184.5 million. The guarantor is the Export-import Bank of the United States. The
.0an is rapayesie within €.5 years.

b) [Loan crzdit acreement Tor USD 79.8 million. The guarantor is a French export and import bank (Compagnie
Francaise ¢ Azsurance sour le Commerce Exterieur). The loan is repayable within 9.5 years.
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17 Borrowings (continued)

c)

Loan credit agreement from another group of commeicial banks for USD 125 million. The loan is repayable
within 6 years. This has no guarantors.

The loans under each loan credit agreement bear interest at various rates. These are based on margins over the
London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) for a period of six months and are fixed rates. The subsidiary pays a
commitment fee on the unused portion of the facilities. in addition, with respect to the aforementioned credit
agreements, the subsidiary must comply with the conditions in the credit agreements concerning maintaining
certain financial ratios, dividend payment policy, guarantee, sales or transfer of assets, and investment. The
amounts of principal were repayable from November 2034, with repayment on a semi-annual basis. However,
the agreement has been amended to extend the first repayment date with the banks to the year 2005.

The movements in the borrowings can be analysed as follows:

Consolidated Company
Baht Million Baht Million

For the year ended 31 December 2004

Opening balance 18,391.94 2,902.48
Additions, net 7,085.80 0.65
Increase from acquisition of a subsidiary, net 0.32 -
Decrease from change in status from subsidiary to associate, net (564.16) -
Repayments (5,026.48) (236.64)
Amortisation of discount/deferred debt issuance costs 36.98 16.35
Reclassification from accounts payable - property and equipment 140.62 -
Foreign currency translation adjustment (235.15) -
Closing balance 19,809.87 2,682.82

The interest rate exposure of the borrowings of the Group ana the Company is as follows:




17 Borrowings (contirued)
Consolidated
2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million

Total borrowings:

- at fixad rates 7,167.52 7,070.47
- at floating reies 12,642.35 11,321.47
19,809.87 18,391.94

Weighted average interest rates: (Percent)

- bank overdreft and short-term loans

from finarciel institutions 2.75 2.17
- short-term loan from cther company - 1.00
- long-term koirowings 3.17 2.77
- long-terr: ceventures 5.40 5.40
- finance lcasz liabilities 5.99 7.09

Maturity o7 ncn-current borrowings as at 31 December 2004 are as follows:

Consolidated
Finance lease
Borrowings liabilities
Baht Million Baht Million

2008 2,289.57 2.54
2007 4,947.12 2.19
2008 2,696.56 0.69
2008 end =fter 5,528.96 2.85

15,462.21 8.27

Borrowing facilities
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Company
2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million

2,682.82 2,802.46

2,682.82 2,902.46

- 5.20

5.40 5.40

7.73 8.36
Company

Finance lease
Borrowings liabilities
Baht Million Baht Million

- 1.07
- 0.53
2,680.09 -
2,680.09 1.60

The Groug and ihe Cempany have the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities:

Floaiing rele

- expiry af’er one year
Fixec rate

- expiry atler one year

Tota:

Consolidated
2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million

2,861.78 4,697.01

628.00 711.31
3,489.78 5,408.32
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18 Other current liabilities
Consolidated Company
2004 2008 2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Miilion Baht Million Baht Million

Accrued expenses 514.27 436.23 44 11 44.05
De'erred income and advance receipts 286.91 213.61 - -
Accounts payable -cther 319.86 258.46 4.58 19.41
Tax payable 207.29 208.59 8.94 5.5C
Others 85.55 193.94 2.59 54.44
Total other current liabilities 1,413.88 1,311.83 60.22 123.4C

19 Foreign currency forward contract, net
Consclidated
2004 2003

Baht Million Baht Million

Foreign currency forward centracts receivable, net

Contracts receivable 1,478.66 -
Contracts payable (1.478.10) -
Total foreign currency forward contracts receivable, net 0.56 -

Less current portior. of foreign currency forwarc
contracts receivable, net 0.56 -
Non-current portion of foreign currency forward
contracts receivable - -

Foreign currency forward contracts payable, net

Contracts receivable 10,839.77 8,291.06
Contracts payable (11,403.44) (9,632.07}
Total foreign currency forward centracts payable, net (563.67) (641.01)

Less curient portion of foreign currency forwarc contracts

payable, net (563.67) (604.49)
Non-current portion of foreign currency forward contracis
payable, net - (36.52)




20 Share capital, premium and warrants

Share capital and premium

Movement ¢7 shars cepital is as follows:-
Authorised
number of
shares
Million shares

As at 31 December 2002 5,000.00
issue of sheres -
As at 31 December 2003 5,000.00
Issue of sheres -
As at 31 December 2004 5,000.00

During the year 2024, ihe Company registered issued anc paid-up share capital in respect of 14.56 million units of
warrants issuec to direciers and employees (ESCP) which were exercised to be 14.58 million ordinary shares.

Consequerty, ‘"¢ 'ssued and paid-up share capita! increased from Baht 2,939.05 million to Baht 2,953.63 miilion

Number of
shares

Million shares

2,937.00
2.05
2,939.05
14.58
2,953.63

Issued and fully paid up shares

Ordinary Share
shares premium
Baht Millio  Baht Million
2,837.00 4,837.50
2.05 34.40
2,939.05 4,871.90
14.58 237.38
2,953.63 5,109.28

anc share zrerr U increassc from Baht 4,871.8C million to Baht 5,109.28 million.

Warrants

Movements in t ¢ ~umber ¢ outstanding warranis are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2004 ('000 units)

ESCRP - CGrant !

- Director

- Employee
“etai

ESOP - Grant

- Director

- Employees
Total

ESOP - Grant 1=

- Birector

- Employees
Total

SHIN - Wt

Tota:

Opening

balance

13,662.80
7,827.90
21,380.70

11,528.20
6,555.50
18,083.70

200,000.00
239,474.40

Exercised Granted
(3,222.80) -
(4,004.40) -
(7,227.20) -
(625.70) -
(1,246.50) -
(1,772.20) -
- 9,290.60

- 4,369.60

- 13,660.20

(4.06) -
(9,003.46) 13,660.20

Total
Baht Million

7,774.50
36.45
7,810.85
251.96
8,062.91

Closing
balance

10,340.00
3,823.50
14,163.50

11,002.50
5,309.00
16,311.50

9,290.60
4,369.60
13,660.20
199,995.94
244,131.14
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a) Warrants issued and offered to directors and employees (ESOP)

The Company issued and offered three grants of warrants to directors and employees which are in registered form and
non-transferrable. The terms of the warrants do not exceed 5 years. The exercise ratio and price are detailed below:

Exercise
Issued units Percentage® price Exercise period
Issue date (Million) (Baht/unit) Start End
ESOP - Grant | 27 March 2002  29.00 0.89 17.704 27 March 2003 26 March 2007
ESOP - Grant li 30 May 2003 18.08 0.81 13.597 31 May 2004 30 iviay 2008
ESOP - Grant Il 31 May 2004 13.66 0.46 36.214 31 May 2005 30 May 2009

* Percentage of the Company’s total paid-up share capital (before dilution) at the issue date.

At *he Board of Direciors’ meeting on 13 August 2004, the board approved the declaration of an interim dividend {Note
35), of which the amount paid was greater than 50% of net profit after tax. Consequently, this affects the exercise ratios
and exercise prices. Therefore, the company changad the exercise ratios and exercise prices of warrants Grant |, [l anc
Il 2s detailed below. The new exercise prices and exercise ratios were effective from 25 August 2004 onwards.

Exercise Ratio (unit) Exercise price (Baht/unit)

Old New Old New
ESOP - Grant | 1:1 1.0054 : 1 17.80 17.704
ESOP - Grant |l 1:1 1.0054 : 1 13.67 13.567
ESOP - Grant Ill 1:1 1.0054 : 1 36.41 36.214

b) Warrants issued and offered to the public (Shin-W1)

In May 2002, the Company issued and offered 200 million units of warrants of Baht 3.10 each to purchase nawly
issued ordinary shares of the Company. The warrants are in registered from and are transferable with a maturity
period of 5 years from the issue date. The exercise ratio is 1 unit of warrant to 1 ordinary share and the exercise
price is Baht 20.50 each. The exercise period is every three months from the issue date. The first exercise date
was 30 August 2003 and the last date is 21 May 2007. The warrants are presented net of transaction costs.

Legal reserve
The legal reserve of the Company was established in accordance with the provisions of the Public Company Limited

Act B.E. 2535, which reguires the appropriation as legal reserve of at least 5% of net income for the year untii the

reserve reaches 10% cof the authorised share capital. This reserve is not available for dividend distribution.



22

23

24

Minority interestis

Consolidated

2004 2003

Baht Million Baht Million

Opening baiance 5,013.22 4,367.28

Purchase ¢f invesiment in subsidiaries 205.95 18.28

Changed ir sta’us from subsidiary to associate (1,034.89) -

Disposal of invesiment in subsidiaries - 261.08

Increased in share capital by subsidiaries 716.32 193.06

Share of net resu!’ of subsidiaries 527.38 265.09

Foreign currency “ranslation adjustment (15.82) (91.57)

Divicend pzymen? (106.21) -

Closing balance 5,305.95 5,013.22

Other income
Other income for the year ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 comprised:
Consolidated Company
2003 2003
2004 Restated 2004 Restated

Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million

Gain on sheare ‘ransfer of a subsidiary - 88.10 - -
Interest income 54.34 43.93 30.16 45.76
Gain on unwircirg ard purchasing of

fereign currercy opiion contracts 293.91 145.16 - -

Reversal of orevision for liabilities

and charges - 1,548.69 - 1,548.69
Others 31.31 261.54 1.64 43.86
Tota! other ‘nccmre 379.56 2,087.42 31.80 1,638.31

Directors’ remuneration

In the years exced 31 December 2004 and 2003, the remuneration of directors in the consolidated financial
statements arounied to 3aht 14.41 million and Baht 13.89 million, respectively and in the company financial

stalemen: amcuriaec o Bent 7.89 million and 7.52 million, respectively. Directors’ remuneration represents salary,

provident fund maeling fees and gratuities as approved by the shareholders of the Group and the Company in their

Ordinary Cene-al Viesting of Shareholders.
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25 Provident fund

The Group has established a contributory registered provident fund, in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E.
2530. The registered provident fund plan was approvec by the Ministry of Finance on 23 July 1990 and the provident

fund’s name was amended on 21 January 1993.

Under the plan, the employees must contribute 3% - 7% of their basic salaries. The Company’s contribution is
based or the length of service of staff. The Company has appointed a fund manager to manage the fund in

accordance with the terms and conditions prescribed in Ministerial Regulation No. 2 (B.E. 2532) issued under the

Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530.

26 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to shareho!ders by

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The basic earnings per share and the diluted earnings per share are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December (Consolidated and Company)

Net profit

('000 Banht)
2004 2C03
Restated
Basic earnings per share 8,699,749 9,596,944

The effect of dilutive

potential shares - -
Diluted earnings per share 8,699,749 9,596,844

27 Operating income

106,419
3,055,448 2,943,599

Weighted number
of shares
('000 Shares)
2004 20083

2,949,029 2,937,489

6,110

The following have been charged in arriving at operating income:

Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment charge/

(Reversal of impairment charge)
Staff costs

As at 31 December 2004, the Group emplcyed 3,661 employees (2003: 3,681 employees) on a consolidated basis

Consolidated
2004 2003

Baht Million Baht Million

1,749.10  1,768.32
- (74.65)
1,332.26  1,303.49

and 113 employees (2003: 112 employees) at the Company level.

151.72

Earnings per share

(Baht)

2004 2003
Resteted
2.95 3.27
0.10) (0.01)
2.85 3.26

Company
2004 2003

Baht Million Baht Miliion

31.71 34.03

151.18
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28 Segment inforimation (continued)

The Group s organised into the following main business segments:

Satellite business

Wireless telecommunications

internet business

information technciogy

Advertising, mediz, radio,

and television broadcasting

Airline

Consumer finarce

Corporate and other activities

Transponder rental and related services including the provision of earth station

services and uplink and downlink services

Provision of mobile telecommunication trading and rental of telecommunications

equipment and accessories in Cambodia and Thailand

Internet investments and Internet Services Provider (ISP) in Thailand

Providing computer services and implementation

Airtime rental, media production, publication of white and yellow pages telephone
directories and the provision of advertising services to the Group and third parties

Providing a low-fare airline service

Carrying on consumer finance business

Corporate and other activities primarily relating to development and synergies that
exist within the business, setting financial and performance targets for operating

companies and assisting operating companies in obtaining financing on the most
attractive terms possible.
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29 Net cash flows from operating activities

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities for the years ended 3% December is as follows:

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit for the vear

Adjustment for:

Depreciation charges

Amortisation charges

Loss on sale of investment

Gain on share transfer of a
subsidiary

Share of net rasult of investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures
anc associaies

Reverszl of provision for
liabilities and charges

Unrealised gain on exchange rate

Realised (gain’ loss on
exchange rate

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Share of net resul’ of suksidiaries
to minority interests

Others

Notes

12

13- 15

10

22

Consolidated

2004

Baht

8,699,749,161

613,480,557
1,135,621,708

(8,814,649,052)

(609,934,805)

290,603,463
95,107,951

527,377,203
112,512,682

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

- trade accounts anc notes receivable (244,441,803)

- loan and accrued irterest
receivable

- inventories

- other current assets

- other assetls

- trade accounts anc notes payable

- accrued corcession
- other currert liabilities
- accrued long-term interest
- other ligbilities

Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities

(1,094,011,173)
67,665,468
68,812,819

(94,277,445)
395,886,410
337,838,207
375,894,795
161,499,650
(20,230,416)

2,004,505,380

2003
Restated
Baht

9,596,043,941

584,368,247
©,173,951,471
1,411,867

(88,104,450)

(7,870,429,260)

(1,548,693,542)
1435,362,489)

68,232,062
39,572,638

265,097,108
176,118,549

40,925,357

(230,346,559)
179,916,191
(130,058,536)
28,634,763
57,077,782
(79,715,851)
144,058,027
(65,218,805)

1,818,378,837

Company
2004 2003
Restated
Baht Baht
8,699,749,161 9,595,943,941
19,915,666 24,112,833
11,800,028 8,815,279

(8,893,083,904)

12,573,081

3,968,810

(7,617,109)
150,000
(575,956)
(52,636,616)
161,499,650

(44,313,213)

(8,174,248,036)

(1,548,693,542)
(108,098)

(42,020,907)

28,025,235

219,139,595

(10,933,076)
85,450
(14,57C,240)
(131,498,571)
144,069,026
1,012,982

101,232,971
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30 Related party transactions

The princizal shzre ~cicer of ine Company is the Shinawatra family. Transactions related to companies of which Shinawatra
family members 2= principe! shareholders or directors are recognised as related party transactions with the Company.

During the vea:, "2 Group entered into a number of transactions with related parties, the terms of which were
negotiatec on zn 2m's lergth basis in the ordinary course of business and according to normal trade conditions.
Consulting

mer: service fees are charged on a mutually agreed basis as a percentage of assets. Treasury
fees, which are irciuded in consulting and management service fees, are charged on a percentage of transaction
amounts. ~rarczciens of work in progress between a subsidiary and related parties were carried out based on
hourly rates piu's = ~eimbursement of actual expenses.

The Groun nac ir=nsaciiors with related parties for ine years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 as follows:

a) Sales of goods and services

Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million Bant Million Baht Million Baht Million
Service income
Subsidiaries
Consuiiing a~d management services - - 78.04 76.34
‘nterestincome - - - 14.08
Dividend irccme - - 219.68 154.94
- - 297.72 245.36
Sale ¢! investnernt 1.15 - 306.00 -
Associates
Consuiling a-d management services 216.47 230.08 217.92 229.89
Comguier service inccme 109.43 85.96 - -
Advertisinc inzome 808.59 708.95 - -
(Cross 2034: Baht 2,344.46 million
2202: Baht 2,002.09 million)
Rentza! ‘inccme 77.15 20.86 - -
Sales of ecuizmen - 19.47 - -
Dividerd irccmie 5,408.29 4,486.17 5,370.78 4,486.17
6,619.93 5,631.49 5,588.70 4,716.06
Joint ventures
Consu'ling a~g management services 0.44 1.45 0.46 2.35
Computer services income 1.52 2.56 - -
Advertising imcome 4.10 0.09 -
{Gross 2204: Bahk? 13.92 million
Z2208: Baht 0.35 million)
Rental inccme 19.08 11.45 - -
25.14 15.55 0.46 2.35
Related parties
Computer serv ces income and others 6.88 7.01 0.39 0.36
Rertal anc adverlsirg inccme 4.48 3.73 - -

11.36 10.74 0.39 0.36
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30 Related party transactions (continued)

b) Purchase of goods and services

Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million

Service expense and rental

Subsidiaries
Computer and management services - - 5.19 10.05
Acivertising expenses and others - - 38.63 37.038
Purchase of investment - - - 1,544.40
- - 43.82 1,5691.48
Associates
Rental and other expenses 60.05 130.34 1.35 1.07
Joint ventures
Advertising and other expenses 4.25 1.22 0.87 -
Related parties
Rental and other expenses 1561.75 142.05 24.26 24.36
Payment for work-in-progress 60.18 54.88 - -
Purchase of assets - 5.04 - -
211.93 201.97 24.26 24.36
Dividend paid
Major shareholder 2,707.69 1,858.67 2,707.69 1,859.67
Directors 3.20 0.38 3.20 0.38
2,710.89 1,860.05 2,710.89 1,850.05

c) Outstanding balance arising from sales/purchases of goods and services as at 31 December

Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million

Trade accounts receivable - related parties

Subsidiaries - - 10.97 13.94

Associaies 453.62 573.82 0.42 -

Joint ventures 16.24 1.28 - -

Related parties 8.21 C.156 - -
Total trade accounts receivable

- related parties 478.07 575.25 11.39 13.94
Accrued income - related parties

Subsidiaries - - 2.23 0.94

Associates 10.04 16.39 1.54 4.36

Joint ventures 4,28 0.10 0.18 0.07

Related parties - 0.05 - -
Total accrued income - related parties 14.32 16.54 3.95 5.37
Trade accounts and notes payable - related parties

Subsidiaries - - - 0.51

Associates 58.29 22.37 - 0.05

Related parties 7.61 7.18 0.13 0.75

Total trade accounts and notes payable - related parties 66.90 29.55 0.13 1.31




30 Related party transactions {continued)

d) Amounts due from and advances to related parties as at 31 December

Amounts due from anc advances {o
related parties
Subsidieries
Associates
Joint ventures
RAelatec parties
Total amounts due from and
advances to related parties

Consolidated

2004
Baht Million

5.84
5.01
0.01

10.86

2003
Baht Million

0.20
0.07
5.1

6.08

e} Amounts due tc and loans from related parties as at 31 December

Amounts due to anc loans from
related parties
Subsidieries
Associgies
Relatea nartes
Total amounts due to and

loans from related parties

fy  Other assets as at 31 December

Customer deposits
Associates
Reiated periies

Total other assets

Consolidated

2004
Baht Million

2.87
3.56

6.43

2003
Baht Million

1.53
0.76

2.29

Consolidated

2004
Baht Million

31.89
31.89

2003
Baht Miltion

3.76
22.41
26.17

133

Company
2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Millicn

0.04 0.25
0.21 0.69
0.01 0.12
- 0.15
0.26 1.21
Company
2004 2003

Baht Million Baht Million

0.66 3.16

0.66 3.16
Company

2004 2003

Baht Mitlion Baht Million

5.68 5.84
5.68 5.84
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30

Related party transactiors (continued)
g) Warrants granted to directors (Note 20}
hy Special reward program

Certain subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures have granted rights to receive a special reward (“Special
Rewarc Program”) to eligible directors and employees of the companies. The rights will be granted once a year or
5 consecutive years (cormmencing from the year 2002). The rights may be exercised after the first year of tne grant
date but not exceeding 3 years. The calculation of the Special Reward Program is based on the improvement in
operational performance of such subsidiaries, associates and joint venture between the date the rights were granted
and the date the rights were exercised. However, *he reward may not exceed each individual’s budget. The

movemeant of the Special Reward Program is as follow:

As at 31 December 2004 (Million units)

Issued year Granied Excercised Balance
Grant | 2002 3.3 (2.2) 1.1
Grant li 2003 0.5 (0.2) 0.3
Grant [l 2004 0.6 - 0.6
Total 4.4 (2.4) 2.0

i) Letters of Comfort

As at 31 December 2003 the Company and its subsidiaries had issued letters of comfort to banks to support
credits obtained oy subsidiaries and joint ventures in the amount of Baht 220.24 million (2004: nil). Under the term
of the commitments, the Company and subsidiaries must hold their interests in their subsidiaries and joint
ventures and cannot plecgs any of their shares until the loans are fully repaid.

iy Other agreements with related parties

Significant commitmenis with related parties are as follows:

1. Asat 31 December 2C04 a subsidiary had a contingent liasiity for a long-term loan guaraniee for its subsidiary in
the amount of Baht §06.60 million (2003: Baht 8C5.60 miiiion).

2. Cer:ain subsidiaries, associates and joint venturss nave entered irto agreements with the Company, under
which the Company s committed to provide consulting and management services and other central services
for a pericd of one year with an option to renew. The subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are committed to
pay the Company fcr services in respect of the agreements at approximately Baht 20.80 million per month
(2003: Bant 21.31 millicn per month).
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Interest in joint ventures
Teleinfo Media Ccmpany Limited

Teieinfo Medie Ccmpany Limited (“TMC”} is a joint venture between the Company, TOT Corporation Public
Company Limiec (“7OT") end SingTel Interactive Pte. Ltd. (“SIP”). The interests in the joint venture of the
Company, ~O7" and Si> were 38.25%, 36.75% and 25.00%, respectively until March 2004. CS Loxinfo Public
Company Limitec ("CSL"), a subsidiary of SATTEL (SATTEL has changed the status of CSL from subsidiary to
associate since A 2ril 2004) (Note 10e), acquired shares in TMC from the Company and SIP. This is resulted in a
change in status of TMC to an assosicate between CSL and TOT in proportionate investment 63.25% and
36.75%, respectivaiy.

ArcCyber Company Limited

ArcCyber Comery Limited (“ARC”) is a joint ventiure between AD Venture Company Limited (“ADV”), 290.91%
suosidiary, and ATT Communications (Thailand) (“NTT Thailand”), a subsidiary of NTT Communications
Corporaticr, ac 3ana Pat~zna Inter-Holding Public Company Limited. As at 31 December 2004 and 2003, the
interests in the icint venture of ADV, NTT Thailand and Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Public Company Limited
were 47.5C%, 47.80% anc 5.00%, respectively. However, ARC plans to cease its operation.

Lao Telecommunications Company Limited

Lao Teleccmmunizations Company Limited (“LTC”) is a joint venture between SATTEL the Government of the
Laos Peoole’'s Jemocratic Republic (“Laos PDR”). As at 31 December 2004 and 2003, the interests in the joint
venture of SATTE_ and Lacs PDR were 49.00% and 51.00%, respectively.

Thai AirAsia Company Limited

Thal AirAsiz Compoany Limited ("TAA”) is a joint venture between the Company and AA International Limited
(“AAI™). As at 31 December 2004 and 2003, the interests in the joint venture of the Company and AAl are
50.C0% and 4€.CC%, respectively.

Capital OK Company Limited

Capital CX Corpzny Limited (*OK”) is a joint venture between the Company and DBS Bank Limited of Singapore
“D3S"). As at 37 Secembezr 2004 and 2003, the interests in the joint venture of the Company and DBS are

60.00% anc 4C.CC%, respectively.
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32 Financial instruments

The crincipe. financia: risks faced by the Group are interest rate risk and exchange rate risk. The Group
borrows & “xed and floating rates of interest to finance its operations. Sales, purchases and a portion of

‘borrowings zre transected in foreign currencies. In order to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in

exchange relas and interest rates, the Group and the Company make use of derivative financial instruments.

The objectives of using financial instruments are to reduce uncertainty over future cash flows arising from
movemer:s in interest and exchange rates, and to manage the liquidity of cash resources. The following
strategies ars employed to achieve these objectives. interest rate exposures are managed through interest rate
swaps takar out with commercial banks and foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign currency options
are taken ou’ to manage the currency risks in future sales, purchases and loan repayments. Decisions on the
level of risk undertaker are governed by corporate policy, which has established limits by transaction type and
by ccunterpaity.

Trading fer speculative purposes is prohibited. All derivative transactions are subject to approval by the
managermer: before execution.

Managemar: of currency and interest rate exposures is the responsibility of the Treasury Department. Monthiy
managemen’ reports contain details of cost and market value for all derivative financial instruments including
outstending “orward contracts and interest rate swap. An analysis of exposures against the limits established
by the manegement is also provided. These limits principally cover the maximum permitted exposure in
respect o

o Foreigrn exchange transactions

o  rloaling rate borrowings
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32 Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign currercy risk

As at 31 December 2004 and 2003, the Group had outstanding foreign currency assets and liabilities after

forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options as ‘ollows:

Consolidated
2004 2003
Currency Currency

{Unit : Million) Baht Million  (Unit : Million) Baht Million

Assets

US Dollars 38.01 ©,483.18 33.13 1,309.76
Euro 0.26 13.85 0.78 38.54
Australian Dollars 0.08 2.47 0.48 14.01
Pounds Steriing 0.001 0.10 0.13 9.05
Singapore Dollars 0.02 0.58 - -
Indian Rupee 183.36 1563.73 - -
Hong Kong Dollars 0.04 0.20 0.02 Cc.12
Ma’aysian Ringgit 1.17 11.65 - -
Mataka Macau 3.68 37.10 - -

Total 1,702.85 1,371.48

Liabilities

US Dollars 35.89 1,405.98 62.56 2,486.17
Euro 0.02 0.85 0.18 8.82
Australian Dollars 0.05 1.63 0.16 4.68
Norwegian Kroner 4.37 28.32 4.40 25.19
Pounds Sterling 0.01 1.04 - -
Indian Rupee 43.90 42.51 - -
Hong Kong Dollars - - 0.20 1.05

Total 1,481.43 2,526.91

Foreign currency assets represent cash in hand and ceposits witn foreign and local banks, account receivable
and other assets. Foreigin currency liabilities represent trade accounts payable, accounts payable - property
and equipment and loans.




32 Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign currency forward contracts

139

Foreign currency {ocrward contracts are entered into {0 manage exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency

exchange retes raleied o short-term and long-term borrowings in US Dollar currency.

As at 31 Decembder 2C04, the settlement dates or open foreign currency forward contracts were within one year

(2003: -2 years,. The iocal currency amounts to be paid of the outstanding contracts were as follows:

2004
USD Million Baht Million

Current 315 12,881
Non - current - -
Tota 315 12,881
Fair values

Consolidated

2003
Baht Million
7,460
2,172
9,632

The carryirg armount of casn and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable and short-term borrowings

aoproximates thz fzir value due to the short maturities of these instruments. The value of non-current borrowings is

estimated using ¢iscountec cash flows based on the Group’s incremental borrowing rates for similar types of

borrewings, as folicws:

Consolidated

2004
Carrying
amount Fair value
Baht Million Baht Million

Long-term cebt excluding

Company

finance lease lizoilities) 15,462.21 15,845.27
2004
Carrying
amount Fair value
Baht Million Baht Million

Long-term czbt eciuding
finance zase liz2iiles) 2,680.09 2,804.81

20083

Fair value
Baht Million

16,880.30

20083

Fair value

Baht Million

2,854.35
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Financial instruments (continued)
Net fair values of derivative financial instruments
The net fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date were as fcllows:

Consolidated
2004 2003
Baht Million Baht Million

Favourable foreign currency option contracts 531 604
Unfavourable foreign cuirency forward coniracis (553) (606,

The net fair velues of foreign currency forward contrects and option contracts have been calculated based on rates

quoted by the Group’s banxkers to terminate the contracts at the balance sheet date.
Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risks. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. Derivative counterparties and cash

transaclions are limited to high quality financial institutions.
Contingencies and commitments
a) Concession commitments

Certain subsiciaries and joint ventures heve obtained concessions from government agencies, both in Thailand anc
other countries as set out in Note 1, for the operation of satellite services, radio-television broadcasting, internet
services and mobile telephone networks. Under the terms of the concessions, they have certain commitments to the
government agencies, ncluding commiiments to procure, install and maintain operational equipment, and
commitments to pay anrual fees to the relevant government agencies based on revenue percentages or minimum
fees, whichever are higher, as set out in the individual agreements. The Group accounts for such commitments on a

time basis as the expenciture is incurred.
Shin Satellite Public Company Limited (“SATTEL™)

Under its concession agrsement, SATTEL must pay an annuai fee to the Ministry of Information Communication and
Technology besed on cer:ain percentages of certain service income or at minimum levels specified in the agreement,
whichever is the higher. In addition, SATTEL, according to the agreement, must transfer its ownership of all satellites,
command and monitoring stations and other operating equipmeni to the Ministry on the dates of completion of

construction 21d installation.
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33 Contingencies anc commitments (continued)

Cambodia Shinawatra Company Limited (“CAM”)

CAM, a sucsidizry in Cambedia, has obtained a concession from the Directorate of Post and Telecommunications of
Cambodie to coerate a domestic telephone network for a period of 35 years, under an agreement dated 4 Miarch
1988 and gn arme~ament thereto dated 4 March 1997. Under the agreement, the company will transfer its ownership

of all fixed assets 0 the Gevernment of Cambodia on the date of the expiration of the agreement in 2028.

b)  Shareholder agreements

The Comgany rss entered into shareholder agreements and other agreements with strategic partners and
governmert agercies both in Thailand and other countries as follows:

Singapore Telecommunications Limited (“Singtel”)

The Compzany hes a sharenholders’ agreement with Singte! in respect of its equity investment in Advanced Info
Services Public Company Limited {(*ADVANC”) which sets out the participatory right of the shareholders in the
menagement enc control of ADVANC. This shareholders’ agreement contains a provision for resolution of disputes
beiween the sharchoiders. |0 the event that the shareholders are unable to reach agreement on significant corporate
actions, eitrer shareholder {the seller) may serve notice on the other shareholder (the buyer) requiring the buyer to
either purchase t-e seller’s interest in ADVANC, or if the buyer does not do so, then the seller must purchase the
buyer’s inieres! ir ADVANC. At present, there are no significant corporate actions on which the shareholders are not
in agreement.

The Government of the Lao People’s Democratic Republic (“Laos PDR")

Lac Teleccmmurizations Company Limited (“LTC") is a joint venture, which was established under the terms of a
Masier Agreerner: deted 8 October 1996, signed by the Government of the Laos People’'s Democratic Republic
(Leocs PCR; arc Shinawaira Computer and Communications Public Company Limited, the former name of the
Company. Accorcing o the Master Agreement, LTC has the right to provide telecommunications services - fixed
telephone, mcdiz telephone, international facilities, internet and paging - within the Laos PDR for 25 years.
Currently, Sherington Investments Pte Company Limited, which is a subsidiary of SATTEL, is a shareholder of LTGC,
owning 4€% ¢’ L7 C’s registered share capital. At the end of the 25th year in 2021, the Group has to transfer ail of
LTC’s sherss ic t-2 Covernment of the Laos PDR, without any charges.
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33 Contingencies and commitments (continued)

c)  Operating lease commitments - where a group company is ihe lessee

The future minimum lease payments under nor-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2004 and

2003 are as follows:

Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
Baht Mi'lion Baht Miltion Baht Million Baht Million

Not more than 1 year 124.30 85.58 - -
Mecre than 1 year ard not more than 5 years 204.82 116.49 - -
More than 5 years 48.09 52.45 - -

378.21 254.52 - -

d) Capital expenditure commitments

The Group’s capital expenditure contracted as at 31 Dacember 2004 and 2003 but not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (Company: nil; is as follows:
Consolidated

2004 2003

Currency Miltion Million

Related o0 iPSTAR groject usD 50.13 88.23
Norwegian Kroner 4.56 3.80

Australian Dollars 0.25 -

New Zeland Dollars 2.02 -

Related to GSM 18CJ Network usb 18.46 12.19

" Rural Telecormmunications network project in Laos usD 8.33 -

People’s Democratic Republic (proportion of

investmernt in a subsidiary)

e) Contingencies

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had commitments with banks, in respect of letters of guarantees for
satellite space segment leasing, custom duties, electricity usage and other transactions in the ordinary course
of business in the zmount of Baht 266.71 million and USD 39 million (2003: Baht 333.54 million) on a
consolidated basis enc Baht 73.17 million (2003: Baht 1G0.69 million) on a Company basis.
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33 Contingencies ancd commitments (continued)
e) Contingencies {(continued)

A subsidiary is 2 cefendan® in various legal actions relating to news reporting. In the opinion of the subsidiary’s
airectors, afier teki g ecprogriate legal advice, the outcome of such actions is not expected to give rise to any significant
loss and nc orovisicn or accrugls in respect of sucen legal actions have been raised in these financial statements.

Tax assessment in .ndia

The Income Tex Authority of India ("Tax Authority”) nas raised an assessment against a subsidiary for the
assessmen! yecrs 1886/97 o0 2001/02 (equivalent to financial years from 1 April 1995 to 31 March 2001) in respect
of revenues recaivad from the provision of satellite iransponder capacity to Indian customers, both residents and
non-residents. ¢ sudsidiery has deposited an aggregated amount of Rupee 183 million (approximately Baht 167
million) fcr these “ax assessments and also deposited for the assessment year 2002/03 to 2003/04, which is
presented zs 0" ne” assets in the balance sheets. 7, according to the final assessment, the subsidiary is not liable to
the tax, it woulc &z eligible ic receive the entire amount as a refund together with interest. As these assessments are
ongoing, ncne of This amount has been released to the income statement.

- Tax assessment for the assessment years 1996/97 to 1997/98

On 30 Jariary 2C24, the Commissioner of Income-Tax {(Appeals) (“CIT (A)") passed an appellate order in favour of
the subsidiery ‘0 waive the tax demand raised for the said assessment years.

- Tax assessment ‘or the assessment year 1998/99 to 2001/02
Or 22 Merch 2007, the CIT {A) passed a partial favourable order for assessment of the assessment years 1998/99 to

2001/02 steiing
appeal with “ne nccme-Tax Anpellate Tribunal (“ITAT”) with respect to this matter. Furthermore, CIT (A) passed an appellate

=% certain revenues from Indian residents are subject to Indian income tax. The subsidiary has filed an
oraer in faveur o7 12 sutsiciary for the assessment on revenues from Indian non-residents for the same assessment years.
- Tax assessment for the assessment year 2002/03 to 2003/04

The Tax Authory  as refunced an amount of Rupee 56.0 and 14.6 million (approximately Baht 49.2 and 12.8 million) in
respact of the v M nsicing tex certificates which were flec to the Tax Authority by the Indian resident customers for those
assessmen: yec's. mowever, ‘he Tax Authorily has not yet completed the detailed assessment for the assessment year
2082/03 cr initieer the cetaled assessment for the assessment year 2003/04.

Tax consuiiants 8.2 ned by Ue subsidiary have acvised the! in their view the outcome of the above proceedings for the tax
asssssmeris end sznetty for The assessment year 1898/39 to 2001/02 should be in favour of the subsidiary’s appeals at the
appellate ‘igval. Scosequently, no provisions have been recognised in these financial statements for the above issues.
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33 Contingencies and commitments (continued)

e} Contingencies (continued)
Assessment for various “axes in Cambodia

The Tax Departiment of Cambodia raised an assassmant against Cambodia Shinawatra Company Limitec (“CAM”),
a subsidiary in Cambodia, for various taxes for the pariods from 1885 to 2000, excluding 1998, amounting to USD
5 million (approximately 3aht 215 million). CAM is in the process of filing appeals with the Secretary of State, the
Ministry of Economy and Finance (“MoEF”} on the reasonable basis that the CAM had sufficient loss to carry
forwards as & tax deduction for the assessed periods. Subseguently, the Tax Department has re-audited the various
taxes for the szid periods and on 13 July 2004 issued a tax reassessment amounting to USD 1.3 miliion
{(approximately Baht 51 million) with penalties and interests, amounting to USD 1.6 million (approximately Baht 63
million), totaling USD 2.€ million (approximately Baht 114 million}.

On 11 November 2004, MoEF issuad the letter for 2n exemgtion of the said tax penalties and interests. The Tax
Authority of Cambodia is in the process of the tax reassessment, which CAM expects such tax assessment to be
approximately USD 0.7 million. CAM made a payment for the tax assessment amounting to USD 0.47 million
(approximately Baht 18 million) in the fourth quarter of 2004 and recognised USD 0.25 million (approximeately Baht
10 million) as provision fcr the assessment in thase financial statemenis.

Loan agreement of Lao Telecommunications Company Limited

Lao Telecommunications Company Limited (“LTC") entered into a loan agreement with the Ministry of Finance (‘MoF”) of the
Laos People’s Democratic Republic on 9 June 2000 of DM 4.41 million (according to proportion of investment in subsidiary)
for the procuremert and installation of a rural telecommunication network, and for consulting services. LTC has received
confirmation from MoF dated 29 August 2003 that the loan is no longer repayable by LTC. Under the confirmation from MoF
dated 11 August 2003, Mo~ owns the network assets, and LTC is the operator. At present, LTC has received an acceptance
to LTC'’s proposal from MoF dated 22 June 2004, in waich only network assets (excluding consuliing services) will be
transferred their ownership to LTC at 30% of the assets’ value, approximately amounting to Baht 22.93 million (proportion of
investment in a subsidiary). _TC has recognisad the assets and related loan in the first quarter of 2004. The loan bears interest
at the rate of 1% per annum and is repayable within 10 years, with the first installment commencement in 2003, following the
acceptance letiar of Lao’s gcovernment.

LTC is also a party to a loan agreement with the Ministry of Finance (“MoF”) for DM 7.35 million (proportion of investment
in a subsidiary} for the procurement and installation of Phase V of a rural telecommunications network. The procurement
and installation of Phase V have substantially been completed. Management of LTC is in the process of negotiation with
MoF to reduce the value cf assets and related loans to reflect their reasonable commercial value by proposing similar
terms and conditions with ihe Phase V. At present, management of LTC is preparing information to support the nroposed
carrying value of the related assets and is of the opinion that the Government of Laos will accept LTC's proposal. As a
result, LTC has recognised these assets and related loans at 30% of the asset value (excluding consuliing service fezs),
approximately amounting to Baht 43.95 million (proportion of investment in a subsidiary) in these financial statements.
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Contingencies end commitments (continued)

e) Contingencies (continued)

Report on the award of the arbitration panel relating to the Agreement for the Operation of Television Station of ITV

ITV Public Cemzany Limited (“ITV”), the Company's subsidiary, submitted a dispute to the Arbitration Institute on
17 Sepiember 2302 demanding that the Office of the Permanent Secretary, the Prime Minister’s Office pay
compensztion tc TV under the Agreement. The arbitration panel issued its award dated 30 January 2004 and ITV
was notified cf the awarc, the important points of which can be summarised as follows:

- The Prime Vinister's Office shall pay compensation to ITV in the amount of Baht 20 million;

- The concession fee o be paid shall be reduced and adjusted, by reducing the minimum guarantee to Baht
230 milllor per year and cancelling the annual increase in the minimum guarantee, and reducing the
concessior “ee 10 8.5% of gross revenue. TV shall pay a concession fee at the rate of 8.5% of gross revenue
or the minimum guaraniee of Baht 230 million, whichever is higher as from 3 July 2002;

- The =rirs Vinister's CHice shall return part of the minimum guarantee of Baht 800 million paid by ITV subject
to cenditiors outlined during the arbitration proceedings on 3 July 2003 to the Company. The amount to be
returred ¢ TV is Bant 570 million;

- 1TV may orcadcest its television programs during prime time (7.00 p.m. - 8.30 p.m.) without having to restrict
its prog-aims to news, documentaries and social benefit items. ITV must; however, broadcast news,
documeriteries and social benefit programs for not less than 50% of its total airtime, subject to the rules and
reguiaticns 'ssued by governmental agencies applicable in general to all television stations.

ITV recordec the accrued concession fee for the year ended 31 December 2004 and changed its television
program schedu.es from 1 April 2004 according to the arbitration panels’ ruling as mentioned above. TV did not
adjust the im2zct of the ebove ruling retrospectively in its 2003 financial statements.

The Prime Miniger's Office entered into the appeals process at Trial Court and Supreme Court level in April 2004.
if the Trial Ccur: and Supreme Court judge that the awards ruled by the arbitration panel are unfair and do not
comply with the law, they are not able to amend the awards judged by the arbitration panels by themselves.
Courts have o submit this dispute to the formal arbitration panel to settle the causes of dispute. However, the
Legal Bivisicn ¢i iTV is of the opinion that the judgement of the said courts shall not result in any significant
cdamages to TV sirce the arbitral tribunal has ruled either within the scope of the arbitration agreement or the
settlement of thz disputes presented to the arbitral tribunal, which were mutually determined and approved by ITV
end the PMC. Conseguently, management has not recorded the accrued concession fees in accordance with the
terms an< ceacitions of the concession agreement.

1TV hed reccroed accrued concession fees according to the original concession agreement, [TV’s liabilities
as at 37 Secam:zer 2004 and net profit for the year then ended would have increased and decreased by Baht 720
miilion respectively. As & result, ITV's basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share would have
decreased frar- ine reperied net profit of 0.17 Baht per share to a net loss of Baht 0.43 per share.
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33 Contingences and commitments (continued)

34

.e) Contingencies (continued)

Aircraft Lease Agreement of TAA

Thai AirAsia Company _imited (“TAA"), the Company’s joint venture, entered into an Aircraft Lease Agreement
which covers rental ard insurance arrangements on six aircraft. The commitment under this agreemants is
amotnting to USD 14.60 million (according to the proportior of investment in TAA). In adaition, the outstanding
commitment urder this aircraft lease agreement includes maintenance fees, which TAA must pay monthly fee
in US dollars. These maintenance fees vary from month to month depending on actual flight hours.

Filing under Chapter 17 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code of Space Systems/Loral, Inc.

On 15 July 2003, Lora! Space & Communications Lid. (“Lcral”}, the parent company of Space Systems/Loraj,
Inc., (*SS/L"), ihe principal contractor for the iPSTAR-1 sateliite construction, filed under Chapter 11 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code. As at 6 July 2004, Loral filed & petitior with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Scuthern
District of New York (“the Court”) regarding the oarincipal terms of its reorganisation plar. The Court has

~approved the expansicn of the exclusive filing pericd. On 22 October 2004, Loral and the statutory committes

of unsecured creditors appointed under Chapter 11 reacned an agreement on ine principal terms of its
reorganisation dlan and submited the aforementicned recrganisation plan and Disclosure Statemant to the
Court. Lora! expects tc exit Chapter 11 in the first guarter of 2005.

A subsidiary and SS/L. heve finalised the amendment of terms in the iPSTAR-1 sateliite construction contract
(Amendmert i) in respect of the delivery of iIPSTAR-1 satellite, contract value and terms of payments which has
been consented to by “1e iIPSTAR lenders. On 1 November 2004, SS/L filed the amendment contract with the
U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York for approval, which the Court has approved the
amended contract on 30 Nevember 2004 and ordered SS/L tc comply with the contract to continue with the
iPSTAR-1 satellite construction.

Promotional privileges

A subsidiary was grantad promotional privileges under the investment Promotion Act (3.E. 2520} by the Board
of Investment (BOI) in respect of earnings derived from rerdering telecommunication services of Thaicom-3
satellite project to customers outside Thailand. Promoticnal privileges include exemption from corporate
income tax for a period of eight years commencing from March 1997, when its revenue was first earned from
the promoted business. The subsidiary must comply with certain *erms and conditions required for the
promoted industries.

On 1€ November, 2003, & subsidiary was granted promotional privileges under the Investment Promotion Act
(B.E. 2520} as emended by the investment Promotion Act (No. 3} B.E. 2544 by the BOI in respect of earnings
derived from rendering te.ecommunication services of iPSTAR satellite project to customers outside Thailand.
Promotional privileges include exemption from corporate income tax for a periad of eight years from the date
revenue is first earnec from the promoted business. The subsidiary must comply with certain terms anc
conditions reguired for the promoted industries.

In 2004, total revenue derived from BOl-promoted activities amounted o Baht 487 million (2003: Banht 963 million).
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Dividends

At the annual crainary shareholders’ meeting on 23 April 2004, the shareholders approved the declaration of
dividerds for ine year 2003 for 2,947.47 million shares of Baht 0.90 each, totalling Baht 2,652.72 million. The
agividends weare naid to the shareholders in May 2004.

At the Bearc of Directors’ meeting on 13 August 2004, the board approved the declaration of an interim dividend for
the first hal” ¢ 2004 at Baht 0.92 each, totalling Baht 2,713.85 million. The interim dividends were paid to the
sharehoiders i~ Seotember 2004.
Subseqguent events
a) Increase in share cepital of group companies

At e enc of December 2004 and January 2005, certain warrants issued to directors and employees of the

Company, SATTEL end ADVANC were exercised, and these share issues were registered as increased share
cepital wii~ the Ministry of Commerce in January and February 2005, as detailed below:

Units of Share capital Premium on share Decrease in %
exercise increased capital increase of interest of
Company  (Million) (Million Bant) (Million Baht) the Company
from to from to from o]
SHIN 0.59 2,953.63 2,954.23 5,109.28 5,166.85 - -
SATTEL 0.16 4,384.41 4,385.97 2,198.40 2,199.24 51.40 51.38
ADVANGC 0.63 2,945.19 2,945.82 20,470.52 20,497.50 42.91 42.90

b) Establishment of a SATTEU's subsidiary in Brazil

At the Eoz d of Directors’ meeting of SATTEL on 25 January 2005, a resolution was passed to approve iPSTAR
Company _imited to establish iPSTAR DO BRASIL in Brazil in order to provide iPSTAR broadband services in
Brezil. The total authorised number of orcinary shares is 100,000 shares with a par value of USD 1.0 each and
all equity is held by iPSTAR Company Limited.

¢} The resolutions of Board of Directors’ meetings and Sharehholders’ meetings

Bozrd cf Zirectiors’ meetings and the Shareholders’ meeting held after the balance sheet date are as follows:

- Tre Eoerd of Directors’ meeting of SHIN on 18 February 2005

- The Boerd of Directors’ meeting of SATTEL on 17 February 2005
- The Eoerd of Directors’ meeting of ITV on 158 February 2005

- The Boera of Directors’ meeting of ADVANC on 17 February 2005
- The Boerd of Directors’ meeting of CSL on 16 February 2005

- Trhe 8hearshelders’ meeting of LTC on 9§ February 2005
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36 Subseqguent events (continued)

The above mesetings passed resolutions as foliows:

1) Dividend

To approve dividend payments to shareholders for the fiscal year 2004 as follows:

Interim
Dividend dividend Qutstanding
per share payment balance
Company (Baht/share) (Baht/share) {Baht/share)
SHIN . 2.00 0.92 1.08
ADVANC {associate) 4.75 2.15 2.60
CSL (associate) 0.40 0.15 0.25

At the ordinary shzrehholders’ meeting of LTC jjoint verture) the shareholders passed a resolution to approve
a dividend payment of USD 5.0 miilion.

2) Warrants granted to directors and employees (ESOP)

To approve the issue and offer of warrants tc directcrs and employeses. The terms of the warrants do not
exceec 5 years anc there is no offering price as detailed below:

Par value Units % of total
Company (Baht per share) CGrant (Million) issued shares
SHIN 1.00 4 16.00 0.54
SATTEL (subsidiary) 5.00 4 7.56 0.86
ITV (sucsidiary) 5.00 3 9.65 0.80
ADVANC (associatz) 1.00 4 9.79 0.33
CSL (associate) 1.00 3 8.56 1.37

3) Increase in issued and paid-up registered share capital

At the Boarc of Directors’ meeting of SATTEL, it passed a resolution to approve a decrease of SATTEL's authorisec
share capital by wey of cancellation of authorised shares that have not been issued and paid-up in the number
of 208,03C,000 sheres at a par value of Bant 5 each, ameunting to 3aht 1,040,000,000. After the reduction, the
remaining authorised share capital of SATTEL will be 835,694,400 shares or Baht 4,528,472,000.

The Board has also passed a resolution to approve the increase of SATTEL authorised share capital from 3ah:
4,528,472,000 to Baht 5,606,282,500 by issuing 215,582,100 additional ordinary shares at a par value of 3aht
5 per share, totaling Baht 1,077,810,500. The additicnal ordinary shares are to be allccated no more than
208,000,000 shares for public sale and to support warrants to be issued to its directors and employees (ESOF
Grant IV) of 7,562,100 shares.
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